north east combined authority

North East Leadership Board (Extraordinary Meeting)
Tuesday 16th September, 2014 at 2.10 pm

Meeting to be held: Town Hall and Civic Offices, Westoe Road, South Shields, Tyne and Weair,
NE33 2RL

www.nhortheastca.gov.uk

AGENDA

Page No

1. Apologies for Absence

2. Declarations of Interest
Please remember to declare any personal interest where appropriate both
verbally and by recording it on the relevant form (to be handed to the
Democratic Services Officer).
Please also remember to leave the meeting where any personal interest
requires this.

3. External Auditor's report to the Leadership Board of the North East 1-28
Combined Authority

4. Annual Report and Accounts 2013/14 29 -180

Contact Officer: Victoria Miller Tel: 0191 211 5118 E-mail: victoria.miller@newcastle.gov.uk

To All Members
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Agenda Item 3
North East Combined Authority

North East Leadership Board (NELB)

DATE: 16 September 2014

SUBJECT: External Auditor’s report to the Leadership Board of the North
East Combined Authority

REPORT OF: External Audit

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Attached to this report as Appendix 1 is the Report of the External Auditor on the
2013/14 Accounts.

RECOMMENDATIONS

The North East Leadership Board is recommended to:

1. Consider and comment on the report of the External Auditor which is attached
as Appendix 1 to this report.
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North East Combined Authority

North East Leadership Board (NELB)

1.1

2.1

3.1

3.2

4.1

5.1

6.1

7.1

Background Information

The draft accounts of Tyne and Wear Integrated Transport Authority 2013/14
were completed in advance of the statutory deadline of 30 June. They have
since been subject to audit by the Authority’s independent external auditors,
Deloitte, whose report is attached at Appendix 1.

Proposals

Details of the audit opinion and findings are set out in Deloitte’s report at
Appendix 1.

Next Steps

External Audit will attend the meeting on 16 September to provide an update
on the audit at that point.

The Accounts must be signed by the Chair of the North East Combined
Authority and the Chief Finance Officer by 30 September 2014, and published
online by this date.

Potential Impact on Objectives

There are no direct impacts on objectives as a result of this report. Sound
financial stewardship improves the ability of the Authority to meet all of its
objectives.

Finance and Other Resources

The Chief Finance Officer has been consulted on the draft of this report.

Legal

The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 set out the
responsibilities of bodies such as NECA in relation to the production of
statutory accounts and their audit. Under the NECA constitution, the approval
of the Accounts is a responsibility for the Leadership Board.

Other Considerations

Consultation/Community Engagement
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North East Combined Authority

North East Leadership Board (NELB)

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

9.1

10

10.1

11

11.1

12

The accounts have been subject to a period of public inspection from 14 July
to 10 August 2014.

Human Rights
There are no human rights implications directly arising from this report.

Equalities and Diversity
There are no equalities and diversity implications directly arising from this
report.

Risk Management
There are no risk management implications directly arising from this report.

Crime and Disorder
There are no crime and disorder implications directly arising from this report.

Environment and Sustainability
There are no environment and sustainability implications directly arising from
this report.

Background Documents

Tyne and Wear Integrated Transport Authority Annual Report and Accounts
2013/14.

Links to Plans in the Policy Framework

There are no links to plans in the policy framework
Appendices

Appendix 1 — Deloitte report on the Audit of the Accounts.
Contact Officers

Eleanor Goodman, eleanor.goodman@newcastle.gov.uk, Tel: 0191 277 7518

Sign off
Head of Paid Service v/
Monitoring Officer v/

Chief Finance Officer v/

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



*éla‘;{:a}
=

- BanSunsiy

2L

r10C UYsHeN [ ¢

AjLIoyiny paurquio)) 1seq
JION 2y} Jo pieog diysioped iseq YMoON 2y} 03 11odoy

Ajoyny 1odsuel ] pojeISoju] JBOA PUB QUA

AJLIOYine paulquuod }sea yjou

eJau

Page 5



PEHWIT NSIBWYO | Syonio | SMGEIQ JO Jagiay

Joypny AJoiniels Jolussg

UosSUM|iA PlABQ

“ylom Hpne Jno (o 8sinog ay) Buunp uojelado-00 pue aouelsisse Jisy) Jo) wes) juswabeuew ay) suey) o} AJlunpoddo siy} axe) 0} 8] pinom apA
‘a|gejawy Buiuodal [BlouBUl pUB Jipne paalfe au} jeaw 0] joadxa am pue Juawasbeuew ‘S8l NdIYIp USasaloun Jo 8oussde syl Ul e
‘podal Jno Ul Uojjusye JINoA MEIP am Udiym o] seale [eluswabpnfjo lagqunu e ale aiay] e

‘alll} Jey} 18 1pne Jno uo Jodal [euy palepdn ue juasaid ||im pue 1,0z Jequsidss yig| suj
uo Bunesw pieog diysiepesT au} 18 @ouepuale Ul aq ||m 8\ “Lodal Jno ul pajiejep aJe ulewsal ydiym sesse Buipueisino ay| ‘e1s|dwod Aj[Bijuelsgns Si oM Ipne ng e

Aewawins uf

7LOZ uolely
<€ PapUS 124 8} Joj PN IN0 WoJ) UBSLE aAeY Jeu) siejew [ediould sy} S18A0D yodal SIy1 '¥10Z YOIBIAl L€ POpUS JeeAk ey} 1oy Ajuoyiny podsuel] psjelBaju) jeapy

pue auk| ey o] piebal yum (YDOIN) Aouiny paulqwio) ise3 YLON 8yl jo pieog diysispesT ise3 YHOoN @y} 0} Jodad Jno juswnaop sy} ul ino Buyes ui ainsesid arey ap

'SIig les(

¥1L0Z Jequisideg

ads 13N
auA] uodn apiseoman

aljusd JAID
Ayioyiny pauiquiod jse3 YUoN
pieog QEm._mUmml_ 1se3 UHLON
wopbuiy payun

4HZ L3N
aUA | -uodn-aseoman

aiey) peoig
suaplen) Ajiul] auQ

‘2130]2q

Page 6



uolssajo.d ERIVETJIITek)
ay3 ul 3snua 3uip|ing Japjoyaxeis Suimoio

Ajuioyjne pauiquic) J5ea y}iou

2J)du

1ydisulauadi||s3ul duipinoid

23uo||EYD
paluiojul 8uliaal|ag

leaA Juauno ayy
10} sjeldoldde palepisuod uaaq jou sey yoeoidde
Jpne paseq |04u0D 8y} Se sjuswale)s [eloueuly

ay) Bunse) 0} yoeoidde aaueisqns B Us)e] 8ABY )\ e

‘ueld JIpny 8y} ul
1no 195 adoos ay) woij sebueyo Aue apew jou aAey
PUE UB|d }IPNY INO Ul SYSU JUBOLIUBIS ¢ PaUljuapl ap e

M9/L13 jo ploysaiyy
Bunodal e pue WG g3 Se AJljelia)ewl paulwlaep apy e

:uejd upne 1no Jo Jopuldl

6L Ajjenb ypne 01 yoeoidde inQ ¢ Xipuaddy
gl s99) pue souspuadepu| ¢ xipuaddy
Ll suolnejuasaldal pue sapjiqisuodsal :pneld ;g xipuaddy
9l sjuswisnipe 1pny :| xipuaddy
Gl saoipuaddy
€l Juswaslels Ajjiqisuodsay
Ll Juswabeuew Ysu pue j0J3uod [eussiu| - ybisu|
8 JUSWIa)eIS 90UBUIBAOL) [BNUUY 8y} pue Asuow 1o} anjep
z SYSH Jipne jueoyiubls
L ainjoid B1q 8y

S1U9IU0))

Page 7



d1mo1d 31q 9y,




b

pieog diysiepesaT iseg YHON 3y} 0} pJoday |euld

‘uolejuasaldal Jo la)s| jo Jdisdai
pue malAal sjusAe juenbasqgns Buipnjoul
s2inpasold Umop 8sol0 pUB MalAal [eul)

pue ‘sjunosoe dnolf ay} Jo UonEp||oSuoD
pUB SJUSLWIBIEBIS [BIDUBUL PasIAal JO MBIABI

‘liouno? A0 sfiseomap Wody Jays| |ebs
pUE I8N8| 1UBLWISBAUI SpIMUOREN Jo 1d189al

‘S10}IpNE pun4 UoIsuad Jeapy pue auk]
woJ} syasse ue|d JaAo @oueInsse Jo ldigoal

MBIABI SJUNOJDY
JUBLULIBAOD) JO B]OUAA BY} JO uoiedwod

:@]9|dwoo 0} sisjjew |edipuud BuImo||o) U} SABY BAA

‘sauljpeap
palyioads INOA Ylim aul| Ul uoiuido palipollun ue anss] 0} jJoadxa em ajep 0} USeHapun ¥1om Ino wol4

uswabeuew Ag uonelapisuco Joj Ajejeledas paje|nolio aq ||im Jeys| uopeluasaidal

‘uoiejuasa.d JO JUslUCD
S)1 UlIM SBNsSS| OU PajoU SABY pUB JUBLUSIBIS 8JUBUISAOL) [BNUUY Y} Jo Aoenbape alj) pessasse aAey ap

‘uoisnjouco Aauoyy Joj anjea payljenbun ue spoddns ajep 03 pale|dwod }iom InQ

quawabeuew Ag pe1oa.IoD USSY SARY UDIUM paLiluSp! 8l1am S8Iousidlyap a1nsojosip
Jouiw Jo Jaquinu & ‘Ajuoyiny Hodsuel] pajeiBajul au} Je S|0JJu0D [Buldlul Ul se1ouadyep uediubis
10 SJUBLUSIE]SSIL [BLB]EW AUB PaliUBP] JOU BABY BM SJUSWSIE]S [BIOUBUIL Y] UO 310M JIPNE INO WO

‘JuaweBeUBL YIIM SIUSLUB]E)S [BIOUBI JJBIp BU) U0 SJUBWILLIOD [Bl}iUl INO PBSSNISIP 8ABY AN

3om Jpny

10Mm Ino Jo uonddwod uodn uoturdo Jpne parjIpowun ue Juinssi 9Jedionjue o

aImyo1d 31g oYL,

Page 9



'SJUSLLISIEIS [BI2UBLI U1 UIYIM S8}l 2JnSo|asIp 4o /pue [euonejussald pajejal uiejdxa osje @A) SUoISnjauod
JNO puUB YIOM JIPNE 1No AQ passaippe Usag aABY SYsH 8say} Moy ‘sysi juealiubis jo ainjeu ay} suiejdxs uonass siy |

SYSLI JIpNE JUBITUSIS




€

pieog djysiapeaT] jse3 YHON ay) o} Hoday Jeuld

UoN29s Sil} Ul paulino
s| sjusabpnl asay) Jo 1usLISSasse Juspuadapul InQ  jusliabpnl paslejeq pue iej sjeljsuowap yaiym sjuswisle)s |eioueul pasedsid saey juswsbeuswl ‘malA INo U|

M3IA a3310[20

JUBWISSASSY IEd A SNOIAL] » JUDLISSASSY JEa A JUaLng

Auoyiny pauiquio)

Buipunj

Jodal JIpne syl ul papnjou| 1LS3N 410} Bununosoy

S[0IJU0D JO

JONEL paAjoSaIUN |BLIBIEIN spinshnIURNRBEIL

® 6 0

}JIpai1d aininy 0}
Aay1) Jo/pue snonneg Alisnp

1
2 =
23
(1]
©
L
b
m =
=
e o
e
yly
palusp! juawisnipy 5 m
o=
(o]

° uoniubBooal snuansy

p210UIS2NSSI ON

sBuipui4 < abuey 9|qeidasoy > ysu ayy jo uonduasag

npne oy gurinp uodn pasnooj juawagpnl Jo sease Aoy
SYSII JIpne JUBdIUSIS JO Arewuung

Page 11



b4

pieog diysiapea jse3 YHON ayj o} Joday [euld

'8Pp0D Vdd|D 2yl puesaniua
USLULIBA0S) (B30T JBLIJO

aui| ul ale saliod co_::moomz
anuanal 8y ‘paldope saidijod
uoniuboaal snuaAsl aul Ul

selq Juswabeuell Jo 82uspiAs
90 0] 2154} JopISUOI 1oL Op BN

MalA a1310130

‘Buisal Jno Ul paljuap! uaaq aAeY Sanss| ON
‘Alziendoldde pasjubooal s| enuaaal ayj Jeyl ainsua o] aoe|(d Ul A[JusLng $|oJju0d JUBWSBEUBLL PaMBIAS] SABY am UOllIppeE U]
Emw:m awooul w_E u_o wmm:&m_anu mE Jano aouelinsse ueb 0] swooul [j0} Jo 8jdwes B Uo |Ie}ap 10 S}sa) uw_.Eotma BABY M

ysul Emuc_:m_m w_.: ssalppe o  pa}9)

‘awioou|
|0} [euun] auA] jo ssausja|dwod sy} 0} sajejad ysu uoniubooal ahuaaal J1j10ads auy Jey] Jopisuod em ‘Ajoyiny ayj Jo4

abua|jeyd JIpne INo pue Sjualua)e}s [eIoueul sy} uo oeduwi syl ‘eale juawabpnl Aay sy

"8Il yons o0} asll aAlB suolesse
10 UOIJDBSURL] BNUBAS ‘BNUaAal JO sadA] yoiym aenjeae ‘uoliubooal anusAal Ui pnedy Jo sysu aIe alsy) jey} uondwnsaid e uo
paseq ‘[[eys JOJpNE au} ‘pnelj 0} 8np JUaLsieISSIu [BUB)ELW JO SysIl 8y} Buissasse pue BuiAiuapr usym Jey} selels 0yg VS

)SHIJo ainjeN

2P0 AYI YA JUD)SISUOD SI UOLIIUT 0021 QNUIAJY
UOIJIUT 003y SNUIAIY '|

Page 12



S

pieog diysiapes }seg YMoN ayj o} poday [euld

‘Sei( 10 82uspins Aue paljiuapl
aM 2AEY JOU ple 8|gqeuoseaiun
2g 0] sajewlsa s uswabeuew
19pISU0D 10U Op &M “HMIoM }Ipne
J0I8SIN03 3} JaA0 pue sjeuinol
j0 a|dwes e jo buljssy Jno; ol

M3IA 39331013Q

“S|04}UOD JO BPLISAD
JuawebeUBW JO SBoUBISUI AUB PBIJIUSPI JOU BARY 8M 3I0M }IPNE N0 JO 8SIN0D 8y} JAAD pue sainpasoid esey) ybnody
‘pNEJ) 0] anp JUaLLB)BISSIL |euajew Ul }Nsal piNo2 JeU) Sase|q Jo) sejewise Bujunoosoe pamainel e

pue ‘sjuswisnipe

pue seujue yons jo ajdwes e o ssausieudoidde au} pajsa) pue ‘sjusluUslels [BlIoUBUY BU) jo uoneledsld syl ul spewl
sjuswisnipe Jaylo pue sauiua |eulnol JaAo sjojjuog ay} pue sssooud Buiodal jepuBUl BY] palen[eAe pue poolsiapun e
:sainpaoold jpne Buimaoljo) ay) pauioyad SABY SAA

¥su 3ueoyiubBis au ssaIppe 0} pa3aldLiod YIoM3Ipny:

‘suonoesUel) [ensnun pue jueayiubis o} pajelas spiooas Buuaje -
pue ‘suonoesuel) pue sajped psajejal jo aunsojosip Bupiwo .
‘souewlopad [eiueul) Jo uonisod [eiouBUl BY) Jussaldals|w o) painionJls ale Jey) suoljoesuel) xajdwoo ul buibebus .
‘suoloesuel) pue sjusae Jjo uonuBooal Buikejap Jo ‘Buiouenpe ‘Buipwio .
“uewbpn( sjendoiddeu BuiA|dde .
‘saujus [euinol snonioy Buipiooal .
:yBnouy sjoliuoa spulaac Aew Juswabeuey
‘AleAnoeys Bunelado aq o) Jeadde asimisylo 1Y} S|0jU0d Buipliano Ag sjuswWwalels [BIDUBUY JUSINpNEL)
aledaid pue spiooal Buunoooe ajejndiuew o} Ajjige ay} jo asneosq pnely ajedjadiad o} uopisod enbiun e ul si juswsabeuely
abuajjeya
JIPNE JNO. pUB SJUaWS)E]S [BIoUBUI 3U3 uo Joedw| s ‘apluaac juawabeuell 0] uone|al ul ysu jueayiubisiayy

'syodal [BIoUBUI JUB|NPNEL} USAS 10 9jeinadeul jussaid o} aoe|d ul
a1e JBU] S|0JIUOO BpLISAC 0} 8|qe aq Aew Juswabeurw jey} sesiuboosl siy] “Joypne ay} Aq payngal ag jouues ysu pawnsald
SIY] '|0J1u0D JO apLIBAOC JuswabBeuew Jo ysu pawnsaid e Ajuapl o} sio}ipne salinbal Buipny uo SPIEPUB]S [BUOlBUIBIU|

}S1 JO aImeN

pnelj 10 seiq 10J SJBWI)S JUSUWAFRUBW JO JUOWISSISS Y
S[OJIUOD JO IPLIISAO JUIWITBURIA ‘T

Page 13



9

pieog diysiapes 1se3 YLUON ay) o) poday jeuld

‘sanss| Aue payiuep| jou sey Bupse) InQ 'syuswalinbal Buipuny ey} yim saijdwoo Bulpun) sy Jo aseajal ay) ey} ainsua o}
ainypuadxe jo sjdwes e uo |iejep Jo jse} e pauuopad pue || SN O] uohe|al ul pasiuboos. ainjpuadxa ay} pamainal 8ABY 3L

¥su jueoyiubis auyy ssaippe o} paja|diuod yiom Jpny

‘ain)ipuadxa pajejal ay} Bunse) Ag Buipunj} Jo asea|al ay) JaA0 adueInsse uleb o] s)
abus|eyo Jno aloJlay) ‘Buipuny jo asesal e 10} salljenb ainypuadxa pajejal au} Jayleum punole s| eale Juawsbpn| Aey ay |

‘alnypuadxe Jueaajal ayj o1 Buipuny sy} Buyolew punocie paajoaul jJuswsabpnlay} e
pue :Buipunj 8y} 0} payoele SUCHIpUCd AU} e
:J0 @snedaq Buisle ysu Jipne pajejel e paljijuspl aAeY s

abuajjeyo jipne Ino pue sjuswiajels |eioueul ayj uo joeduwi syl ‘seale juawabpnl Aoy ayl
‘UoioESURL) 38U}

10/80URISNS 8] L}IM 90UERI000.
Ul 10} pajunoaoe uaag sey 19aloid
[LS3IN 2y} Bunsay Ino uo paseg

‘ainjipuadxa JueAS|al O} paydlew usaq sey Jl uaym si siy} abpamoun Jesh Joud woi4 “Buipuny ay) o} payoepe
SUONIPUOD BY] UM 8UI| U &g 0} paau alojelay [[im Buipuny sy} Jo asealal 8y "paysies ale josfoid |1 SN 8y} uo paunoaul
puads AjgLUEU ‘SUOIIPUOD PBJBIo0SSE aU) [IJUN }88ys 80Ue|eq 8} Uo pjey S| Seljloyiny [B00T 8y} Wol) paAieoal Buipuny

M3lA 33310190 )SI4 JO ainjeN

‘SjUaWAURLIR SUIPUN YY) JO JNsal
e Se Iupunj | LSHN Y 10J uIUNOII. 0} UOLE[AL UL SISIXD YSLI JUBDLJLUSIS B JOPISUOD O AN

gurpuny JLSAN 10f SUNUNOIIY '€

Page 14



L

pieog diysiopesT }seg yHON ay} o) yoday |euld

‘Ale1endoidde paledaid ussqg
aABL 0] S2INSO|2SIp paie|al pue
S)UNOI2., 9Ly} JBPISU0d am IUBA
UB/ Uyons 0} apo5 au} jo uonedijdde
8yl pue Ajuoyiny. pauiquicy

3yl Jo Uoneuwuo; au) jo abpajmouy
1no UybnoJyy pue ‘Juslusbelew
YlIM SUQISSNISIP 1IN0 UC paseq

MBIA 3111013

‘ap0o)) au} Yum aull-ul pue ajendoidde si v 1AL Uo Joedwi 8y} pue AJuoyine pauiquuoo

U} JO UOIBLLIO) Y} 8SO[ISIP O] SJUNC%E 102102 38U} UIYIM palinbal SaInsojosip [eUCHIPPE aU} Jey} PauLIijucd aAey S
‘siseq uiesuod Bulob e uo paiedeid ag o} sjunoooe

asay} Joy ajeudoidde si )1 alojelay ] ‘weouoo Buiob jo uondwnsaid ayy ejebau jou op (uonesiuebioal JuswUIBAOE |00

se ons) selpoq 10308 2j[gnd JO SUOHRUIGLUOD JBPUN SSDIAISS JO Ja)jSuel] ‘epo) 8y} Jad pue AjLoYIne mau 8u} 0} paiiajsuel
anBy V1| 8yl Jo seiljigel| pue sjesse ‘syybu ayj jey) uondwnsse ay) uo pasedsid usaq BABY SJUNOJOE H10Z-€L0Z 8UL
‘PeAjossIp

sem 1| Jaye paacidde pue paiedeaid aie sjuswajels aoueuseA0B [enuue sy} pue sjuUNodoe ainsue o} 8deld ul ind aAey
sjuswaBRUBLL S|0JJUOD 8] PamalAal 9ABY B\ "V LIAML Uo joedw sy} pue esle siy} Ul epeuw ssalbold ay} pamainel aney ap

WSt JuedIubIs a9y} ssaippelo) paja|dwiod }iom JIpny.

"'8po7) 8y} 0] 8dUaJeYPE UlBUIEL 0} palinbal ale SaInso|osip [BUOIIPPE =

‘sjuslwia)els soueulasoh jenuue pue
sjunoo9e 8y} Jo [eAcidde pue uononpoid 8U} Ul PAAJOAUL SI8qLUSLL PUB Jje)s A8) JO SSO| 8} O] PRJOBULO0D YSU 8y} Jo

:asneoaq Buisue ¥su Ipne palejel B palyljuapl aABY app

SjUaWDIL}S |eIdUBUIS By} uo Joedwi |eiuajod Jisiy pue seale juswabpnl A3y ayly
‘siseq u1eouog Buiob e uo pasedaid ag 0] sjunoooe esay) Jo) ejeudoldde si ) si0jeiay} pue Ajoyine

MBU 8y} 0} paLiejsuel] sey 1| 8y} JO uoiouny ay} jey) uopdwinsse sy} uo pasedaid usesq aAeY SJUNOJ0E #L0Z-EL0T BUL

‘Ayioyne
PaUIqIOD 8y} O} PR.LIBJSUBIL} SABY SUOIIOUN) S} PUB PBAJOSSIP SBM Y 1| L ‘AJLOyine pauiquuod auy) Jo Uoijeulo) suj Jo ued sy

'$10Z [udy F1 8yl uo AJUoUINE PaUIqUIoD B Paluioy) (S[IDUNod puelapung
pue apisau/] YInog ‘PUBHBINYHON ‘8pISauA | UHON ‘BliSEOMaN ‘pesyseles) ‘wWeyind) s|1ounod jses YUOoN uAss ay |

Auoyiny pauiquod
%Sl Jo aInjeN

*AJLIOINE PAuUIquIOd 2y} 0} pallajsuel)

SUOIOUNY S} DUB POAJOSSIP SBM V[ AAL “AILIOYINe paurquiod 9y Jo uoneuriof sy jo 1ed sy

Ayoyny paurquio) ‘f

Page 15



JUSUINRIS

JOUBUIDAOL) [BNUUY Y] PUB AQUOW I0T aN[e A




§ pieog diysispear Ised YHON 8y} o} Hoday |euld

uoISNjpUoD palijenbun U 8nss| 0} pusjul 8m pue paljijuspl Uaag aABY UOISN|OU0D N 4A Ino Bujoedwi sanssi oN

“UOISSILULLIOY) BY) AQ PSJEPUBL }IOM [BUORIPPE AUE 818U} SEM JOU ‘YoM Paseq
-ysU [220] AUB 8¥BlapUN 0} paau au} Jo saipoq Aloje|nbal Jayjo Aq us)euapun 3iom AUE PBlJUSP! JOU BABY SAN 'JUSLIBIE)S SOUBLIBAOS) [enuUY U} PamaInal BABY B\
T il o s i it sl z el ] : = T

Page 17

‘uoISSILIWOY 8y} Aq pajepuewl yiom Aue Jo ‘sjeudoidde se yiom paseg-ysu (00| Jayjo Bupjepspun e

pue ‘Apoq pajipne ay} 1e sailjiqisuodsal
s Jo}pne ay} uo joedwi AUE S| 218U} Jeyjeym Japisuod 0} ‘sejeojoadsul Jo saipog Aiojenbal jueas|el JaUlo pue UOISSILUWIOY) U} JO 3I0M BU} JO S}|nsal 3y} Buimeiral e
‘ JUBLUBIEIS 80UBLIDADL) [BNUUY Byl Bumsinal e

:AQ AP A 418y} 198U 0} @NURUOD [[iM SBIPOY 958U} JO SIO}PNE ‘y| /g L0Z 404 "UoISSILIWOD 8y} Ag payioads eusjio uo paseq jou si ‘Auoyiny
ay} Buiphjoul ‘selpogq paiioads e %om Hpne 4/ [B20] 0} Yoeoidde sy} JusLLIo0s) (8907 #L/EL0Z S89- JO S8|BIS pue awweiboid YoM S} Ul INO 18S Se ¢ /E} 0T Ul
SN0 4O Baly

"(uolsnjouoo (W4A) ABUoLw Joj BNjEA BY)) SB2IN0S JO 9SN S}l JO SSBUBAIIBYS pue Aouaipiye ‘Awouocds

ainoas 0} sjuswabuele s,uoyesiueblo ay) Buipiebal uoiSNjOU0D B MeJP 0} pasnbal ale am ‘sio)pne psjulodde se ‘90jjoeld JPNY JO 8poY UOISSIWILIOD 1PNy 8y} Jspun
juswalinbayy

uoIsnou0,) AQUOjJA 10} an[eA



0} paeog diysiapea jse3 ypop ayj o} poday |eutg

"JOM }IPNE INO W01} PBALIap Sj0JL0D
|leutsiul pue sjuswabuelle soueuwaach s Aluoyiny syl Jo Bulpueisiapun 1no UM JUB]SISUOD s| puUB $8insojos|p ajelidoldde |je sapnjoul SOY 8yl 1BYL Pepniouc aABY S

"S]USLLUS]E]S [BIOUBUL 8L} UD YIoM JNo
pue uojuidQ pue Hodey [enuuy JIpny [eulaiu| ey} ‘sajnuiw pJeod ‘spodal JIpne [Bulajul UPMm JUSISISUOD i} 1By} LLILUOD O JUSLUBIR]S 82UBLISADL) 8U) PAMBIAS) o
‘¥1-g 10z wopbuly papun ay3 ul Bupunooay Ajuoyiny (o0 UD 801j0B14 JO 8POD U} Ul N0 }8S SE sjuawwalinbal ay) Yum saidwios 11 Jey) painsua

(SOV) JuswWwalels 8oUBUIBAOS) [ENUUY B} ©} UoEal Ul yJom Buimoljo} sy} peluiopad arey ap
pe1ejduiod yiom 3pny

"801j0€1d JPNY JO 9pOD 8y} 0}
Buijejal yiom Jaujo pue sjuawWslelsS [2louBUll 8Ul UO YJOM INO WOJ) JO SIBME 8B am Jey] UOIBLLIOI 8} PUB 2INSOjosIp 8yl Usamiaqg saious]sisuooul Aue BulAimuapr e

pue {4410 Aq paiyoads se aonoeld Jadold yim seidwod i Jayjaym pue Juswaiels aoueulanob suy) ul seinsojosip ay) jo ssauaie|dwos ay} Bulepisuod e
218 pajoalIp S| MalAaL INQ

‘AlaAloaye pue Ajusiolye pabeuell aie S82IN0Sal JOYJ0 PUB [EJUSLUUOIIAUS ‘[BlOUBUY ‘UBUNY e

pUE ‘9|gel|2] PUE 8]JB.NJ0E 8JE UOJjELLICUl 8ouBLLIopad paysiignd Jaylo pue sjuswialels [eloueul) e

‘0] palaype ale sassao0id palinbal e

‘ym palidwos ale suonenbel pue sme| e

‘]JoW 8.e SpPJEpUE]S [BDIYIS pue SanjeA s AJUOYINY 8yl e

‘AjeAoeye pue Apusiolye palaalep ale seaines Ajenb ybiy e

oooeld Ul pajuswedw) ale seljod sAlLoUiny a8yl e

1By} 8insua 0} paubisep ssoy; tejnoiped ul Buipnjpoul ‘seniAioe s Aloyiny ue jo sbuel sjoym sy Buiuueds ‘s|osuod
pue sasseocold ‘swaisAs s1elodioo JueoUBS ||B s19A00 SOV 8yl (L.S9OV,) IUsSWaIRIS 99UBUISA0D) [enuuy paleiBeiul Ue ‘80//007 WO ‘PaonpoJIul MIOMBLUBL By ]

"L00Z Ul pauslignd Sem Yoium pomaue.
W [80UBUIBADS) AIUNWILIOY 10} BUOISASY| Y — JUSLUUIBAOL) [ED0T Ul 82UBUIDACL) 8ieiodlo), yJomaluel) 3OV 10S/V4d|D snolaald ay) paoe|dal ylomawes) siy | * Yiomewel]
W [JUSLILIBA0S) [BD07 Ui 82UBUIBAOS) pooS) Buusalag, pausygnd (,30V10S,) SeAN0axg jeiyD AjLoyiny [E00T Jo AJBI00S @y} yim uoiounfuos ut w440 ‘Z00Z aunr u)

“Ajioyiny auj Jo Buipuelsiapun No Ylim JUaISISUooUl S| JUSWSIRIS
ay} alaym Hodal 0] puUE JUS)UCD PUE Jewlo) paqliosasd ayl yiim aoue(dwod Joj JusLualels ay} malaal 0} palinbal ale am Jualuale}s 82UBLISADS) |ENUUY BU) JO joadsal U]

JUQUIOJEIS QOURBLLIDAOL) [BNUUY

Page 18



JuoWdSeURW NSLI PUBR [0NUO0D [BUINU] - 1YSISU]

"98))ILULWIOD 1IPNE 3U) 0] 1USLUUOJIAUS |0JIUOD [BUIBIUI BU Ul SBIDUBI0IBp Juedyiubis Aue a1ealunwiwod
9\ Sassado.d Juswwabeuell ¥SU pue |0JjUod [eusaiul JnoA Buipiebal sjuswwod JNo N0 18S aM UeIASS SIY) U|




Zl pleog diysiapeaT jseg YHoN ayj 0} Hoday |euld

JUBLUBIEIS BOUBUIBACS) [BNUUY BU} JO AOBINIDE PUB YSII BU} UO SMBIA N0 JO UOKEWIO 8U} 9ouan|jul SBUIpUl SU} JoASMOY JIPNE [BUISIUI JO ¥I0M BY} U0 8oUBIal 10alIp
@oe|d 10U pIP BAA “HPNE [BUIBIUI JO HJOM 8U} pamajaal ‘JuaLipedap Jpne [eulsiu ayy jo eouajaduwlod pue eouspuadapul 8uj Jo Juswssasse ue Buimo|o) ‘Wesa) Jpne ay |

}PNE [BUIB)UI Y3IM UOSIElT

juswanoidw Jueayiubis salinbay . paAo.dwi g p|no2 ing a|qeidsdoy (¥) palou sanss| oN .
. sjuaAa Jejiwis jo abpajmouy| Ino uo paseq poddns pepinold aaey aploeq e
a|qissod aiaym UonUBlal YBIS pUB lBlS paousuadxa pue paulenb Aj@leudoiddy e Ajuoyiny pauiquiod

‘swie|2 jo ssaua|qeuoseal ay} abpn|
0} @|qe pue ssalboid Aue jo aleme aie Juswabeuew sainsus sIY] "“DJNY PUB V1| 8y} jo JIeys
. sapnjoul Yolym pieoq [ LSIN ey} 0} panodal st |1 SIN 0} uoye|al ul snxan Aq usyeuapun AyAjoy e
‘|LS3N O} sejejal
ainypuadxa 8y} 1Byl 8INSUs 0} pallie|d sjunowe Joj padinbaul si uojejuswnaop dnyoeg ‘Buipuny
|LS3N 2Ul Wol} paunoul ainjipuadxa 0} UMOP MBIP O] SWIeD 1Wgns O} palinbal ale snxaN e Buipuny | LSIN

“JUBJUNOD2. Jolues

. Ag pamalral Weay aoueuy ayy Aq pajsod sjewunol ypum sieuinol oy ssecoud eacidde [enuely e
186pnq j1suiebe ssaibold Buuojuouwl Joj ajqisuodsal siepjoy jobpng e S|o4uoo
"18bpnq jsuiebe ssaiboid Buipnjoul Ajoyiny au} o} Buioded [eioueuy lejnbay e J0 apuiano Juswabeuely

‘1ounog A0 spiseomen Aq papinoid aojass Juswebeuew Ainseal] e
"suMopmelp JenBas yim 1| au) Ag papircid uopeoole AAg| lenuuy e

® “SUOIIPUOD
UM Bulul S| 8sEa[al ainsua 0] 8|l UO paule}al pue SUOJpUoD J0j PamalAe] UOIBJUSLUNDOP JUBIS) e uoiubooal anusaal
‘Auoyiny auy 0} podal soueul Jejnbay e J0 uoje|ndiuew jus(npne.ld

uonisod juaiiny sjosued [eudaju] ¥S1y Jueoyiubls

‘S]0J3U0D [eUId]UI PAle|al JO SSIUIANIDJD BY) pPUR [3pOoLL SsauIsng s,Aj1jua ayl wo.y buisie sysi 1ayjo pue ‘builiodal [elouBLly
19914 ABW BL)) SYSH 0} JUBAS[D. |0J3U0D [BUIDILI JO WIISAS JNOA 10 SSBU3ADAYS S} Uo ‘sainpadsold jipne 1no uo paseq ‘malA e apiaoid o) palinbal aie app

JuouoSeURW YSLI PUB [OU0D [BUIAIU]

Page 20



JUAWAIRIS AJI[IqISuodsay




vl pieog diysiapeaT Jse3 YMUON ay) o) Moday [eujd

"JuBsuod uspum Joud Ino Jnoypm saiued Jayjo Aue o) sjge|ieAe
apew aq jou pjnoys §i ‘uojjenbal Jjo me| Aq palinbaJ sieym jdeox3 "esodind Jeyjo Aue Joj ‘papusiul jou si pue ‘pasedsid usaq jou sey podel siy} aouls ‘saiued Jayo Aue o]
Ajjigel| Jo Ajiqisuodsal ‘Aynp ou 1deooe )y "SJUBIUOD S} 1) BuOje NoA 0} AJjigisuodsal Jdeooe alojalay) am pue ‘Apoq e se ‘Ajuoyiny sy} Joj pesedald useq sey uodal siy L

¥10¢ Jequsides
auA | -uodn-epseomap

SIUEIUNOD2Y paJeLBy))
d11 8R\1oj2g

‘Ue|d PNy 8y} o} xipuadde
ue Se pale|nalld sem yoiym siasjeuw ipne uo Buysug, Arejuswsaddns ay} pue

L % #10Z UoJell £z perep ueld Ipne Jno Ui 34om Ino jo adoos sy} paquosap ap, e

[

e

‘sjusLUBle]s
soeqpasy [eloUiBUY BY} JO JIPNE INO JO }X8JU02 8y} Ui padojaAap ale SUONBAIBSFo INQ e
InoA aAl@2a1 pue noA yum podal Jno sshosip 0} Ajunioddo auy) swodam apn }10Mm ano jo adoos ay]
lipne Jno wouy peyiuepl aaey am spybisul sy e
'SJUBLIBIE)S [BloUBUY ‘Buipoday [eloueuy oaye ABW JBU) SHSU
au} Jo upne sy} ul pauuouad saunpasold Jipne sy} uo Ajg|os paseq usaq aey 0] JUBAS|2J [0JJUOD [BUIBIUI JO WBISAS INOA JO SSBUBAIIDBYUS 8U) U0 SMBIA INQD e
A8y} @0oujs ssauaAlloaye uo uoluldo Ue Se Jo aAlsuayeldLloD se cmv_ﬂ.wn_ jou plomaioy Alojeueidxg Jnok Jo Ajenb
PINOYS JUSLUSSESSE Y| SSBUISNG PUE S|0JJU0D [BUIBILI UO SMBIA N0 ‘Ajjeul] e 8y} UO SUOHBAISSJO JNO pue sjuswebpnl pne A8y UO YI0M INO JO SYNSay
‘SI8SIApE 1si|el0ads :sepnjoul
Jayjo Aq Jo JusweBeuew Aq uo papiodal sisjeW se Yyons _mmm___g_m:o_awﬁ Hodal Ino sjuswalinbal aouewieaob Jnok pue sseoord Buipodas [eloueul 8y}
aouelanoh inoA abreyos|p 0] paau NOA ucnewLlojul JBypny aq ||Im 818y} ‘oSl e 10 1yBisiano Inok BuipieBal oA Yjm SJEOIUNWILIOS O} 09z Y'S| Jepun suonebijqo
"Ajoyiny sy} 03 lJueAaal aq Aew Ino |uing em yoiym Ul Aem auo sjussaldal osie 3| sainp soueulanob lisy)
1By} siepew (e Ajuspl o] paubisap Jou Sem JIpNe Jno ‘aleme 8q ||IM NOA Sy = sbieyosip Ajoyiny ay) pue pieog diysiapea ay) djay o} paubisap si podal inQ
podal J,uop am JEYA podal am JeYpM

Page 22

SaIINP 9OUBUIOAOSF INOA 129Ul NOA djoy 03 paudisap si 1odal InQ
Juauwage)s ANjqisuodsar pue 1xodar o jo asoding



saorpuaddy




gl piaeog diysiepeaT jse3 yHoN 2y} o) poday |eulq

‘Bulyeaw ay} Buunp ajepdn [eqie B apiacid ||im 8\ “SIUNOJJE By} UIYlM Papn|oul 8q 0} SaInsojasip
|Jeuonippe aaibe o} juswabeuew Ypm suoissnasip ul Ajjuauna ale spp 'seblieyo (|0 jpuuny auk] sy} o} Buneas Alljigel) Jusbuuod jeuoiippe ue payiuspl aney juswabeue)

H‘GDSO Dr@ %Dr —UQESGQGW %OCOMO @w_u o4l mOMUm HQ
uswebeuew Aq peioalloo Usaq sABRY UoIym SJUSLLISIEIS [BIOUBUL 8] Ul S8I0USIOLBP 84NS0(0SIp JOUIW JO JagLUnU B paijiiuspl 8 "SIUSLUSIBISSIW Pa10allooun ou a1 alay |
SJUBWDIBISSIW pajoaLiooau(

[[e39p Sjuowdle)ssiu pajsnipeun)

sjuaunsnlpe pny : 1 xpuaddy

Page 24



Ll pieog diysiepean] jseq yHoN ayj 03 Hoday jeuld

*J0JJ8 10 pned) Ag pasned Jayjauym ‘JUaLUL)B)SSILW [BUS)eLU WO} 8814 ale 8joYm B SE SJUaLUB]e]s [BloUBUI SU) JBY} 82UBINSSE ‘8)n|osde Jou Ing ‘8|qeuoseal ulejqo
om ‘siojlpne sy ‘suoie|nBal pue sme| ajgealdde yum aoueldwos pue suolelado Jo Aousiolye puE ssausAloays ‘Buipodal [elpuBuly JO ARSI U} JBAO S|OUOD [EUIBIUI
Buiureuiew pue Bulysigeisa Buipnjoul ‘soueuanct yum pabieyo ssoy) pue Juswabeusw yym sisal pneyj) Jo uolosiep pue uonuaaald au o} Aljiqisuodsal Alewld ey |

SU pNeJ) B SB Pasiel SEM UOIUM S[01U09 JO 8pLISAC juswebeuewL JO YSU 8y} J8A0 Lojwod sepjAcid
sjewnol jo Buyse) JnQ “1eeA ey} Buunp pnel} Jo SBOUEISUI PUE SI0JOB) YSU pnel) Aue o} uone|al Ul sauinbus joslip epew pawuoyiad
aAey ap\ "eouewaAob upm pabieyo asoy; pue JuswafieuBLl Ylim SUOISSNOS|P PBY 8ABY @M ‘JpnE INo JO 851n0d ey} Buung

H40M JIpNY

Page 25

‘uoljesiuebio Jnok
10} SHsH Jpne Asy Se s|oAjUoD JO 8puIsA0 juswsBeuew pue uoyiuBosl enusAsl uj pneyj JO }SU ey} paunuspl em Buiuueld Jno uj

‘seInped0id JIpNe N0 puUB 8A0ME PAlOU MJOM AL} WO} seinpasold BUIMOI] BlSIUM LUOJ) Palusp] Uesq 8ABY SUIBOUOD ON SuJa2uo09n

dnoub Jo Aypue ey} s1094e Jey) pneyy pejoedsns S :o_ﬂmﬂ\._.mmw.._.n._ m.._
10 pniedy AUB JO SJBME JOU 81B NOA JeU} PUE PNByj JO }iNsel & SE pejelssiw Ajjeusiew eq AeLu SjUsLUISIE)S [BIoUBUY 8U} jeu) ;
ySU 8y} JO JUBLUSSESSE UMO JNoK 10 S}insal aU} Sn 0} Paso[osIp 9ABY noA Jey) BuuMm Uj ULPUOD O} SIeqLISI BL} PaXSE SABL OAN paiinbay

suonejuasardar pue sanifiqisuodsar :pnei 7 xipuaddy



8l

pieog diysiapea j5e3 yHON 8y3 0} Hoday [euly

66561 66561 [ejoL
665°61 66561 Auoyiny Hodsuel | pajeibaju| leapp pue aukl jo Jpny

3 3

Jeak iolid 1A JUsLIND

1SMO|[0) SB 8B 10z YoIB LE 01 Z1.0Z |Udy | wouy pousad ay) ul apiojag Aq paulies saa) [euolssajold ay

‘aouspuadapul pue AjAloalgo Ino uo joeduwl pjnom Yyaiym sdiysuone|ay
‘Aoyiny Hodsuel | pejelbau| Jeapy pue auk ] sy} Bunelodiooul ‘Ajuoyiny pauiquiod) 1Se3 YHON 2yl yim sdiysuoljeal Jayjo ou ale alay ]

‘AlESSB08U SB 8SIADE 8SIMIBU}0 0] PUE paulopad yIom au) Jo smalaal Jno ALIED 0} JelS |euoissajoud

pue sisuped [BUOIIPPE JO JUSWSAIDAU] 8U} PUB JB)S [eucissejold pue sieupled Jolues Jo uoijejod ey} ‘o) pajiwll| jou ing ‘Buipnjoul soe(d S83IAI8S

ul ale spienbajes ajeldoidde jey} einsue pue souspuadapul JnO MalAal 0} snuuod app "Aoljod jeu jo yoeauq jusiedde Aue jo 1o seo1nIes lipne-uopn
1pne-uou jo Ajddns ayy Jo} Aoijod s AjLioyIny 8y}l pUE s10}IpNy 10} SPJEPUEBIS |B21Y1T gdY U@amiag sa1ousisisuooul ou ale aljay) uoiuido 1no uj

7102 YoJBI LE 01 £10Z |udy | Wwoiy pouad 8y} Ul $821AI8S Jipne-uou Aue papiacld Jou aABY S A s0ad

uoljewjuos

‘pasiwoidwod jou s1 Aliaosiqo
aouapuadapu|

ino pue Juspuadepul sie em ‘Juswabpnl |euoissajoid INo Ul By} pUe SIoNpNY J0} SPIEpUBS (01T GdY Ylim A[dwod am Jey) Wiuod app

Mojaq pejsi| siejew ay} uo noA o} Hodal o} pasinbal ale em ‘(pue|al] pue yn) Bulpny uo spiepuels [euoieulsiu| Jepun suonebiiqo no jo ped sy

S99J pue doudpuadapu] :¢ xipuaddy

Page 26



6, pieog diysiepesT 1S3 YHON 3yj 0} Hoday |euld

‘s1@ad ino jsBuowe uoiHodold 1saybiy ay)

SOy 2yl woly apesb doy ayy Buiasiyoe sjpne Jo 9% /9 ylim AJfenb jipne Jo juoijelo) ay] 1e sulewsad aglojeq
‘suly jsable| ay) Buowe ‘Jeuy) s8ouapiAe sieak aAl Jse| au) 10} apelb Ag smalrsl alll OV 8yl Jo sisAjeue
|[eiano 2y -uoiuido 1pne Ino jo AJpieA ayi Ignop 01 YOV 8yl #snes jou pip siyl ybnoujje suoisiaold

SS0| UBO| [ENPIAIPUL PUB 8AID8([00 aU} Jo Bulisal ay) o) uoneas ul sjuswanosdwl juesyiubis Bulinbal

SE Passasske sem Jipne auo eyl pajuloddesip atem s ‘siuswaAcidwl palinbal sypne noj pue palinbal
suswsAcsdwl paywi yim plepueis poob e o} pawuopad siem HDY 9U) Ad pamaiaal sIpNe 8yl Jo aAleM |

‘2)9|dwiod s} uaym noA yjim podas jeuy sl aleys
llim pue Jeak s1y3 10} maiaal Jj1ay) jo Jed se jipne
inoA sjoajes wWea) YOV 3yl §I NoA wiojul j|Im app

Wy Xapul/syodal-lenuueJnodepn/gs: Us/Mmalijwod a)ic[ap MMM /A
:9}ISQam 1IN0 Lo ajqe|ieA. si pue Aljenb
BuuaAlap 0) yoeoidde ino BuipieBal uonewuoul ssyuny sepiacid jioday  Aousiedsuel) 1iphy, s;aniolaq

‘lo1juo2 Alljenb!jo WwaisAs
INo pue sainpadold lIpne N0 o} SjualuaAcidill pajusua|dill aABY M ‘MBIASL HDY. aUi Bumo|o4

-Buisue salusly) aUl 0} 8suodsal aAla8)ja ue ‘saunpadoid

MmalnallAljenb umo ino Wwoiy Buisue sBuipuly Uiimitioauniues ul‘dojaaspiol sn pajgeus sey siy| -buipuly
UJES J0/SSSNED 100J 84} J0 UoneBisaaul papnioul sey Siy | ‘SUONEPUSLULIOIS) PUB SJUSLULIOD 'S DY
ay) |0 Yoea 0] UOIRIapISUD) \NjaIed UsAlB aABY am JusLuaaoidLll snonuluoo o epusbe uno o Led sy

‘ss920.d U0123dsul [|B18A0 N0 10 ed Juenoduwil
UE SULIo} DY, 8Ul Ag paulloyad maiAsl 8yl pue ‘siusLiLlios pue uooadsul s 10jenbal syl anea s

‘SUWO02[2M SI [01uod Alenbiio swalsAs ||elaao Jno uo adeid am siseydius sy} jo uohiubooai s)pue
suonoadsul S} 10 S)NSal PUE SNao) a1 JO MalA padueled e sapiaoid 110da.s, HDY aul ey} JapIsuoa apn

“LLII} 1IN0 JO s|aA9) e 12 pauieddns pue paloadsal si Ajjenb
JpNE 0] UouNguIUEaLIIBY) pue ioie|nbal ayl ylm yoeoidde aanesiunwiwios pue usdoiue jdope s

‘Slipne aAaunsip ‘Allenb ybiy ainaaxa 0} s1 8Alda(qo a16ajens Ine

asuodsal apiojaq

Jjpdanioeg-v10e
-Ae\-Lodsy-uonosdsul-AIEND-HPNY/MBIASH-AN[END
NpNy/SUCREIIGNd S0 MM-INOA N BIO 311 MMM/ SARY

PL/SL0Z 40§ @pio[a(q uo Hodsy YOV

. 'Seole asay]

JO LIS LI 8SLIE 0] PAaNUIIUCD SBNSSI 'ISASMO} "SBLLSBL]
Burunosd ayy uo Buuiesy ypne pue suoijeoIuniLIoD
[B21UYo8) "‘eauepIng pasueyus papnoul siy Auenb
ypne ur sjuswaaosduwil aasiyoe o] sBuipuy seal sod
Ao 0} asuodsal Ul sdajs Jo Jaquuny e 3oo) uuif 8y}

rsadnpsasosd pue sajoljod asoy] 0} paiinbad

a1e SJUBLIBACITWI 818YM SBBIE UIBLISD Paljiuspi sney
BM ‘SSa[8YLBABN "8Seq Jusio SY JO ainjeu sy) pue

8zis sy 1o} 82ed uj sainpasold pue ssajojjod ejeudoudde
sey 'seale jsow uj ‘pue jouod Aenb jo swsisAs
J|B48A0 S]I Lo SIseydius ajgelspisuod saoejd Wil 8y,
Jesh syl o) wesl (( HOv..)

malray Aljen) Hpny Sl JO SallIAIJ0R 8U) JO MSIAIBAC UE
Buipiaodd ‘sucnoadsu| Alljend 1pny uc uoday jenuuy
ue sanssi ( Oy 4.) ounoD Buipoday [elouBul 8y |

‘80UBINSSE [NPUBISUI puB BAIRSIGO “JUSISISUOD JaAljep O} Japio

u Aljenb jo yinsind BuipjaiAun ue aaey apy selnpadoud |o5uos Ajllenb Jno pue Ajjenb o} Juswiliwoo INo uo saAjesino spud e “Ajuoud auo Jequinu uno si Ajjenb 1ipny

epuage Ajijenb 1no 10} snjodwil JAyN} pue JO UONIUT0IIY

Ayrrenb jipne 01 yoeoidde inQ 4 xipuaddy

Page 27



pajiWwi] NS)EWYO ] 8Yono | S1Hoja(] JO Jaguispy

‘861 L €854 02 (0) #r+ xed 000 9€6/ 02 (0) vp+ 8L "wopbuiy pajun ‘Zge viO3 uopuo ‘aienbg
182415 MaN ¢ T ao1yjo pessibal sit pue G9£0€00 Jequinu paie)sifial ynm sejep pue pueibu3 ul passysiBal diysisuped Ajlgel paliw e s 477 epeed

pansasal sibu v "d11 @nojed v10Z @
1LLA Jo wilf Jequiswl wopbuly paun 841 St 417 SRicied

TSy ..mwﬂ_twr_._
syl puUB 711 Jo aimanis [ebs] ay) Jo uohduosap pajielap B Jo) JNogesn 00 alliojap MMM 225 ases|d 'Alue juapuadapu) pue a)eiedas AieBa) B St Yoym Jo yoea

‘suwul) Jequualu Jo yJomjau sy pue ‘asjuelenB Ag paypwi) Auedwoo ajeaud yn e '(,7.L1q,) pelwi NSiewyo | ayono | spiojaq Jo SJoLW JO aU0 0} SJajas apIolp

Page 28



Agenda ltem 4
North East Combined Authority

North East Leadership Board (NELB)

DATE: 16 September 2014
SUBJECT: Annual Report and Accounts 2013/14

REPORT OF: Chief Finance Officer

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The 2013/14 audit programme is now largely complete and Deloitte as the external
auditor expect to issue their opinion before the end of September. Our external
auditor has not identified any significant issues during the audit and their report
indicates that they are likely to issue an unqualified opinion on the accounts and an
unqualified value for money opinion. As a result of the audit, the final Audit report
and Accounts for 2013/14 are now presented for approval by the Leadership Board.
This report summarises the findings of the audit and presents the final accounts for
consideration.

RECOMMENDATIONS
The North East Leadership Board is recommended to:

1. Review and approve the Letter of Representation (Appendix 1)

2. Authorise the Chief Finance Officer to sign the Letter of Representation on
behalf of the Authority

3. Review and approve the final ITA and Group Accounts for 2013/14 (Appendix
2)

4. Authorise the Chair and the Chief Finance Officer to sign the ITA and Group

Accounts

Review and approve the Annual Governance Statement (Appendix 3)

6. Authorise the Chair, the Head of Paid Service and the Chief Finance Officer to
sign the Annual Governance Statement.

o
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North East Leadership Board (NELB)

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.1.2

2.2

2.2.1

2.3

2.3.1

2.3.2

Background Information

The full Annual Report and Accounts was completed and signed off by the
Chief Finance Officer on 27 May, well in advance of the statutory deadline of
30 June. Governance Committee have considered the financial statements
and reports of the External Auditor at their meetings in June and September.

The Statement of Accounts has been subject to a period of public inspection
and external audit, and the final Annual Report and Accounts is now
presented for approval.

The final Annual Report and Accounts must be signed off by the Authority and
published online by 30 September.

Proposals
Independent Auditors’ Opinion

The detailed report of the external auditor is elsewhere on this agenda.
Deloitte anticipate issuing an unmodified audit opinion, dependent on the
successful completion of some outstanding items which are set out in their
report.

Adjustments to the financial statements

There have been no material adjustments required to the financial statements
which were published in draft form in June. The final Annual Report and
Accounts are attached as Appendix 1.

Arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the
use of resources

As part of the audit of the Authority’s accounts, the external auditors are
required to assess the Authority’s arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in the user of resources, commonly referred to as
the Value for Money (or VFM) assessment.

At the time of writing their report, the external auditors have assessed that the
ITA had proper arrangements in place to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources, and anticipate issuing an unqualified
VFM opinion.
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2.4

2.4.1

2.4.2

3.1

4.1

5.1

6.1

Annual Governance Statement

Governance Committee reviewed the draft Annual Governance Statement
(AGS) at its meeting on 27 June 2014. Since that point, there have been no
additional governance and control issues arising from the host authority,
either through internal audit work or from the audit of the host authority’s
accounts. The external auditors, Deloitte, have indicated that there are no
issues emerging from the audit of the ITA’s accounts that would need to be
reflected in the AGS. NECA officers are not aware of any issues arising since
27 June that would need to be reflected in the AGS.

It is therefore recommended that the AGS be approved for inclusion with the
ITA’s final accounts for 2013/14, and signed off by the Chair of the North East
Combined Authority, the Head of Paid Service and the Chief Finance Officer.

Next Steps

The Accounts must be signed by the Chair of the North East Combined
Authority and the Chief Finance Officer by 30 September 2014, and published
online by this date.

Potential Impact on Objectives

There are on direct impacts on objectives as a result of this report. Sound
financial stewardship improves the ability of the Authority to meet all of its
objectives.

Finance and Other Resources

The views of the Chief Finance Officer are reflected in the body of the report.
It is pleasing to see a positive audit report on the final Annual Report and
Accounts of TWITA and | would like to thank those involved in preparing and
auditing the accounts and the Governance Statement, including Finance staff
at Nexus whose early production of their accounts helps with the
consolidation of the group accounts, members of the former Audit Committee
of TWITA and the Governance Committee of the North East Combined
Authority.

Legal

The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 set out the
responsibilities of bodies such as NECA in relation to the production of
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7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

9.1

10

10.1

10.2

10.3

statutory accounts and their audit. Under the NECA Constitution, it is the
responsibility of Governance Committee to review key information relating to
the NECA’s Statement of Accounts, but the approval of the Accounts is a
responsibility for the Leadership Board.

Other Considerations

Consultation/Community Engagement

The accounts have been subject to a period of public inspection from 14 July
to 10 August 2014.

Human Rights
There are no human rights implications directly arising from this report.

Equalities and Diversity
There are no equalities and diversity implications directly arising from this
report.

Risk Management
There are no risk management implications directly arising from this report.

Crime and Disorder
There are no crime and disorder implications directly arising from this report.

Environment and Sustainability
There are no environment and sustainability implications directly arising from
this report.

Background Documents

Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 2013/14

Links to Plans in the Policy Framework
There are no links to plans in the policy framework
Appendices

Appendix 1 is the Letter of Representation to be signed by the Chief Finance
Officer on behalf of the Authority

Appendix 2 comprises the full Annual Report and Accounts for 2013/14

Appendix 3 comprises the final Annual Governance Statement
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11

111

12

Contact Officers

Eleanor Goodman, eleanor.goodman@newcastle.gov.uk, Tel: 0191 277 7518

Sign off
Head of Paid Service v/
Monitoring Officer v/

Chief Finance Officer v/
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Deloifte LLP

One Trinity Gardens
Broad Chare
Newcastle Upon Tyne
NE1 2HF

[Date]
Qur Ref: DPW/2013-14

Tyne & Wear Integrated Transport Authority — Audit of the financial statements and group financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2014

Dear Sirs

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the annual financial statements of Tyne &
Wear Integrated Transport Authority and its Group accounts for the year ended 31 March 2014 for the purpose of
expressing an opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
Tyne & Wear Integrated Transport Authority and its Group as of 31 March 2014 and of the results of its operations,
other recognised gains and losses and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the applicable
accounting framework.

We acknowledge our responsibilities for preparing financial statements for the Authority and Group which present a
true and fair view and for making accurate representations to you.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the following representations.

Financial statements

1. We understand and have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements in
accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework which give a true and fair view, as set out in
the terms of the audit engagement letter.

2. Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair
value, are reasonable.

3. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in
accordance with the requirements of IAS24 "Related party disclosures”.

4, The effects of uncorrected misstatements and disclosure deficiencies are immaterial, both individually and
in aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole. The uncorrected misstatements and disclosure
deficiencies are detailed in Appendix 1 to the Report to the Authority.

5. We confirm that the financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis. We are not
aware of any material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upan the
Authority’s or Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. We confirm the completeness of the
information provided regarding events and conditions relating to going concern at the date of approval of
the financial statements, including our plans for future actions.

The financial statements are free from material misstatement.

All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which the applicable financial
reporting framework requires adjustment of or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.

Information provided

8. We have provided you with:
e access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the financial
statements such as records, documentation and other matters;
e additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and
= unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit
evidence.
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10.

11.

12,

13

14.

15,

16.

i

18.

19.

20.

21,

22,

23.

All transactions have been recorded and are reflected in the financial statements and the underlying
accounting records.

We acknowledge our responsibilities for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control to
prevent and detect fraud and error.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be
materially misstated as a result of fraud.

We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and
that affects the Authority and involves:

(i). management;

(ii). Members of the Authority

(iii). employees who have significant roles in internal control; or

(iv). others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the
entity's financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or
others.

We are not aware of any instances of non-compliance, or suspected non-compliance, with laws,
regulations and contractual agreements whose effects should be considered when preparing financial
statements.

We have disclosed to you the identity of the Authority's related parties and all the related party
relationships and fransactions of which we are aware.

All known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered when preparing the
financial statements have been disclosed to you and accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting framework. On the basis of legal advice we have set them out in the
attachment with our estimates of their potential effect. No other claims in connection with litigation have
been or are expected to be received..

We have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of assets and
liabilities reflected in the financial statements.

Where required, the value at which assets and liabilities are recorded in the balance sheet is, in the opinion
of the Members, the fair value. We are responsible for the reasonableness of any significant assumptions
underlying the valuation, including consideration of whether they appropriately refiect our intent and ability
to carry out specific courses of action on behalf of the Authority. Any significant changes in those values
since the balance sheet date have been disclosed to you.

There have been no irregularities involving members or employees who have a significant role in the
accounting and internal control systems or that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

There have been no events since the balance sheet date which require adjustment of or a disclosure in the
financial statements or notes thereto. Should further material events occur, which may necessitate revision
of the figures included in the annual accounts or inclusion of a note thereto, we will advise you accordingly.

The Authority has satisfactory title to all assets and there are no liens or encumbrances on the Authority’s
assets.

We recognise that we are responsible for ensuring that the statement of accounts as published on the
website properly presents the financial information and your auditor's report and for the controls over, and
security of, the website. We also recognise that we are responsible for establishing and controlling the
process for electronically distributing annual reports and other information.

We confirm that:

e all retirement benefits and schemes, including UK, foreign, funded or unfunded, approved or
unapproved, contractual or implicit have been identified and properly accounted for;

o all settlements and curtailments have been identified and properly accounted for;

o all events which relate to the determination of pension liabilities have been brought to the actuary’s
attention;

e the actuarial assumptions underlying the valuation of the scheme liabilities accord with the Members’
best estimates of the future events that will affect the cost of retirement benefits and are consistent with
our knowledge of the business;
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e the actuary's calculations have been based on complete and up to date member data as far as
appropriate regarding the adopted methodology; and
s the amounts included in the financial statements derived from the work of the actuary are appropriate.

24, All known material liabilities have been properly included in the annual accounts and all material
contingent liabilities have been disclosed.

25. We are not aware of any potential clawback by grant payers of grants that have been released to income.

26. Our Annual Report will be consistent with and include the financial statements as audited.

We confirm that the above representations are made on the basis of adequate enquiries of management and staff
(and where appropriate, inspection of evidence) sufficient to satisfy ourselves that we can properly make each of
the above representations to you.

Yours faithfully

Signed on behalf of the Tyne & Wear Integrated Transport Authority
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Chairman’s Foreword
and Introduction
2013/14

S

The Annual Report of the Tyne and Wear Integrated Transport Authority’s finances normally
enables me to reflect on our progress over the past year and what has been achieved. However, as
the ITA moves into a new era with the establishment of the North East Combined Authority, this
foreword gives me the opportunity to look back on over 40 years of achievements and the legacy
which will be left behind.

The Passenger Transport Authority, as it was known then, first came into being on 1st January
1970 with the objective of improving public transport provision and tackling the congestion which
— even at that time — was holding back the local economy. As befits a region which pioneered
passenger railways, the Authority has a proud record of innovation and the Tyne and Wear Metro
system, which opened in August 1980, was one of the first light rail systems to open in the UK.
Since the development of the initial network, there have been two further successful extensions;
one to our International Airport and the second to Sunderland, as well as the opening of several
new stations.

The Authority has been responsible for managing the Tyne Tunnel, opened in 1967, and more
recently, in response to growing demand on the A19 strategic route, we supervised the design and
construction of the TT2 which opened in 2011, a major project which was completed on budget
and ahead of schedule, receiving the top civil engineering award at the British Construction
Industry Awards in London.

The region’s other main strategic road link is the Al and, in April of this year, government
announced that the Al Lobley Hill to Dunston Improvement Scheme would be extended to Coal
House and Metro Centre. This positive news was the result of £19 million savings from the original
scheme. This extended scheme will address congestion and improve capacity over a wider area of
the Al as well as tackling congestion and assisting economic growth.

With the passing of the 2008 Transport Act, the Passenger Transport Authority became the
Integrated Transport Authority, with a wider remit to cover all forms of transport. | am particularly
pleased that we have become recognised for our success in improving sustainable transport and
we were delighted in March this year, when the Department for Transport announced that Tyne
and Wear’s Local Sustainable Transport Fund Team had been awarded £904,000 of additional
monies as part of the £2 million underspend that had been identified across the LSTF programmes
nationally. Tyne and Wear received almost 50% of the available funding, reflecting the positive
reputation we have achieved for successful delivery of our Go Smarter programme. Tyne and Wear
have recently submitted a further LSTF revenue bid for measures to be delivered in 2015/16; we
are currently awaiting confirmation as to whether we have been successful with an announcement
expected in July.

It has always been one of my great ambitions as Chairman to see the introduction of a
comprehensive smart ticketing system for the Tyne and Wear. | am both delighted and proud at
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Chairman’s Foreword and Introduction

the progress that has been made towards this vision, particularly in the final year of the ITA. In
October 2011, | was present to see the installation of the first of a new generation of Metro ticket
machines, accepting cards and notes for the first time but also enabled to handle smart
transactions. It seems incredible that, little more than two years later, there are more than
100,000 passengers using smart cards to buy and make journeys, touching in and out easily at
station gates and validators.

North East England leads the country in delivering new smart travel for local people. Investment
by NESTI, the North East Smart Ticketing Initiative partnership of local authorities running in
parallel with the work of the ITA and Nexus, means that a single card can soon be used for travel
on buses and Metro anywhere from north Northumberland through Tyne and Wear and Durham
to the Tees Valley.

During my last few days as Chairman | was able to observe the next steps on this path, as |
launched the first Pay As You Go travel pilots, as well as ticket sales through the Payzone retail
network. The on-going roll-out of smart technology will continue in the coming year.

The Metro: all change modernisation programme continued to deliver record investment in our
transport infrastructure and impressive standards of project management and efficiency. The
programme was honoured by the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors in the 2014 North East
Renaissance awards. | was also pleased to see the efforts Nexus and its suppliers make to engage
with customers and residents around major engineering works recognised by two accolades at the
UK Rail Business Awards, for public relations and for customer information and marketing.

| visited construction work at Walkergate station, where refurbishment and the installation of a
new lift will hugely improve access, to celebrate with engineers as our investment in Metro since
2010 passed the £150 million mark.

Another important milestone was the publication of the Metro Strategy 2030, which sets out the
future for the light rail system as the current modernisation programme ends in 2021. This
important document makes clear that investment in a new train fleet is essential, while there may
also be potential for new extensions to the network. It will be for the Combined Authority to build
on the ITA’s successful record of investment and make sure Metro continues to thrive in the
decades ahead.

Important though the Metro is, it is only one part of our public transport network and we have
always emphasised the integrated nature of our system and the need for convenient interchange
between different modes of transport. During the lifespan of the Authority, there has been major
investment in the Shields ferry and in enhancing our important transport interchanges, whilst we
have used Better Bus Improvement funding to improve the reliability and efficiency of our bus
network by introducing new traffic management systems on key routes - benefiting 35 million bus
journeys a year and reducing carbon emissions by 46,360 tonnes per year. To underpin our
transport network, good co-ordination and information are essential and ITA members have been
impressed to visit the Tyne and Wear Urban Traffic Management Control Centre, based at the
University of Newcastle, which amalgamates traffic management operations for the five Tyne and
Wear districts in order to co-ordinate traffic flows, reduce congestion and provide accurate real-
time information for road users when delays occur.
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Transport links do not respect county boundaries and many journeys by public or private transport
start or finish outside Tyne and Wear, in Northumberland or Durham. The creation of the North
East Combined Authority offers the opportunity to build on our previous achievements and co-
ordinate services across a wider area, providing a regional transport network that supports the
economy, promotes health and wellbeing and is sustainable and inclusive.

In this foreword, it has only been possible to list a few of the achievements of the ITA and its
predecessor the Passenger Transport Authority. | would like to take this opportunity to thank
everyone who has played a part in those achievements. The vision and hard work of all these
individuals has enabled millions of people to travel around the region rapidly, safely and reliably
during the last 44 years. | hope you continue to enjoy many further happy and rewarding journeys
over the years ahead.

Councillor David Wood
Chair of Tyne & Wear Integrated Transport Authority
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Explanatory

Foreword by the
Chief Finance Officer

S

This is the final set of accounts for the Tyne and Wear Integrated Transport Authority (ITA). On 15
April 2014, the ITA was dissolved and its functions taken over by the newly-established North East
Combined Authority. These accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis, which is
appropriate since the rights, assets and liabilities of the ITA have been taken over by the new body,
which was established by The Durham, Gateshead, Newcastle Upon Tyne, North Tyneside,
Northumberland, South Tyneside and Sunderland Combined Authority Order 2014.

This statement of accounts has been prepared in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting in Great Britain which requires that the accounts present a true and fair
view of the position of the Authority. Suitable accounting policies have been employed and where
necessary prudent judgements and estimates were made which complied with the Code.

The purpose of this foreword is to provide the reader with:

. An understanding of the accounting statements;
o A review of the Authority’s financial results in 2013/14 and its financial position; and
o An overview of activities and significant matters which occurred during the year.

Background to the Tyne and Wear Integrated Transport Authority’s Finances

The Authority’s main source of income is the levy applied to the five constituent local authorities
of the ITA based upon population. The other major source of income is tolls paid by users of the
Tyne Tunnels, which are used to fund the operation of the Tunnels and the financing of the New
Tyne Crossing project. The levy for 2013/14 amounted to £70.207m, distributed between the
Districts as set out in the chart and table below:

ITA Levy 2013/14 Distribution between Tyne & Wear Authorities

District Levy 2013/14
Gateshead £12.737m
Newcastle £17.747m
North Tyneside £12.794m
South Tyneside £9.424m
Sunderland £17.505m
Total £70.207m
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The major item of ITA expenditure is a revenue grant paid to Nexus, the Passenger Transport
Executive. This supports concessionary travel, the Metro, other bus and rail services, bus
infrastructure and the Tyne Ferry. Expenditure for the year on the ITA’s retained element of the
levy was £3.293m against a budget of £3.378m. Expenditure on officer support arrangements and
administration and governance of the ITA represents less than 1% of the total levy, as shown in the
chart below which reflects the 2013/14 outturn position (with further detail shown in the table
overleaf).

Pensions
0.68%

Administration
E Governance
0.21%

The lead authority for the ITA is Newcastle City Council. It provides administrative, engineering,
financial, legal and other advisory services directly to the Authority under a Service Level
Agreement. Further expenditure is incurred by the ITA on costs relating to governance and
administration, financing charges relating to principal and interest payments on inherited debts
and capital grant to Nexus and the Tyne and Wear Districts, and superannuation contributions in
respect of the ITA’s obligations for the pensions of former employees.

The ITA owns the Tyne Tunnels which link the A19 under the River Tyne between Howdon and
Jarrow. There are two tolled vehicle tunnels, and tunnels for both pedestrians and cyclists. The
Tunnels are entirely self-financing from the tolls, i.e. there is no call on the levy to support them.
The Tunnels are operated under a contract to a concessionaire company TT2 Ltd and appear within
the accounts as a trading function. Tolls on vehicles are also used to fund the works required for
the New Tyne Crossing. The New Tyne Crossing is a major construction project that began in 2008,
to provide a new tunnel alongside the existing one. The new tunnel was completed and opened in
February 2011, and the old tunnel was closed for refurbishment. The newly refurbished tunnel
opened ahead of schedule in November 2011, to carry two lanes of northbound traffic while the
new tunnel carries two lanes of southbound traffic. The Pedestrian and Cycle tunnels are free to
users and funded from toll income from the vehicle tunnels. They are currently undergoing major
refurbishment works which are due to be completed in Summer 2015.
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Analysis of Revenue Expenditure Against Budget - ITA

The table below compares actual spend against the revised budget for 2013/14 agreed in January
2014, and shows actual figures for 2012/13 to provide comparison across years.

Budget Heading 2012/13 2013/14 2013/14 Variance

Actual Budget Actual £000

£000 £000 £000

Service Level Agreement and staffing charges 281 292 285 (7)
Audit Fees 18 20 17 (3)
Members Allowances and Expenses 82 84 80 (4)
Local Government Association Subscription 30 29 29 -
Conferences and Travel Expenses 3 4 4 -
Website Costs 12 20 12 (8)
Supplies and Services 8 17 8 (9)
Payments to Pension Fund 455 479 479 -
Financing Charges 2,568 2,448 2,399 (49)
Interest on investments and revenue balances (35) (25) (20) (5)
Total ITA Operating Expenses 3,422 3,378 3,293 (85)
One-off Lump Sum Payment to Pension Fund - 1,800 1,800 -
Grant to Nexus 66,922 64,922 64,922 -
Levy ‘rebate’ to Tyne & Wear Districts - 2,000 2,000 -
Total ITA Expenditure 70,344 72,100 72,015 (85)
Levy Income (70,207) (70,207) (70,207) -
Transfer from ITA General Fund Reserve 137 1,893 1,808 (85)

Overall spending for 2013/14 was within budget, with small variations on some individual budget
lines. Small savings were made on all controllable budgets, and there was a reduction in financing
charges as historic debts are reducing over time. The saving of £0.085m has reduced the planned
use of reserves.

The final position is a use of ITA General reserve of £1.808m, compared with the revised budget of
£1.893m. This includes £1.8m of ITA reserves used to make a lump-sum payment to the Tyne and
Wear Pension Fund to reduce the pension deficit. A total of £4.41m of the Pension Deficit as
estimated by the Fund was attributable to the ITA, and the balance of £2.61m has been
temporarily borrowed from the Tyne Tunnels reserves, to be repaid over 14 years (equal to the
deficit recovery period set by the Tyne and Wear pension fund). This strategy has allowed for an
annual saving in excess of £0.2m per annum on the levy funded budget, after allowing for the
repayment to the Tunnels and loss of income on the reserves.
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Analysis of Revenue Expenditure against Budget - Tyne Tunnels

In 2013/14 the traffic level was 15.424m vehicles, corresponding to a total toll income of
£23.744m after adjusting for prepayments (compared with £19.869m in 2012/13). In line with the
financing strategy for the New Tyne Crossing, tolls were maintained on 1 January 2014 at £1.60 for
cars and small vans but increased to £3.20 for lorries and large vans (with a ten percent discount
for permit holders). The toll increase did not have an adverse effect on traffic levels which showed
a 7.1% increase compared to 2012/13.

The table below details expenditure within the ringfenced Tyne Tunnels trading account:

2012/13 2013/14 2013/14 Variance
Actual Budget Actual

£000 £000 £000 £000

Employees 31 35 34 (1)
Pensions 526 553 552 (1)
Supplies and Services and Other Expenses 34 50 28 (22)
Support Services 108 130 116 (24)
Cost of Official Opening Ceremony 49 - - -
Community Fund 8 10 14 4
Financing Charges 6,622 6,723 6,666 (57)
Toll Income (19,869) (23,200) (23,744) (544)
Usage Payments 13,986 16,900 16,929 29
Other Income (110) - (132) (132)
Interest on Investments and Tunnel Balances (517) (275) (236) 39
Total Tunnels Operating Costs 868 926 227 (699)
One-off Payment to Tyne & Wear Pension Fund - 7,200 7,200 -
NESTI Expenditure financed from Tunnel Reserves 413 1,935 658 (1,277)
(Surplus) / Deficit transferred to Tyne Tunnels General 1,281 10,061 8,085 (1,976)

Fund Reserve

The outturn on the Tyne Tunnels operational budget was a deficit of £0.227m against a budgeted
£0.926m deficit. The main reasons for this were improved traffic figures leading to higher toll
income, some additional one-off income relating to savings made on insurance contracts and
lower financing costs than budgeted. £7.2m of Tunnels reserves were used to make a payment to
the Tyne and Wear Pension fund to reduce the pension deficit to a small balance. Of this total,
£4.59m relates to liabilities which are charged to the Tunnels, and the remaining £2.61m has been
used to temporarily fund the ITA’s share of this deficit, with the funds to be repaid to the Tunnels
reserves with interest over the next 14 years.

£0.658m of expenditure on the North East Smart Ticketing Initiative (NESTI) has been financed in
year from Tunnel Reserves. This reflects the fact that in 2009/10, grant was received by the twelve
North East Local Authorities, Nexus and the ITA and this grant was applied to finance capital
expenditure on the New Tyne Crossing in that year. An equivalent total amount (£7.178m in total)
of capital and revenue expenditure was therefore to be funded from Tunnel Reserves.
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Reserves

2012/13 2013/14 Movement

£000 £000 £000

General Fund
ITA (2,382) (574) 1,808
Tyne Tunnels (40,477) (32,392) 8,085
Earmarked Reserves
Metro Reinvigoration (12,325) (11,425) 900
Total (55,184) (44,391) 10,793

In 2013/14, £10.79m of reserves has been used, with £9m used to reduce the deficit in the Pension
Fund, £0.235m used to fund ITA and Tyne Tunnels expenditure, £0.658m used to fund NESTI
expenditure and £0.900m to fund capital expenditure on Metro.

The chart below shows the level of ITA and Tyne Tunnels reserves from 2009/10 to 2013/14. A
strategy has been implemented since 2011/12 to reduce the level of reserves held as risks are
managed and to protect services while longer-term savings proposals are established.

B0

¥ Metro Reinvigoration Reserve
B Tyne Tunnels Reserve

B TA Unearmarked Reserve
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The unearmarked general reserve of the ITA has been reduced to a minimum by the end of
2013/14, taking into account the fact that earmarked reserves are held by both the ITA and Nexus
to mitigate against specific risks, and the level of corporate risk to the authority had reduced
through the reduction in the pension deficit. On the dissolution of the ITA and the establishment
of the combined authority in April 2014, the majority of this unearmarked reserve was refunded to
the Tyne and Wear Districts, and a new unearmarked reserve established for the new Combined
Authority.
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Capital Expenditure

Capital Expenditure of £3.1m has been incurred in 2013/14 in relation to the New Tyne Crossing
Project and the refurbishment of the Tyne Pedestrian and Cycle Tunnel. There has been further
capital expenditure on payment of capital grants to the Tyne and Wear Districts and Nexus.

In addition to the £17.9m capital expenditure shown within the ITA’s own accounts, Nexus have
also invested £37.9m in the Metro Asset Renewal Plan (ARP) and Metro Ticketing and Gating
programmes, resulting in total transport capital investment of £55.8m. A summary of expenditure
against the ITA’s (non-Nexus) capital programme is set out in the table below:

2012/13 2013/14 2013/14 2013/14
Actual Budget Actual Variance
£000 £000 £000 £000
New Tyne Crossing 682 585 1,076 491
Tyne Pedestrian and Cycle Tunnel 402 4,000 2,065 (1,935)
Refurbishment
Total Tunnels Capital Programme 1,084 4,585 3,141 (1,444)
Local Transport Plan
Integrated Transport Block Grant to Districts 8,509 8,509 8,509 -
ARP/Public Transport Schemes Allocation 6,292 4,184 3,800 (384)
Total LTP 14,081 12,693 12,309 (384)
Other Capital Grants
Local Sustainable Transport Fund 302 858 683 (175)
Better Bus Area Fund 2,262 1,627 1,627 -
North East Smart Ticketing Initiative
Capital Payments to Nexus 3,235 975 177 (798)

Tunnels Capital Programme

Following the completion of the construction works on the New Tyne Crossing, the Tunnels capital
programme is significantly lower than in recent years. During 2013/14 the final capital payments
were released to the concessionaire on completion of the water ingress monitoring, totalling
£0.650m. Other expenditure related to professional fees, remaining environmental works and
environmental monitoring and costs associated with land transfer work.

In addition, £2.1m expenditure was incurred on Tyne Pedestrian and Cycle Tunnels refurbishment
project. The Tunnels are currently temporarily closed to the public to allow for the removal of two
escalators, installation of two inclined lifts and the complete replacement of all Mechanical and
Electrical systems. There has been some slippage against the original programme which has led to
lower than anticipated expenditure in year. The remaining capital budget has been added to the
2014/15 programme.
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Local Transport Plan (LTP) Integrated Transport Block

LTP Integrated Transport Block funding is capital grant awarded to the ITA by DfT. The ITA
allocates this funding between the five Tyne and Wear Districts and Nexus, with a proportion being
ringfenced to provide support to the Metro Asset Renewal Programme (ARP) and other public
transport related schemes. Some grant has been carried forward at the year end where Districts’
schemes were not yet complete, and will be used in 2014/15.

Local Sustainable Transport Fund

2013/14 was the second full year of the Schools Go Smarter programme, which commenced in
autumn 2011. 2013/14 capital expenditure related primarily to the purchase of vehicles for parking
enforcement, and the school links and school grants workstreams. School grants provides funding
for bike sheds, to provide safe places for pupils to store their bicycles, and other works including
new paths, pool bikes and tools. School links funds infrastructure work in the Districts making it
easier to cycle or walk to school, such as upgrading cycle paths or installing new pedestrian
crossings.

The ‘Go Smarter to Work’ programme began in December 2012, making 2013/14 the first full year
of the scheme. Capital works are focused around infrastructure investments, implementing the
physical infrastructure work necessary to make cycle, walking and public transport trips a more
attractive alternative to car use; and improved information including use of open data sources and
Real Time Passenger Information (RTPI) to enable the transport user to access more reliable and
up-to-date details of transport services.

Where schemes were not fully signed off at the year end the grant has been carried forward to
2014/15 which is permitted under the grant conditions.

Better Bus Area Fund

In April 2012, the ITA received notice that it had been successful in its application for DfT Better
Bus Area funding, including £3.889m capital grant. The project is aimed at improving journey
times on key bus routes, to improve the attractiveness of buses to the travelling public. The capital
grant was used primarily for the procurement and installation of equipment including CCTV,
Automatic Number Plate Recognition and co-ordination of traffic signal installations. In addition,
infrastructure works have taken place on a number of key bus routes to aid journey time reliability.
All capital works were completed by 31 March 2014 and capital grant fully used.

North East Smart Ticketing Initiative (NESTI)

The ITA acts as accountable body for NESTI which is a programme of investment in smart ticketing
infrastructure across the north east. The programme is governed via a collaboration agreement
which was entered into by all 12 local authorities in the region plus the ITA and Nexus. The ITA
holds the funding on behalf of the authorities, and the remaining budget of £4.221m is shown on
the ITA’s balance sheet as Grants Received in Advance (see Note 14 to the accounts, p. 40).

The outturn for 2013/14 was £0.658m, (£0.177m capital) with main highlights during the year
being implementation of the Retail Distribution Network project and Card Management System
integration and procurement and installation of bus stop validation equipment. There was some
slippage against the 2013/14 programme which accounts for the lower than budgeted claim, with
the funds carried forward to finance delivery of works in 2014/15.
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Financing of ITA Capital Expenditure 2013/14

The vast majority of the ITA’s Capital Programme is now funded by government grant awarded by
DfT. Expenditure on NESTI was funded through revenue contributions from Tyne Tunnels reserves
as described on p.10. Expenditure on the Tunnels capital programme is presented as funded by
Borrowing, although no additional external borrowing has been undertaken in 2013/14 and the
expenditure was met in year through internal cash balances. The funding of Tunnels capital works
will be reviewed during 2014 once there is a clearer picture of potential availability of capital grant
and levels of reserves. The table below shows the sources of funding used for the financing of the
ITA’s capital programme in 2013/14.

Funding 2013/14 (£000) 2013/14 (%)
Prudential Borrowing 3,141 17.5%
Central Government Grants 14,619 81.5%
Capital Expenditure Funded from Revenue 177 1.0%
Total 17,937

Pension Liabilities

The ITA is a member of the Tyne and Wear Pension Fund, which is part of the Local Government
Pension Scheme. This is a scheme which provides defined benefits based on members’ final
pensionable salary. In the ITA’s accounts, a liability for future pension costs is recognised on the
Balance Sheet, and pension contributions are charged against the General Fund (i.e. funded from
the levy and tolls).

The figure presented in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is different to the
actual contributions charged against the General Fund. This is because it is prepared on an
International Accounting Standard 19 (IAS 19) basis. Under IAS 19, the ITA is required to disclose
the total value of all pension payments that have accumulated (including deferred pensions) at 31
March each year. This value is made up of:

o The total cost of pensions that are being paid out to former employees who have retired

o The total sum of the pension entitlements earned to date for current employees

The standard also requires all investments (assets) of the Pension Fund to be shown at their
market value at 31 March each year. In reality, the value of such investments fluctuates on a day-
to-day basis, but this is ignored for the purpose of the accounting standard. Comparing the value
of all future pension payments and the value of investments at 31 March results in an overall
surplus or deficit for the Pension Fund. This is called the IAS 19 surplus or deficit.

During 2013/14, the ITA made a payment of £9m to the Tyne and Wear Pension Fund to clear the
vast majority of the deficit in its scheme. The purpose of this strategy was to reduce the historic
deficit before the pension liabilities were transferred to the North East Combined Authority, and
also to give a saving on the regular deficit contribution payments which is far in excess of the lost
potential investment income that would have been achieved by holding the cash in reserves.
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Looking ahead to 2014/15 and beyond

This is the last set of accounts which will be produced by the Tyne and Wear Integrated Transport
Authority, which was dissolved on 15 April 2014 and its functions, rights, assets and liabilities taken
over by the North East Combined Authority. The period from 1 April 2014 to 15 April 2014 will be
presented within the first set of North East Combined Authority Accounts at the end of the
2014/15 year. Separate spending figures will continue to be shown at a Tyne and Wear level to
enable the calculation of the Tyne and Wear element of the transport levy.

The establishment of the North East Combined Authority allows governance and decision making
on regional transport issues to be taken across a broader geographic footprint (including Durham
and Northumberland as well as the Tyne and Wear Districts) and also alongside other policy areas
including economic development, inward investment and skills. The new arrangements will build
on the work of the Tyne and Wear ITA in recent years in playing a leading role in the provision of
quality public transport services in the region.
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ITA Accounts

The ITA Accounts for 2013/14 are set out in section 2. These consist of the following statements,
along with notes to each:

Movement in Reserves Statement

This statement shows the movement in year on the different reserves held by the Authority,
analysed into Usable Reserves (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce the
levy) and Unusable Reserves. The surplus or deficit on the provision of services line shows the true
economic cost in accounting terms of providing the ITA’s services, more details of which are shown
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutory
amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance for the purposes of setting the levy.
The net increase or decrease before transfers to earmarked reserves line shows the statutory
General Fund Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked reserves
undertaken by the Authority.

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

This statement shows the accounting cost in year of providing services in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from the levy.
Integrated Transport Authorities raise a levy to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations;
this may be different from the accounting cost. The levy position is shown in the Movement in
Reserves Statement.

Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities
recognised by the Authority. The net assets of the Authority (assets less liabilities) are matched by
the reserves held by the Authority. Reserves are reported in two categories: Usable Reserves (i.e.
those which the Authority may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent
level) and Unusable Reserves (i.e. those which the Authority is not able to use to provide services).
This category of reserves includes those that hold unrealised gains and losses (e.g. the Revaluation
Reserve) where amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are sold;
and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line
“adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulation”.

Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement shows the change in cash and cash equivalents of the Authority during
the reporting period. The statement shows how the Authority generates and uses cash and cash
equivalents by classifying cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities. The
amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which
cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Authority’s
future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims
on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Authority.

Group Accounts

The Group Accounts provide the same information as above, but incorporate the Nexus accounts
within the figures. Notes to the Group Accounts provide further detail to items which are
materially different in the Group Accounts to the single entity ITA accounts.
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ITA Audit Committee

~

Review of 2013/14

S

The role of the Committee can be summarised as follows:

° Provide independent assurance of the adequacy of the risk management framework and the
associated control environment;

° Provide independent scrutiny of the Authority’s financial and non-financial performance to
the extent that it affects the Authority’s exposure to risk and weakens the control
environment;

° Oversee the financial reporting process.

Detailed roles and responsibilities for the Committee are agreed annually by the ITA and can be
viewed on the ITA website at www.twita.gov.uk.

The Committee met three times during the year, in July and September 2013 and March 2014.

In 2013/14 the Audit Committee appointed two new Independent members, Mr Brian O’Doherty
and Mr Rex Winter, to replace Mr Anthony Atkinson and Ms Elizabeth Green who stepped down
from the Committee at the end of 2012/13.

During the year, the Committee monitored the work of Deloitte, the ITA’s external auditors. This
included reviewing their proposed audit plan, and the results of the annual audit of the accounts.
The results of the audit were very positive, with no material adjustments required to the draft
accounts and no recommendations for improvements made. Deloitte confirmed that in their view
the authority achieved a good standard of financial reporting. Audit Committee reviewed the ITA’s
Annual Report and Accounts in detail, and recommended it to the Authority for final sign off. The
Committee also considered the Annual Governance Statement and Local Code of Corporate
Governance, which did not identify any significant weaknesses or areas for improvement.

As in previous years, the Committee monitored the performance of the Internal Audit function
and, in particular, the outcome of individual audits as well as the annual report of the Head of

Audit and Strategic Risk.

Also this year, the Committee considered updates on the proposals for the establishment of the
Combined Authority which will take over the functions of the ITA early in 2014/15.
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Members of the Committee in 2013/14

Independent members

M. Scrimshaw (Chair)
G. Clark (Vice-Chair)
B. O’Doherty

R. Winter

ITA members

B. Curran (Sunderland)

S. Lambert (Newcastle)
P. Maughan (Gateshead)
F. Miller (Sunderland)

A. Smith (South Tyneside)
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~
Statement of

Responsibilities for the
Statement of Accounts

S

The Authority’s Responsibilities
The Authority is required:
o To make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to
secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those

affairs. In this Authority, that officer is the Chief Finance Officer.

o To manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources, and
to safeguard its assets.

o To approve the statement of accounts by 30 September 2014.

Simon Henig, Chair, North East Combined Authority

Date:
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The Chief Finance Officer’s Responsibilities

The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Authority’s Statement of
Accounts which, in terms of the CIPFA / LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
Great Britain (‘the Code’), is required to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the

Authority at the accounting date and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March
2014.

In preparing this statement of accounts, the Chief Finance Officer has:

o Selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently
o Made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent
o Complied with the Code

The Chief Finance Officer has also:

. Kept proper accounting records which were up to date
o Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities

Chief Finance Officer's Certificate

| hereby certify that the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2014, required by
the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 are set out in the following pages.

| further certify that the Statement of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the financial position

of the Authority at 31 March 2014 and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March
2014.

Paul Woods, Chief Finance Officer, North East Combined
Authority

Date:
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Movement in Reserves Statement
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This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Authority,
analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund ITA or Tyne Tunnels
expenditure or reduce the levy) and ‘unusable reserves’ which can not be used in this way. The
surplus or deficit on provision of services line shows the economic cost in accounting terms of
providing the ITA’s services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to
the General Fund Balance for the purposes of setting the levy. The net increase or decrease before
transfers to earmarked reserves line shows the statutory General Fund balance before any
discretionary transfers to or from earmarked reserves undertaken by the Authority.

Balance at 1 April 2013

Movement in Reserves During
2013/14

(Surplus) on Provision of Services

Other Comprehensive Income

and Expenditure
Total Comprehensive Income

and Expenditure
Adjustments between
Accounting Basis and Funding
Basis Under Regulations (Note
4)

Net (Increase) / Decrease
before transfers to Earmarked
Reserves

Transfers (to) / from Earmarked
Reserves (Note 5)

(Increase) / Decrease in
2013/14

Balance at 31 March 2014
carried forward

General Earmarked Total Unusable Total
Fund Reserves Usable Reserves Reserves
Reserves
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
(42,859) (12,325) (55,184) (62,266) (117,450)
(2,613) - (2,613) - (2,613)
- - - 2,500 2,500
(2,613) - (2,613) 2,500 (113)
13,406 - 13,406 (13,406) -
10,793 - 10,793 (10,906) (113)
(900) 900 - - -
9,893 900 10,793 (10,906) (113)
(32,966) (11,425) (44,391) (73,172)  (117,563)

Breakdown of Usable Reserves (See Note 15 for more detail)

31 March 2013
£000

General Fund Reserves
(2,382) - ITA General Fund
40,476) - Tyne Tunnels General Fund
42,858) Total General Fund Reserves

(
(
(12,325) Earmarked Metro Reinvigoration Reserve
(

55,183) Total Usable ReservesI:)age 67

31 March 2014

£000

(574
32,392

)
( )
(32,966)
(11,425)
(44,391)
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Restated Figures for 2012/13

Balance at 1 April 2012

Movement in Reserves During
2012/13

(Surplus) / Deficit on Provision of
Services

Other Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure

Total Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure

Adjustments between Accounting
Basis and Funding Basis Under
Regulations (Note 4)

Net (Increase) / Decrease before
transfers to Earmarked Reserves

Transfers (to) / from Earmarked
Reserves (Note 5)
(Increase) / Decrease in 2012/13

Balance at 31 March 2013
carried forward

General Earmarked Total Unusable Total
Fund Reserves Usable Reserves Reserves
Reserves
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
(44,277) (14,357) (58,634) (59,862) (118,496)
(1,154) - (1,154) - (1,154)
- - - 2,200 2,200
(1,154) - (1,154) 2,200 1,046
4,604 - 4,604 (4,604) -
3,450 - 3,450 (2,404) 1,046
(2,032) 2,032 - - -
1,418 2,032 3,450 (2,404) 1,046
(42,859) (12,325) (55,184) (62,266) (117,450)

Details of the prior year restatement are shown in Note 31.
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This statement shows the economic cost in year of providing services in accordance with generally
accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from the levy. Integrated
Transport Authorities raise a levy to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be
different from the accounting cost. The levy position is shown in the Movement in Reserves

Statement.

<“«+—— 2012/13 ——»
Restated

Gross Gross Net
Expenditure  Income Expenditure

£000 £000 £000
435 - 435 Corporate and Democratic
Highways and Transport
18,079 (25,088) (7,009) - Tyne Tunnels

91,209 (22,083) 69,126 - Other Highways and
Transport Services
10 - 10 Non-Distributed Costs
109,733 (47,171) 62,562 Cost of Services

9,391 (2,900) 6,491 Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure
(note 6)
- (70,207) (70,207) Taxation and Non-Specific
Grant Income (ITA Levy -
Note 7)

(1,154) (Surplus) / Deficit on
Provision of Services

2,200 Re-measurements of the
defined benefit liability
(Note 28)

2,200 Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure

1,046 Total Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure

Details of the prior year restatement are shown in Note 31.
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Gross
Expenditure

Gross

Net

Income Expenditure

£000 £000 £000
435 - 435
21,934  (29,405) (7,471)
85,646 (17,750) 67,896
10 - 10
108,024 (47,155) 60,870
9,087  (2,363) 6,724
- (70,207)  (70,207)
(2,613)

2,500

2,500

(113)



Balance Sheet
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The Balance Sheet shows the value at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities of the
Authority. The Net Assets (Assets less Liabilities) are matched by Reserves. Reserves are reported
in two categories: Usable (i.e. those the Authority may use to provide services subject to any
statutory limitations on their use) and Unusable (those the Authority may not use to provide
services). This category includes reserve that hold unrealised gains and losses (e.g. the Revaluation
Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are sold;
and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line
“adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulation”.

31 March
2013
£000

365,566 Property, Plant and Equipment
47,141 Long Term Debtors
412,707 Long Term Assets
18,000 Short Term Investments
16,858 Short Term Debtors
74,084 Cash and Cash Equivalents
108,942 Current Assets
(4,694) Short Term Borrowing
(44,684) Short Term Creditors
(5,501) New Tyne Crossing - Deferred Income

(10,125) Grants and Contributions Receipts in Advance

(65,004) Current Liabilities
(122,222) New Tyne Crossing - Deferred Income

(5,830) Grants and Contributions Receipts in Advance

(202,893) Long Term Borrowing

(8,250) Other Long Term Liabilities
(339,195) Long Term Liabilities
117,450 Net Assets

(55,184) Usable Reserves
(62,266) Unusable Reserves
(117,450)

Chief Finance Officer’s Certificate

Notes

9,10

9,11
12

9,13
27
14

27
14

9, 28

15
16

(8,404

31 March
2014
£000

363,916

45,236

409,152
20,500
14,475

52,004

86,979
(7,941)
(38,735)
(5,092)
)
(60,172)
(117,122)
(3,347)
(196,967)
(960)

(318,396)
117,563

(44,391)
(73,172)

(117,563)

| certify that the accounts set out on pages 23 to 81 present a true and fair view of the financial

position of the Tyne and Wear Integrated Transport Authority as at 31 March 2014.

Signed

Paul Woods
Chief Finance Officer, North East Combined Authority
Date:
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Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Authority during
the reporting period. The statement shows how the Authority generates and uses cash and cash
equivalents by classifying cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities. The amount
of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the
operations of the Authority are funded by way of levy and grant income or from the recipients of
services provided to the Authority. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows
have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Authority’s future service
delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash
flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Authority.

2012/13 Notes 2013/14
Restated
£000 £000
(1,154) Net surplus on the provision of services (2,613)
(2,764) Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the 18 14,308
provision of services for non cash movements
20,671 Adjustments for items included in the net 18 15,277

surplus or deficit on the provision of services
that are investing and financing activities

16,753 Net cash flows from Operating Activities 26,972

(27,082) Investing activities 19 (7,572)

2,699 Financing activities 20 2,680

(7,630) Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 22,080

(66,454) Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of (74,084)
the reporting period

(74,084) Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 12 (52,004)

reporting period

Details of the prior year restatement are shown in Note 31.
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Notes to the Accounts

Note 1: Accounting Standards Issued but Not Yet Adopted

Impact of the adoption of new accounting standards on the 2013/14 financial statements

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014/15 (the Code) has
introduced changes in accounting policy in relation to the following International Financial
Reporting Standard (IFRS) statements:

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements (as amended in 2011)

IAS 28 investments in Associates & Joint Ventures (as amended in 2011)

The standards outlined above deal with the consolidation of financial statements and the
publication of group accounts. The amendments to the accounting policies have been reviewed
and it has been concluded that the changes do not impact on the requirement for the ITA to
produce group accounts.

The group accounts consolidating the financial statements of Nexus (the Passenger Transport
Executive) can be found on pages 85 to 106 of this document. The revised Code will be used as the
basis for consideration of whether consolidation of any additional entities may be required for the
first accounts of the North East Combined Authority which will be produced for the financial year
2014/15.

Note 2: Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

In applying the accounting policies set out in these accounts, the Authority has had to make
certain judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future
events. The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are:

Service Concession Arrangements

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice requires arrangements where private sector
contractors provide a service for a period using a dedicated asset to be assessed under an
application of the principles within IFRIC 12. There are two criteria used to determine whether
arrangements fall under the scope of IFRIC 12:

. The public sector entity controls or regulates the services that the operator must provide
with the infrastructure, to whom it must provide them, and at what price
. The public sector entity controls, through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise,

any significant residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the service arrangement.

For arrangements falling under the scope of IFRIC 12, the public sector entity will recognise the
cost of the Property, Plant and Equipment underlying the service concession as a tangible fixed
asset. The New Tyne Crossing concession has been judged to meet both of the IFRIC 12 criteria
and, accordingly, the cost of the new Tunnel and refurbishment of the existing Tunnel are
recorded within its Property, Plant and Equipment.
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Note 3: Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the
Authority about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into
account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because
balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from the
assumptions and estimates. The items in the Authority’s Balance Sheet at 31 March 2014 for which
there is a risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:

Item Uncertainty Effect if Actual Results Differ From Assumptions
Pensions |Estimation of the net liability to pay|The effects on the pension liability for funded
Liability |pensions depends on a number of [LGPS benefits of changes in individual

complex judgements relating to the
discount rate used, the rate at
which salaries are projected to
increase, changes in retirement
ages, mortality rates and expected
returns on pension fund assets. A
firm of consulting actuaries s
engaged to provide the Authority
with expert advice about the
assumptions to be applied.

assumptions can be measured. For instance, a
0.1% increase in the discount rate assumptions
would result in a decrease in the gross pension
liability of £0.46m.

Further sensitivity analysis in relation to the assumptions used in the calculation of the pension
liability is included in Note 28 (p. 62).
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Note 4: Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and
expenditure recognised by the Authority in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice
to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Authority to

meet future capital and revenue expenditure.

2013/14

Usable Reserves

General Movement
Fund in Unusable
Balance Reserves
£000 £000
Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment Account:
Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement:
Charges for depreciation and impairment of non current assets (4,792) 4,792
Write down of New Tyne Crossing deferred income balance 5,509 (5,509)
Capital grants and contributions applied 15,277 (15,277)
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (14,618) 14,618
Insertion of items not debited or credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement:
Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment 2,168 (2,168)
Adjustments involving the Financial Instruments Adjustment
Account:
Amount by which finance costs charged to the Comprehensive Income 72 (72)
and Expenditure Statement are different from finance costs chargeable
in the year in accordance with statutory requirements
Adjustments involving the Pensions Reserve:
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to (240) 240
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (see Note 28)
Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners 10,030 (10,030)
payable in the year
Total Adjustments 13,406 (13,406)
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Note 4 (Continued)

2012/13 (Restated)

Usable Reserves

General Movement
Fund in Unusable
Balance Reserves
£000 £000
Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment Account:
Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement:
Charges for depreciation and impairment of non current assets (3,862) 3,862
Write down of New Tyne Crossing deferred income balance 5,109 (5,109)
Capital grants and contributions applied - -
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (20,258) 20,258
Insertion of items not debited or credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement:
Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment 2,192 (2,192)
Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund - -
Adjustments involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Account:
Application of grants to capital financing transferred to the Capital 20,671 (20,671)
Adjustment Account
Adjustments involving the Financial Instruments Adjustment
Account:
Amount by which finance costs charged to the Comprehensive Income 72 (72)
and Expenditure Statement are different from finance costs chargeable
in the year in accordance with statutory requirements
Adjustments involving the Pensions Reserve:
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to (300) 300
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (see Note 28)
Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners 980 (980)
payable in the year
Total Adjustments 4,604 (4,604)

Details of the prior year restatement are shown in Note 31.
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Note 5: Transfers to / from Earmarked Reserves

This note sets out the balances in earmarked reserves set aside to provide financing for future
expenditure plans and the amounts posted back from earmarked reserves to meet General Fund
expenditure in 2013/14, with comparative figures for 2012/13.

Balance Transfers Transfers Balance Transfers Transfers Balance
at Out In at Out In at
01/04/12 2012/13 2012/13 31/03/1 2013/14 2013/14 31/03/14
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Metro Reinvigoration (14,357) 2,204 (172) (12,325) 974 (74) (11,425)
Reserve
Total (14,357) 2,204 (172) (12,325) 974 (74) (11,425)

Note 6: Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

2012/13 2013-14
Restated
£000 £000
9,101 Interest payable and similar charges 8,857
290 Interest on net defined benefit liability 230
(2,900) Interest receivable and similar income (2,363)
6,491 6,724

Details of the prior year restatement are shown in Note 31.
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Note 7: Taxation and non-specific Grant Income

2012/13 2013/14
£000 £000
(70,207) Levy on Tyne and Wear Authorities (70,207)
!70,207! !70,207!
Note 8: Property, Plant and Equipment
Land Vehicles, Infrastructure Assets Under Total
Plant, Assets Construction Property,
Furniture Plant and
& Equipment
Equipment
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost or Valuation
At 1 April 2013 12,135 3,205 373,450 824 389,614
Additions - - 1,085 2,056 3,141
At 31 March 2014 12,135 3,205 374,535 2,880 392,755
Accumulated Depreciation and
Impairment
At 1 April 2013 - (634) (23,414) - (24,048)
Depreciation charge - (92) (3,763) - (3,855)
Impairment losses recognised in - - (936) (936)
the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision
of Services
At 31 March 2014 - (726) (28,113) - (28,839)
Net Book Value
At 31 March 2014 12,135 2,479 346,421 2,880 363,916
At 31 March 2013 12,135 2,571 350,035 824 365,566
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Note 8 (Continued)

Comparative Figures for 2012/13

Cost or Valuation
At 1 April 2012
Additions

At 31 March 2013

Accumulated Depreciation and
Impairment

At 1 April 2012
Depreciation charge
At 31 March 2013

Net Book Value
At 31 March 2013
At 31 March 2012

Depreciation

Land Vehicles, Infrastructure Assets Under Total
Plant, Assets Construction Property,
Furniture Plant and
& Equipment

Equipment
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
12,135 3,205 372,767 423 388,530
- - 683 401 1,084
12,135 3,205 373,450 824 389,614
- (542) (19,644) - (20,186)
- (92) (3,770) - (3,862)
- (634) (23,414) - (24,048)
12,135 2,571 350,036 824 365,566
12,135 2,663 353,123 423 368,344

The following useful lives and depreciation rates have been used in the calculation of depreciation:
o Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment - 30 years. This class of assets relates to plant,
machinery and other equipment and fittings that were transferred to TT2 Ltd at the
commencement of the 30 year contract for the operation of the Tyne Tunnels. These assets
are defined as “handback assets” in the Project Agreement, as they (or their equivalent

replacements) must be returned to the ITA at the end of the contract

. Vehicle Tunnels (Infrastructure) - 120 years
o Pedestrian and Cycle Tunnels (Infrastructure) - 40-120 years
. Land - This category is not depreciated as it has no finite useful life
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Note 8 (Continued)

Revaluations

The Authority carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all Property, Plant and Equipment
assets required to be measured at fair value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that their
carrying amount is not materially different from their fair value at the year-end, and as a minimum
every five years. All valuations were carried out by surveyors from the Lead Authority, Newcastle
City Council. Valuations of land and buildings and Infrastructure were carried out in accordance
with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Valuations of Vehicles, Plant and Equipment relate to assets
transferred to the use of TT2 Ltd as described above. The valuations are based on records held by
TT2 Ltd.

The significant assumptions applied in estimating the fair values are:

That no high alumina cement, concrete or calcium chloride additive or other potentially
deleterious material was used in the construction of the property and that none has been
subsequently incorporated

The property is not subject to any unusual or especially onerous restrictions, encumberances
or outgoings and that good title can be shown

The property and its value are unaffected by any matters which would be revealed by a local
search or inspection of any register and the use and occupation are both lawful

Inspection of those parts which have not been inspected would not cause the Appointed
Valuer to alter the opinion of value

The land and properties are not contaminated

The land and buildings are fully equipped with fixed plant and equipment

The Tyne and Wear Integrated Transport Authority continues to maintain and repair all
buildings and structures in a proper manner
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Note 9: Financial Instruments

The following categories of financial instrument are carried on the Balance Sheet:

31 March 2013 31 March 2014
£000 £000
Short Term Investments:

18,000 Bank deposits 20,500

Long Term Debtors:
47,141 Loans to Nexus 45,236

Short Term Debtors:
16,858 Short term debtors: 14,475
31 March 2013 31 March 2014
£000 Borrowings: £000
(4,694) Short term borrowing (7,941)
(202,893) Financial liabilities at amortised cost - long term borrowing (196,967)
(207,587) (204,908)

Other Long Term Liabilities:
(8,250) Pensions Liability (960)

Short Term Creditors:
(44,684) Short Term Creditors (38,735)

The short-term investment shown relates to investments placed on behalf of Nexus by the ITA. A
corresponding creditor is shown under short-term creditors to recognise the fact that the total
investment must be repaid to Nexus on their request.

Income, Expense, Gains and Losses

Financial liabilities, financial assets represented by loans and receivables and long-term debtors
and creditors are carried on the Balance Sheet at amortised cost. Their fair value can be assessed
by calculating the present value of the cash flows that will take place over the remaining term of
the instrument, using the following assumptions:

. Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) interest rates for new fixed borrowing in the appropriate
maturity bands as at 31 March 2014

o No early repayment or impairment is recognised

o Where an instrument will mature in the next 12 months, carrying amount is assumed to
approximate to fair value

. The fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed amount.

. Estimated ranges of interest rates at 31 March 2014 of 2% to 10.3% for loans from the PWLB
and 4.1% to 4.9% for other loans receivable and payable, based on new lending rates for
equivalent loans at that date
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Note 9 (Continued)

The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in
relation to financial instruments are made up as follows:

2012/13 2013/14
Financial  Financial Total Financial  Financial Total
Liabilities Assets: Liabilities Assets:
(amortised Loans and (amortised Loans and
cost) Receivables cost) Receivables
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
9,101 9,101 Interest expense 8,857 8,857

Total expense in
Surplus/Deficit on
9,101 - 9,101 Provision of Services 8,857 - 8,857

- (2,900)  (2,900) Interest income - (2,363) (2,363)

Total income in
Surplus/Deficit on

- (2,900) (2,900) Provision of Services - (2,363) (2,363)
Net (gain)/loss for the
9,101 (2,900) 6,201 year 8,857 (2,363) 6,494

Borrowings and investments disclosed in the Balance Sheet are shown at amortised cost. For most
of the Authority’s borrowings, this means that the amount presented is the outstanding principal
repayable plus accrued interest.

The fair value of borrowings and investments disclosed below is assessed by calculating the net
present value of the cash flows that take place over the remaining life of the instruments. The fair
value is higher than the carrying amount because the Authority’s portfolio of loans includes a
number of fixed rate loans where the interest rate payable is higher than the rates applicable to
similar loans in the market at the Balance Sheet date. This commitment to pay interest above
current market rate increases the amount that the Authority would have to pay (in terms of
premiums etc.) if the lender requested or agreed to early repayment of the loans.

For financial instruments with a maturity of twelve months or less the fair value is taken to be the
invoiced or billed amount.

For the long term debtor with Nexus, the fair value has been determined to be equal to the
carrying value.
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Note 9 (Continued)

Financial Liabilities
31 March 2013

31 March 2014

Carrying Fair
amount value
£000 £000
Short Term Borrowing
(3,677) (3,677) Public Works Loan Board
(1,017) (1,017) Market Loans
(4,694) (4,694)
Long Term Borrowing
(113,893) (142,041) Public Works Loan Board
(89,000) (133,343) Market Loans
(202,893) (275,384)
(207,587) (280,078) Total Borrowing

Financial Assets

31 March 2013

Carrying Fair
amount value
£000 £000
47,141 47,141 Long-term debtors
47,141 47,141 Total

Carrying Fair
amount value
£000 £000
(6,924) (7,088)
(1,017) (1,017)
(7,941) (8,105)
(107,967) (130,074)
(89,000) (116,342)
(196,967) (246,416)
(204,908) (254,521)
31 March 2014
Carrying Fair
amount value
£000 £000
45,236 45,236
45,236 45,236

The fair value differs from the carrying value as fair value is assessed according to market rates
relating to the outstanding life of the loan. Carrying amount relates to the actual interest rate
applicable to the loan outstanding. The fair value differences for financial instrument relates to the
fact that the Authority has loans at fixed rates that results in it paying a higher interest charge than

if it had taken out variable rate loans.

Note 10: Long Term Debtors

The long term debtor represents loans to Nexus made in previous years, to finance capital
expenditure on works relating to Metro operations, special needs transport and bus stations.

31 March 2013
£000
47,141 Loans to Nexus

47,141 Closing Balance 31 March
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Note 11: Short Term Debtors

31 March 2013
£000
907 Central Government Bodies
10,056 Other Local Authorities
5,895 Other entities and individuals

31 March 2014
£000

1,310

7,556

5,609

16,858 Total

14,475

Within 'Other entities and individuals', £5,798k relates to Nexus at 31/03/13 and £5,512k relates to

Nexus at 31/03/14.

Note 12: Cash and Cash Equivalents

31 March 2013
£000
74,084 Bank current accounts

31 March 2014
£000
52,004

74,084 Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

52,004

ITA cash was held at the year end in the Newcastle City Council District Account.

Note 13: Short Term Creditors

31 March 2013
£000
(1,963) Other local authorities
(42,721) Other bodies

31 March 2014
£000

(1,384)
(37,351)

(44,684) Total

(38,735)

'Other bodies' can be broken down as follows:

(39,257) Nexus
(2,517) TT2 Ltd

(705) Prepaid Tunnels Permits
(5) Accrued payments to pension fund
(237) Other entities and individuals

(42,721)

The significant level of short term creditors due to Nexus reflects the fact that the ITA is holding
investments on its behalf. The creditor is shown to recognise that the total value of these

investments must be repaid to Nexus on their request.
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Note 14: Grants and Contributions Received in Advance

2012/13 2013/14
£000 £000
(4,879) NESTI Contributions from Local Authorities (4,221)
(3,331) Local Sustainable Transport Fund - Schools Go Smarter (2,577)
(4,888) Local Sustainable Transport Fund - Go Smarter to Work (4,076)
(2,554) Better Bus Area Fund (491)
(303) Local Transport Plan (386)
(15,955) Balance at 31 March (11,751)
(10,125) Shown as Short-Term Liability on Balance Sheet (8,404)
(5,830) Shown as Long-Term Liability on Balance Sheet (3,347)
(15,955) (11,751)

Grants and Contributions Received in Advance have been split between long term and short term
liabilities based on the budget for 2014/15, showing when they are expected to be released to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Note 15: Usable Reserves

Summary

31 March 2013 31 March 2014
£000 £000

General Fund Reserves
(2,382) -ITA General Fund (574)
(40,476) - Tyne Tunnels General Fund (32,392)
(42,858) Total General Fund Reserves (32,966)
(12,325) Earmarked Metro Reinvigoration Reserve (11,425)
(55,183) Total Usable Reserves (44,391)

ITA General Fund

This represents the unearmarked, usable balances held by the ITA which can be used to support
ITA expenditure or allow for a reduction in the levy on Tyne and Wear authorities.

2012/13 2013/14
£000 £000
(2,519) Balance at 1 April (2,382)
137 Drawn down to support expenditure in year 1,808
(2,382) Balance at 31 March (574)
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Note 15 (Continued)

Tyne Tunnels General Fund

This reserve represents the balances of the ringfenced Tyne Tunnels trading account. It is shown
separately from the ITA General Fund as it is used to support Tyne Tunnels activity only, and is
separate from levy-funded activities undertaken by the ITA.

2012/13 2013/14
£000 £000
(41,757) Balance at 1 April (40,476)
868 (Surplus)/Deficit on Tyne Tunnels trading account 226

- Other expenditure funded by Tyne Tunnels reserves 7,200

413 NESTI expenditure funded by Tyne Tunnels reserves 658
(40,476) Balance at 31 March (32,392)

Earmarked Metro Reinvigoration Reserve
This is an earmarked reserve which holds amounts ringfenced for expenditure on Metro
Reinvigoration

2012/13 2013/14
£000 £000
(14,357) Balance at 1 April (12,325)
(172) Interest on reserve (74)
2,204 Draw down to support expenditure in year 974
(12,325) Balance at 31 March (11,425)

Note 16: Unusable Reserves

Summary
31 March 2013 31 March 2014
£000 £000
(10,290) Revaluation Reserve (10,128)
(60,398) Capital Adjustment Account (64,103)
171 Financial Instruments Adjustment Account 99
8,250 Pensions Reserve 960
(62,267) Total Unusable Reserves (73,172)
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Note 16 (Continued)
Revaluation Reserve

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Authority arising from increases in the
value of its Property, Plant and Equipment. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated

gains are:

. Revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost

. Used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or
. Disposed of and the gains are realised

The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that the
Reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the balance
on the Capital Adjustment Account.

2012/13 2013/14

£000 £000

(11,167) Balance at 1 April (10,290)

877 Difference between fair value depreciation and 162
historical cost depreciation

877 Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment Account 162

(10,290) Balance at 31 March (10,128)

Capital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different
arrangements for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition,
construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The Account is debited
with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and
amortisation are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (with
reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to a historical cost
basis). The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Authority as finance for the costs
of acquisition, construction and enhancement.

The Account also contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties and gains
recognised on donated assets that have yet to be consumed by the Authority. The Account also
contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 April 2007, the
date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.

Note 4 provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the Account, apart from
those involving the Revaluation Reserve.
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Note 16 (Continued)

2012/13 2013/14
£000 £000
(55,669) Balance at 1 April (60,398)

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure
debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement:

3,862 Charges for depreciation and impairment of non current 4,792
assets

(5,109) Write down New Tyne Crossing deferred income (5,509)
balance

20,258 Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 14,619

(36,658) (46,496)

(877) Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation (162)
Reserve

Capital financing applied in the year:
(20,671) Capital grants and contributions credited to the (15,277)
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement that
have been applied to capital financing
(2,192) Statutory provision for the financing of capital (2,168)
investment charged against the General Fund
- Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund -

(60,398) Balance at 31 March (64,103)

Financial Instruments Adjustment Account

The Financial Instruments Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the
different arrangements for accounting for income and expenses relating to certain financial
instruments and for bearing losses or benefiting from gains per statutory provisions. It provides a
balancing mechanism between the different rates at which gains and losses (e.g. premiums on the
early repayment of debt) are recognised under the Code and are required by statute to be met
from the General Fund.

2012/13 2013/14
£000 £000
243 Balance at 1 April 171

(72) Proportion of premiums incurred in previous financial (72)

years to be charged against the General Fund Balance
in accordance with statutory requirements

171 Balance at 31 March 99
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Note 16 (Continued)
Pensions Reserve

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for
accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory
provisions. The Authority accounts for post-employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service,
updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment
returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require
benefits earned to be financed as the Authority makes employer’s contributions to pension funds
or eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the
Pensions Reserve therefore shows a shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees
and the resources the Authority has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will
ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid.

2012/13 2013/14
Restated
£000 £000
6,730 Balance at 1 April 8,250
2,200 Remeasurements of the net defined benefit 2,500
liability/(asset)
300 Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits 240

debited or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement
(980) (10,030)

8,250 Balance at 31 March 960

Details of the prior year restatement are shown in Note 31.
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Note 17: Cash Flow Statement: Operating Activities

The cash flows for operating activities includes the following items relating to interest paid and
received:

2012/13 2012/13
£000 £000
2,900 Interest received 2,363
(9,101) Interest paid (8,857)

Note 18: Cash Flow Statement: Adjustments to Net Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services
for non-cash movements and items that are Investing or Financing Activities

2012/13 2013/14
Restated

£000 £000

(1,154) Surplus or deficit on the provision of services (2,613)

Adjustments to Surplus or Deficit on Provision of
Services for Non-Cash Movements

(3,862) Depreciation and impairment (4,792)

(9,801) (Increase) / Decrease in Creditors 6,109

5,110 |Increase / (Decrease) in Debtors (2,308)

680 Movement in Pension Liability 9,790

5,109 Other non-cash items charged to the net surplus or 5,509
deficit on the provision of services

(2,764) 14,308

Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or
deficit on the provision of services that are investing
and financing activities

20,671 Capital grants credited to surplus / deficit on provision 15,277
of services

20,671 15,277

16,753 Net cash flow from operating activities 26,972

Details of the prior year restatement are shown in Note 31.
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Note 19: Cash Flow Statement: Investing Activities

2012/13 2013/14
£000 £000
1,230 Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment 2,981
property and intangible assets
65,000 Purchase of short-term and long-term investments 30,500
- Other payments for investing activities -
(70,000) Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments (28,000)
(23,312) Other receipts from investing activities (13,053)
(27,082) Net cash flows from investing activities (7,572)

Note 20: Cash Flows from Financing Activities

2012/13 2013/14
£000 £000
- Cash receipts of short and long-term borrowing -
- Other receipts from financing activities -

2,699 Repayments of short and long-term borrowing 2,667
- Other payments for financing activities 13
2,699 Net cash flows from financing activities 2,680

Note 21: Members’ Allowances

The Authority paid the following amounts to members the during the year:

2012/13 2013/14
£000 £000
82 Allowances 80
82 Total 80

Note 22: External Audit Costs

The Authority has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts,
certification of grant claims and statutory inspection and to non-audit services provided by the
Authority's external auditors

2012/13 2013/14
£000 £000
20 Fees payable with regard to external audit services 20
carried out by the appointed auditor for the year
(2) Rebate on audit fee received from Audit Commission (3)
18 Total 17
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Note 23: Amounts Reported for Resource Allocation

The analysis of income and expenditure on the face of the CIES is that specified by the Service
Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP). However, decisions about resource allocation are taken by
the Authority on the basis of budget reports analysed across functions - i.e. split between costs
relating to the ITA and costs relating to the Tyne Tunnels. These reports are prepared on a
different basis from the accounting policies used in the financial statements. In particular, no
charges are made in relation to capital expenditure (whereas depreciation, revaluation and
impairment losses in excess of the balance on the Revaluation Reserve and amortisation are
charged to services in the CIES; and the cost of retirement benefits is based on cash flows
(payment of Employers’ pension contributions and deficit payments) rather than the current
service cost of benefits accrued in the year.

ITA  Tyne Tunnels Total
2013/14
£000 £000 £000
Fees, charges & other service income - (23,896) (23,896)
Levy income (70,207) - (70,207)
Interest (20) (236) (256)
Total Income (70,227) (24,132) (94,359)
Employee expenses (including pensions) 2,279 7,786 10,065
Other service expenses 150 16,991 17,141
Support service recharges 285 116 401
Provision for Repayment of Debt 1,173 995 2,168
Interest Payments 1,226 5,671 6,897
Public Transport Revenue Grant to Nexus and 66,922 - 66,922
contribution to Tyne & Wear Districts
NESTI Expenditure met from Tyne Tunnels - 658 658
reserves
Total Expenditure 72,035 32,217 104,252
Net Expenditure 1,808 8,085 9,893

Reconciliation of Income and Expenditure to Cost of Services

This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of Income and Expenditure reported to
Management relates to the amounts included in the CIES.

2013/14

£000

Net Expenditure in the Analysis reported to Management 9,893
Amounts in the CIES not reported to Management in the Analysis (392)
Amounts included in the Analysis not included in the CIES Cost of Services 51,368
Cost of Services in Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 60,869
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Note 23 (Continued)

Reconciliation to Subjective Analysis

This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of income and expenditure by function
relate to a subjective analysis of the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services included in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

2013/14

Fees, charges & other
service income

New Tyne Crossing
Deferred Income Release
Interest and investment
income

Levy income
Government grants and
contributions

Total Income

Employee expenses
Other service expenses
Support Service recharges
Provision for Repayment
of Debt

Interest Payments
Depreciation and REFCUS
Public Transport Revenue
Grant to Nexus

NESTI Expenditure met
from Tyne Tunnels

Total expenditure
Surplus or deficit on the
provision of services

Analysis  Amounts not  Amounts Cost of Corporate Total
by function reported to not  Services Amounts
management included in
for decision  CIES Cost
making of Services
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
(23,896) - - (23,896) - (23,896)
- (5,509) - (5,509) - (5,509)
(256) - 256 - (2,363)  (2,363)
(70,207) - 70,207 - (70,207)  (70,207)
- (17,750) - (17,750) - (17,750)
(94,359) (23,259) 70,463  (47,155) (72,570) (119,725)
10,065 10  (10,030) a5 - 45
17,141 3,466 - 20,607 - 20,607
401 - - 401 - 401
2,168 - (2,168) - - ]
6,897 - (6,897) - 9,087 9,087
- 19,411 - 19,411 19,411
66,922 - - 66,922 - 66,922
658 - - 658 - 658
104,252 22,887 (19,095) 108,044 9,087 117,131
9,893 (372) 51,368 60,889  (63,483)  (2,594)
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Note 23 (Continued)

Comparative Figures for 2012/13

Income and Expenditure reported to Management

2012/13

Fees, charges & other service income
Levy income

Interest

Total Income

Employee expenses (including pensions)
Other service expenses

Support service recharges

Provision for Repayment of Debt

Interest Payments

Public Transport Revenue Grant to Nexus
NESTI Expenditure met from Tyne Tunnels
reserves

Total Expenditure

Net Expenditure

Reconciliation of Income and Expenditure to Cost of Services

Net Expenditure in the Analysis reported to Management

Amounts in the CIES not reported to Management in the Analysis

Amounts included in the Analysis not included in the CIES Cost of Services
Cost of Services in Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

ITA  Tyne Tunnels Total

£000 £000 £000

- (19,979) (19,979)

(70,207) - (70,207)

(35) (517) (552)

(70,242) (20,496) (90,738)
455 557 1,012
164 14,077 14,241
270 108 378
1,222 970 2,192
1,346 5,652 6,998
66,922 - 66,922
- 413 413
70,379 21,777 92,156
137 1,281 1,418

2012/13

£000

1,418

555

60,589

62,562
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Note 23 (Continued)

2012/13 Restated
Fees, charges & other
service income

New Tyne Crossing
Deferred Income Release
Interest and investment
income

Levy income
Government grants and
contributions

Total Income

Employee expenses
Other service expenses
Support Service recharges
Provision for Repayment
of Debt

Interest Payments
Depreciation and REFCUS
Public Transport Revenue
Grant to Nexus

NESTI Expenditure met
from Tyne Tunnels

Total expenditure
Surplus or deficit on the
provision of services

Analysis  Amounts not  Amounts Cost of Corporate Total
by function reported to not Services Amounts

management included in

for decision  CIES Cost

making of Services
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
(19,979) - - (19,979) - (19,979)
- (5,109) - (5,109) - (5,109)
(552) - 552 - (2,900)  (2,900)
(70,207) - 70,207 - (70,207)  (70,207)
- (22,083) - (22,083) - (22,083)
(90,738) (27,192) 70,759  (47,171) (73,107) (120,278)
1,012 10 (980) 42 - 42
14,241 1,414 - 15,655 - 15,655
378 - - 378 - 378

2,192 - (2,192) - - -

6,998 - (6,998) - 9,391 9,391
- 26,323 - 26,323 26,323
66,922 - - 66,922 - 66,922
413 - - 413 - 413
92,156 27,747 (10,170) 109,733 9,391 119,124
1,418 555 60,589 62,562  (63,716)  (1,154)
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Note 24: Grant Income

The Authority credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement in 2013/14:

2012/13 2013/14
£000 £000
Credited to Services

(14,867) Local Transport Plan (12,309)
(1,254) Local Sustainable Transport Fund (2,470)
(3,235) NESTI (658)
(2,418) Better Bus Area Fund (2,063)
(309) Local Contributions to Go Smarter Programme (250)
(22,083) (17,750)

Note 25: Related Parties

The Authority is required to disclose material transactions with related parties - bodies or
individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Authority or be controlled or
influenced by the Authority. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to
which the Authority might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might
have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the Authority.

Central government has effective control over the general operations of the Authority - it is
responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the Authority operates, provides
funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the
Authority has with other parties (e.g. Authorities contributing to the Levy). Grants received from
government departments are set out in the subjective analysis in Note 23 on reporting for
resource allocation decisions.
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Note 25 (Continued)

Members of the Authority have direct control over the Authority’s financial and operating policies
and are required to disclose all pecuniary and non-financial interests which could conflict with
those of the Authority. No such disclosures were made in 2013/14.

Under the Officer’s Code, officers must declare any potential contractual or financial interest in the
work of the Authority. There were no such declarations during the year.

Other Public Bodies (subject to common control by central government)

The Authority has a direct relationship with the Passenger Transport Executive (Nexus). The ITA
sets the policy, which is then delivered by Nexus. During 2013/14 The Clerk to the ITA, Treasurer &
Deputy Clerk and the Director of Housing, Planning and Transportation were non-Executive
Directors of Nexus and also officers of Newcastle City Council. New officer arrangements have
been put in place to provide services to the North East Combined Authority for the period from 15
April 2014.

The tables below and overleaf set out all expenditure paid to and income received from any
related parties in 2013/14, including amounts accrued at the year end.

2012/13 2013/14
£000 £000 £000
Paid / Accrued at
Received in year end
Receipts year
Levy on Tyne and Wear Councils
Gateshead Council (12,021) (12,737) -
Newcastle City Council (18,323) (17,747) -
North Tyneside Council (12,447) (12,794) -
South Tyneside Council (9,638) (9,424) -
Sunderland City Council (17,778) (17,505) -
(70,207) (70,207) -
Newcastle City Council (NCC)
Interest on Revenue Balances (725) (330) -
Investments held on behalf of Nexus by NCC (10,000) - (7,500)
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Note 25 (Continued)

2012/13 2013/14

£000 £000 £000
Paid / Accrued at
Received in year end

Receipts year

Nexus

Loans from ITA - Principal (2,057) - (1,980)
Loans from ITA - Interest (1,740) - (1,625)
(3,797) - (3,605)

The amount paid/received in year is shown as nil since these receipts are paid following the year
end (i.e. the 2012/13 invoice was paid in April 2013).

Contributions to NESTI held as Contributions Received*

Darlington Borough Council (215) - (186)
Durham County Council (731) - (632)
Gateshead Council (375) - (325)
Hartlepool Borough Council (148) - (128)
Middlesbrough Borough Council (248) - (215)
Newcastle City Council (451) - (390)
North Tyneside Council (290) - (251)
Northumberland County Council (441) - (382)
Redcar & Cleveland Borough Council (195) - (168)
South Tyneside Council (231) - (199)
Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council (280) - (242)
Sunderland City Council (453) - (392)

(4,058) - (3,510)

* A pro-rata split according to original percentage contribution has been applied to split total NESTI
contributions held on ITA balance sheet at year end (excluding TWITA's own allocation).
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Note 25 (Continued)

2012/13 2013/14
£000 £000 £000
Paid /  Accrued at
Received in year end
Payments year
Specific Grants
Gateshead Council 2,349 2,009 328
Newcastle City Council 2,276 2,222 151
North Tyneside Council 1,780 1,421 176
South Tyneside Council 1,353 1,135 316
Sunderland City Council 2,639 2,342 272
10,397 9,129 1,243
Levy rebate
Gateshead Council - 363 -
Newcastle City Council - 506 -
North Tyneside Council - 364 -
South Tyneside Council - 268 -
Sunderland City Council - 499 -
- 2,000 -
Newcastle City Council
Provision of Support Services 668 827 -
2012/13 2013/14
£000 £000 £000
Paid /  Accrued at
Received in year end
year
Nexus
Revenue Support Grant 66,922 64,922 -
Specific Grants 9,334 54 5,191
Grant from Metro Reinvigoration Reserve 2,204 - 974
78,460 64,976 6,165
Tyne & Wear Superannuation Fund
Employers Contributions 981 1,026 4
Lump sum payment to reduce deficit - 9,000
981 10,026 4
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Note 26: Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below, together
with the resources that have been used to finance it. Where capital expenditure is to be financed
in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used by the Authority the expenditure results in
an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure
incurred historically by the Authority that has yet to be financed. The CFR is analysed in the second
part of this note.

2012/13 2013/14

£000 £000

214,386 Opening Capital Financing Requirement 211,221
Capital investment:

1,084 - Property, Plant and Equipment 3,141

- - Investment Properties -
- - Non Operational assets -
20,258 - Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under 14,619
Statute
- - Loans to Other Public Bodies -

Sources of finance:
(2,057) - Capital receipts (Nexus borrowing repayments) (1,980)
(20,258) - Government grants and other contributions (15,277)
Sums set aside from revenue:
- - Direct revenue contributions -

(2,192) - Minimum revenue provision (2,168)
211,221 Closing Capital Financing Requirement 209,556
Explanation of movements in year:
(3,165) - Increase/(Decrease) in underlying need to borrow (1,665)
(unsupported by government financial assistance)
(3,165) Increase/(decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement (1,665)
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Note 27: Private Finance Initiatives and Similar Contracts

In November 2007 the ITA entered into a 30 year contact with TT2 Ltd. to construct a second vehicle
tunnel, refurbish the existing tunnel and operate both vehicle tunnels alongside the pedestrian and

cycle tunnel for a period of thirty years. The second tunnel was opened on 25 February 2011, with
the refurbished original tunnel opened on 21 November 2011. Both are included on the ITA's

balance sheet.

In 2013/14 the payment under the contract was £16.929m. In 2012/13 this was £13.986m.
The payment under the contract in 2014/15 is estimated to be £18.303m.

The contribution by TT2 is recognised as a deferred income balance (with a 2013/14 value of
£122.214m) which is written down over the remaining life of the contract.

Estimated TT2

Deferred Income

Payment of Toll release
Income

£000 £000

Payable in 2014/15 18,303 (5,092)
Payable within two to five years 89,941 (20,369)
Payable within six to ten years 147,328 (25,461)
Payable within eleven to fifteen years 179,082 (25,461)
Payable within sixteen to twenty years 210,047 (25,461)
Payable within twenty-one to twenty-five years 170,868 (20,370)
Total 815,569 (122,214)

31 March 2013

31 March 2014

£000 £000
Shown as Short Term Liability on Balance Sheet (5,501) (5,092)
Shown as Long Term Liability on Balance Sheet (122,222) (117,122)
Total New Tyne Crossing Deferred Income Balance (127,723) (122,214)
Released to CIES in year (5,109) (5,509)
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Note 28: Defined Benefit Pension Schemes

The Authority participates in two post employment schemes:

(i) the Tyne & Wear Pension Fund, administered locally by South Tyneside Council - this is a funded
defined benefit final salary scheme, meaning that the Authority and employees pay contributions
into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pensions liabilities with investment

(ii) Unfunded Defined Benefit Arrangements for the award of discretionary post retirement benefits
upon early retirement. Under this type of scheme liabilities are recognised when awards are made.
However, there are no investment assets built up to meet these pensions liabilities, and cash has
to be generated to meet actual pensions payments as they eventually fall due.

Reconciliation of funded status and unfunded defined benefit obligation to Balance Sheet

Local Government Discretionary Benefits

Pension Scheme Arrangements
2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14
£000 £000 £000 £000
Fair value of assets 24,990 34,920 - -
Present value of funded defined benefit (32,270) (32,640) (970) (960)
Funded status (7,280) 2,280 (970) (960)
Impact of minimum funding - (2,280) - -
requirement / asset ceiling under
Asset / (Liability) recognised on the (7,280) - (970) (960)

balance sheet

Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits

We recognise the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are earned
by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge
we are required to make against the levy is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost
of post employment/retirement benefits is reversed out of the General Fund via the Movement in
Reserves Statement. The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement and the General Fund Balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement
during the year:
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Note 28 (Continued)

Local Government Discretionary Benefits

Pension Scheme Arrangements
2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14
£000 £000 £000 £000

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Cost of Services:
Current service cost 10 10 - -
Past service costs - - - -
Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure:

Interest on net defined benefit 250 190 40 40
Pension expense recognised in profit 260 200 40 40
and loss

Other Post Employment Benefit
charged to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement:

Return on plan assets (in excess of)/ (1,680) (120) - -
below that recognised in net interest
Actuarial (gains)/losses due to 3,780 (1,670) 70 (30)
changes in financial assumptions
Actuarial (gains)/losses due to - 860 - 30
changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial (gains)/losses due to 20 1,150 10 -
changes in liability assumptions
Total actuarial (gains)/losses 2,120 220 80 -
Adjustment in respect of paragraph 58 - 2,280 - -
Total amount recognised in Other 2,120 2,500 80 -

Comprehensive Income

Total amount recognised in 2,380 2,700 120 40
Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement
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Note 28 (Continued)

Assets and Liabilities in Relation to Post-employment Benefits

Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities (defined benefit obligation):

Opening balance at 1 April

Current service cost

Interest cost

Contributions by participants
Actuarial gains/(losses) on liabilities -
financial assumptions

Actuarial gains/(losses) on liabilities -
demographic assumptions

Actuarial gains/(losses) on liabilities -
experience

Net benefits paid out

Past service costs

Closing balance at 31 March

Funded liabilities:
Local Government

Unfunded liabilities:
Discretionary

Pension Scheme Benefits
2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14
£000 £000 £000 £000
(28,630) (32,270) (900) (970)
(10) (10) - -
(1,290) (1,300) (40) (40)
(3,780) 1,670 (70) 30
- (860) - (30)
(20) (1,150) (10) -
1,460 1,280 50 50
(32,270) (32,640) (970) (960)

Reconciliation of fair value of the scheme assets:

Opening balance at 1 April
Interest income on assets

Remeasurement gains/(losses) on assets

Employer contributions

Contributions by scheme participants
Net benefits paid out

Closing balance at 31 March

Local Government Pension Scheme

2012/13

£000
22,800
1,040
1,680
930

(1,460)

24,990

2013/14

£000
24,990
1,110
120
9,980

(1,280)

34,920

The expected return on scheme assets is determined by considering the expected returns available

on the assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest
investments are based on gross redemption yields as at the balance sheet date.

Expected returns on equity investments reflect long-term real rates of return experienced in the

respective markets.
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Note 28 (Continued)

Scheme History

2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Fair value of assets in 21,690 22,650 22,800 24,990 34,920
the Local
Present value of liabilities:
Local Government (36,170) (26,130) (28,630) (32,270) (32,640)
funding - (2,280)
requirement/asset
ceiling under paragraph
funded defined benefit (14,480) (3,480) (5,830) (7,280) -
scheme:
Discretionary benefits (910) (790) (900) (970) (960)
Total Surplus/(deficit) (15,390) (4,270) (6,730) (8,250) (960)

The split of the defined benefit obligation at the last valuation date between the various categories
of members was as follows; active members 26%, deferred pensioners 13% and pensioners 61%.

As a result of the £9m lump sum payment to the Pension Fund made during 2013/14, contributions
for the next three years have been set to nil. Any deficit will be assessed at the next triennial
valuation date of 31 March 2016. Expected payments direct to beneficiaries in the year to 31

March 2014 are £0.05m in relation to unfunded benefits.

Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities

The latest actuarial valuation of Tyne & Wear Integrated Transport Authority's liabilities took place
as at 31 March 2013. Liabilities have been estimated by the independent qualified actuary on an
actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method. The principal assumptions used by the

actuary in updating the latest valuation of the Fund for IAS 19 purposes were:

Local Government Pension
Scheme and Discretionary

2012/13 2013/14
Mortality assumptions:-
Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:
Men 21.7 23.0
Women 23.9 24.6
Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 4.1% 4.2%
Rate of inflation - Retail Price Index 3.3% 3.2%
Rate of inflation - Consumer Price Index 2.4% 2.2%
Rate of increase in pensions 2.4% 2.2%
Rate of increase to deferred pensions 2.4% 2.2%
Rate of increase in salaries 3.8% 3.7%
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Note 28 (Continued)

The approximate split of assets for the Fund as a whole is shown in the table below:

31 March 2013

31 March 2014

% % % %

Quoted Unquoted Total

Equity investments 68.0 58.1 8.7 66.8
Property 9.0 0.0 8.5 8.5
Government bonds 7.0 3.5 0.0 3.5
Corporate bonds 11.0 11.5 0.0 11.5
Cash 1.6 2.9 0.0 2.9
Other* 3.4 5.0 1.8 6.8
Total 100.0 81.0 19.0 100.0

* Other holdings may include hedge funds, currency holdings, asset allocation futures and other
financial instruments. It is assumed that these will get a return in line with equities.

Actual Return on Assets

Funded Funded
31 March 2013 31 March 2014
£000 £000
Interest income on assets (1,040) (1,210)
Remeasurement (1,680) (120)
gain/(loss) on assets
Actual return on assets (2,720) (1,230)
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Note 28 (Continued)

Sensitivity Analysis

The results shown in this disclosure are sensitive to the assumptions used. The approximate
impact of changing the key assumptions as at 31 March 2014 and the projected service cost for the
year ending 31 March 2015 is set out below.

In each case, only the assumption mentioned is altered; all other assumptions remain the same.

Sensitivity of unfunded benefits is not included on materiality grounds.

Funded LGPS Benefits

Discount rate assumption

Adjustment to discount rate +0.1% p.a. -0.1% p.a.
Present value of total obligation (Em) 32.18 33.15
% change in present value of total obligation -1.4% 1.6%

Rate of general increase in salaries

Adjustment to salary increase rate +0.1% p.a. -0.1% p.a.
Present value of total obligation (Em) 32.65 32.64
% change in present value of total obligation 0.0% 0.0%

Rate of increase to pensions in payment and deferred pensions assumption, and rate of
revaluation of pension accounts assumption

Adjustment to pension increase rate +0.1% p.a. -0.1% p.a.
Present value of total obligation (Em) 33.46 31.89
% change in present value of total obligation 2.5% -2.3%

Post retirement mortality age rating assumption

Adjustment to mortality age rating assumption* -1 year +1 year
Present value of total obligation (Em) 33.71 31.58
% change in present value of total obligation 3.3% -3.3%

*A rating of +1 year means that members are assumed to follow the mortality pattern of the base
table for an individual that is 1 year older than them
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Note 29: Contingent Liabilities

The ITA has a contingent liability in relation to any gains or losses in the Local Government Pension
Scheme transferred assets and liabilities that were transferred to TT2 Ltd on 1 February 2008 and
relate to membership accrued before that date. The project agreement provides that should there
be a shortfall in the TT2 fund at the actuarial valuation, which can be attributed to pre-2008
benefits, the ITA will be required to reimburse the shortfall. The calculation to determine the
position on the ITA and the TT2 elements of the assets is currently underway following the most
recent triennial valuation.

Under Part 1 of the Land Compensation Act 1973, TWITA has received a total of 215 claims from
agents acting on behalf of homeowners who allege that the value of their properties have been
adversely affected by the New Tyne Crossing works. However, none of the claims received have
included any supporting justification or evidence and so their validity cannot currently be assessed.
This supporting information has been requested of the agents by TWITA but has not yet been
received. It is therefore not possible to reliably estimate the value or timing of the liability at this
point. Once the claims have been assessed, the costs of valid claims will be met from Tyne Tunnels
reserves.

There is the possibility that the previous approach to Tyne Tunnel toll exemptions may be subject
to challenge from some individuals who consider that they should not have been charged tolls but
instead should have benefitted from exemptions for a period from August 2005. The Combined
Authority would need to consider the merits of any such claims for reimbursement if received. It is
not currently possible to reliably estimate the extent or timing of the liability (if any) which may
arise, although it is not considered to be material and would be met from Tyne Tunnels reserves.
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Note 30: Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments

The Authority’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

o Credit risk - the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Authority

o Liquidity risk - the possibility that the Authority might not have funds available to meet its
commitments to make payments

o Market risk - the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Authority as a result of
changes in such measures as interest rates and stock market movements

The Authority’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the resources available to fund
services. Risk management is carried out by Treasury Management officers under policies
approved by the Authority in the Treasury Management Policy. The policy provides written
principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas such as
interest rate risk, credit risk and the investment of surplus cash.

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to
the Authority’s customers. This risk is minimised through the Treasury Management Policy, which
requires that deposits are not made with financial institutions unless they meet identified
minimum credit criteria. The Treasury Management policy also imposes a maximum sum to be
invested with a financial institution located within each category. The credit criteria in respect of
financial assets held by the Authority are detailed fully in the Annual Treasury Management
Strategy Statement which is agreed by the ITA.

Customers for goods and services are assessed, taking into account their financial position, past
experience and other factors, within individual credit limits being set in accordance with internal
ratings within parameters set by the Authority. The Authority has a very low risk of default from its
customers for goods and services, since these are predominantly other local authorities or other
public bodies such as Nexus.

The Authority’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in banks and
building societies cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any institution failing to make interest
payments or repay the principal sum will be specific to each individual institution. Recent
experience has shown that it is rare for such entities to be unable to meet their commitments. A
risk of recoverability applied to all of the Authority’s deposits, but there was no evidence at 31
March 2013 that this was likely to crystallise.
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Note 30 (Continued)
Liquidity Risk

The Authority has a comprehensive cash flow management system that seeks to ensure that cash
is available as needed. If unexpected movements happen, the Authority has ready access to
borrowings from the money markets and the Public Works Loans Board. There is no significant risk
that it will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under financial instruments.
Instead, the risk is that the Authority will be bound to replenish a significant proportion of its
borrowings at a time of unfavourable interest rates. The Authority sets limits on the proportion of
its fixed rate borrowing during specified periods. The strategy is to ensure that maturing loans may
be replaced through a combination of careful planning of new loans taken out and (where it is
economic to do so) making early repayments. The maturity analysis of financial liabilities is as
follows:

All trade and other payables are due to be paid in less than one year.

Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk
The Authority is exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements on its

borrowings and investments. Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on the
Authority. For example, a rise in interest rates would have the following effects:

o Borrowings at variable rates - the interest expense charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services will rise

o Borrowings at fixed rates - the fair value of the liabilities will fall
31 March 2013 31 March 2014
£000 £000
Less than one year (4,694) (7,941)
Between one and two years (7,260) (4,333)
Between two and five years (3,667) (2,000)
More than five years (191,966) (190,634)
(207,587) (204,908)
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Note 30 (Continued)

o Investments at variable rates - the interest income credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services will rise
o Investments at fixed rates - the fair value of the assets will fall

Borrowings are not carried at fair value, so nominal gains and losses on fixed rate borrowings
would not impact on the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services or Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure. However, changes in interest payable and receivable on variable rate
borrowings and investments will be posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services
and affect the General Fund Balance. Movements in the fair value of fixed rate investments that
have a quoted market price will be reflected in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

The Authority has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk. Policy is to ensure that
the level of its borrowings in variable rate loans does not expose the portfolio to excessive
movements in interest rates. During periods of falling interest rates, and where economic
circumstances make it favourable, fixed rate loans will be repaid early to limit exposure to losses.
The risk of loss is ameliorated by the fact that a proportion of government grant payable on
financing costs will normally move with prevailing interest rates or the Authority’s cost of
borrowing and provide compensation for a proportion of any higher costs.

The Treasury Management Team has an active strategy for assessing interest rate exposure that
feeds into the setting of the annual budget and which is used to update the budget during the
year. This allows any adverse changes to be accommodated. The analysis will also advise whether
new borrowing taken out is fixed or variable.

According to this investment strategy, at 31 March 2014 if interest rates had been 1% higher with
all other variables held constant, the financial effect would be:

£000
Increase in interest payable on variable rate borrowings* -
Increase in interest receivable on variable rate investments (550)
Impact on Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services (550)

*The ITA’s borrowings are all currently at fixed rates.

A decrease in the fair value of fixed rate borrowings liabilities would have no impact on the Surplus
or Deficit on the Provision of Services or Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

The impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above, but with the movements being
reversed.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Authority has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and thus has
no exposure to loss arising from movements in exchange rates.
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Note 31: Prior Period Adjustments and Changes in Accounting Policies
IAS 19 Change to Accounting Standard

Adjustments have been made to the 2012/13 financial statements to take account of the amended
IAS 19 Pension Costs accounting standard. The revised standard implemented a change to the
expected return on asset component of pension cost. The change means that the expected return
on assets is calculated at the discount rate, instead of, as previously, at an expected rate of return
based on actual plan assets held. Below is an extract of the changes in respect of the
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement, Movement in Reserves and Cash Flow. Where
figures within the supplementary notes to the accounts have been restated this is indicated on the
note. Note 28 — Pension Costs has been prepared based on the restated figures for 2012/13.

Adjustments to 2012/13 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

2012/13 Published Accounts IAS 19 2012/13 Restatement
Adjust-
ment
Gross Gross Net Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income Expenditure Expenditure Income Expenditure
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
9,101 (3,160) 5,941 Financing & Investment 550 9,391 (2,900) 6,491
Income and Expenditure
(1,704) Surplus on Provision of 550 (1,154)
Services
2,750 Actuarial Losses on (550) 2,200
Pension Assets /
Liabilities
1,046 Total Comprehensive - 1,046

Income & Expenditure
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Note 31 (Continued)

Adjustments to 2012/13 Movement in Reserves

Total Unusable Total
Usable Reserves Reserves
Reserves
£000 £000 £000
(58,634) (59,862) (118,496) Balance at 1 April 2012
(1,704) - (1,704) (Surplus) on Provision of Services
Other Comprehensive Income and
- 2,750 2,750 Expenditure
Total Comprehensive Income and
(1,704) 2,750 1,046 Expenditure
Adjustments between Accounting
5,154 (5,154) - Basis and Funding Basis Under
Net (Increase) / Decrease before
- - 1,046 transfers to Earmarked Reserves
- - 1,046 (Increase) / Decrease in 2012/13
(58,634) (59,862) (117,450) Balance at 31 March 2013

Adjustments to 2012/13 Cash Flow Statement

2012/13
Published

£000

(1,704) Net surplus on the provision of

services

(2,214) Adjustments to net surplus or deficit

20,671

on the provision of services for non
cash movements

Adjustments for items included in the
net surplus or deficit on the provision
of services that are investing and
financing activities

16,753

Net cash flows from Operating
Activities

Page 112

IAS19 Total Unusable Total
Adjust- Usable Reserves Reserves
ment Reserves
£000 £000 £000 £000
- (58,634) (59,862) (118,496)
550 (1,154) - (1,154)
(550) 2,200 2,200
- (1,154) 2,200 1,046
4,604 (4,604) -
1,046
1,046
- (58,634) (59,862) (117,450)
IAS 19 2012/13
Adjustment Restated
£000
550 (1,154)
(550) (2,764)
- 20,671
16,753
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Note 32: Events After the Balance Sheet Date

On 15 April 2014, the Tyne and Wear Integrated Transport Authority was dissolved and its
functions, assets and liabilities wholly transferred to the North East Combined Authority, which
was established on the same day.

Accounts for the period 1 April to 15 April 2014 will be presented with the accounts for the North
East Combined Authority for the year ending 31 March 2015.
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Note 33: Accounting Policies
1. General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Authority’s transactions for the 2013/14 financial year
and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2014. The Authority is required to prepare an annual
Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations, which those Regulations
require to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily
comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2013/14 (the
Code) and the Service Reporting Code of Practice for Local Authorities 2013/14, supported by
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historic cost,
modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments.

2.  Accruals of Income and Expenditure

The financial statements, other than the cash flow statement, are prepared on an accruals basis.
This means that transactions are reflected in the accounts of the period in which they take place,
as opposed to the period in which payments are made or received.

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in no
more than three months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. In the Cash Flow Statement, cash
and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Authority’s cash management.

4. Exceptional Items

Where items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed separately,
either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in the notes to the
accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of the Authority’s
financial performance.

5.  Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a
material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the
current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the
change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other
events and conditions on the Authority’s financial position or financial performance.

Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting
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opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always
been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

6. Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record

the cost of holding fixed assets during the year:

. Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service

. Revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off.

The Authority is not required to raise the levy to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment
losses or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue
towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement, equal to an amount calculated on a
prudent basis determined by the Authority in accordance with statutory guidance.

Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by the
contribution in the General Fund Balance (Minimum Revenue Provision), by way of an adjusting
transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the
difference between the two.

7. Employee Costs

Following the transfer of the Tyne Tunnels to the Concessionaire in 2008, the ITA only has one
employee. The full cost of the employee, including holidays, is charged to the accounts of the
period within which the employee worked.

Employee costs in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement include the direct
salaries and employers’ contributions for National Insurance and contributions to the Local
Government Pension Scheme in respect of that member of staff. Officers of the Authority and
other professional and technical support staff are primarily employed by the Lead Authority,
Newcastle City Council. Their costs are charged to the ITA, together with a proportion of overhead
costs, on the basis of estimated time spent on ITA business by the staff involved.

Under the Code, an accrual is required for the cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of leave,
e.g. time off in lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the year-end which employees can
carry forward into the next financial year. Since the ITA only has one employee, this amount is not
material and so an accrual will not be made.

8. Pensions
The ITA participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme, which provides members with
defined benefits relating to pay and service. Its pension obligations relate primarily to former

employees.

The relevant fund is the Tyne and Wear Pension Fund administered by South Tyneside
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Metropolitan Borough Council, from whom a copy of the annual report may be obtained. The Fund
website may be visited at www.twpf.info.

The liabilities of the pension fund attributable to the ITA are included in the

Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, i.e. an assessment of the
future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees,
based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc, and projections of
projected earnings for current employees;

The assets of the pension fund attributable to the Authority are included in the Balance Sheet at
their fair value:

Quoted securities at current bid price

Unquoted securities based on professional estimate

Unitised securities at current bid price

Property at market value

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven components:

a. Current service cost - the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year
- allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services for
which the employees worked;

b.  Past service cost - the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose effect
relates to years of service earned in earlier years - debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of
Non-Distributed Costs;

C. Interest cost - the expected increase in the present value of liabilities during the year as they
move one year closer to being paid - debited to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement;

d. Remeasurements comprising:

o the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability, charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure;

o actuarial gains and losses, changes in the net pensions liability that arise because
events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or
because the actuaries have updated their assumptions, charges to the Pensions
Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

e.  Contributions paid to the pension fund - cash paid as employer’s contributions to the
pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be
charged with the amount payable by the Authority to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in
the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the
Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are appropriations to and from the
Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace
them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts
payable by unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve
thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for
retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees.
Further details are provided in Note 28.
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9. Events After the Balance Sheet Date

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that

occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is

authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

o Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period -
the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events; and

. Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period - the Statement
of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would
have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their
estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of
Accounts.

10. Financial Instruments
Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Authority becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are
carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are
based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the
instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was originally recognised.

For most of the borrowings that the Authority has, this means that the amount presented in the
Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and interest charged
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year
according to the loan agreement.

Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are credited and debited to
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement in the year of repurchase / settlement. However, where repurchase has
taken place as part of a restructuring of the loan portfolio that involves the modification or
exchange of existing instruments, the premium or discount is respectively deducted from or added
to the amortised cost of the new or modified loan and the write-down to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement is spread over the life of the loan by an adjustment to the
effective interest rate.

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, regulations allow the impact on the General Fund Balance to be spread
over future years. The Authority has a policy of spreading the gain or loss over the term that was
remaining on the loan against which the premium was payable or discount receivable when it was
repaid. The reconciliation of amounts charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement to the net charge required against the General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer
to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
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Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified into two types:

o Loans and receivables - assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are not quoted
in an active market; and
o Available for sale assets - assets that have a quoted market price and / or do not have fixed

or determinable payments.
Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Authority becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value. They
are subsequently measured at their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the
effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the loans that the Authority has made,
this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable
(plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement.

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that
payments due under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down and a charge made
to the relevant service (for receivables specific to that service) or the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the present value
of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or debited to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Available for Sale Assets

Available-for-sale assets are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Authority becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured and carried at fair
value. Where the asset has fixed or determinable payments, annual credits to the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement for interest receivable are based on the amortised cost of the asset multiplied by the
effective rate of interest for the instrument. Where there are no fixed or determinable payments,
income (e.g. dividends) is credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
when it becomes receivable by the Authority. Assets are maintained in the Balance Sheet at fair
value. Values are based on the following principles:

. Instruments with quoted market prices - the market price;

. Other instruments with fixed and determinable payments - discounted cash flow analysis;
and

. Equity shares with no quoted market prices - independent appraisal of company valuations.
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Changes in fair value are balanced by an entry in the Available-for-Sale Reserve and the gain/loss is
recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Revaluation of Available-for-Sale Financial Assets. The
exception is where impairment losses have been incurred — these are debited to the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, along with any net gain or loss for the asset accumulated in the Available-for-Sale
Reserve.

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that
payments due under the contract will not be made (fixed or determinable payments) or fair value
falls below cost, the asset is written down and a charge made to the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. If the
asset has fixed or determinable payments, the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at
the asset’s original effective interest rate. Otherwise, the impairment loss is measured as any
shortfall of fair value against the acquisition cost of the instrument (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation).

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited or debited to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, along with any accumulated gains or losses previously recognised in the
Available-for-Sale Reserve.

Where fair value cannot be measured reliably, the instrument is carried at cost (less any
impairment losses).

11. Government Grants and Contributions

The provisions relating to Grants and Contributions apply to both revenue and capital grants and
contributions. Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third
party contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Authority when there is reasonable
assurance that:

o The Authority will comply with the conditions attached to the payments; and

o The grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due to the Authority are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied.
Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential
embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by
the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the
transferor.

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are
carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution
is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation
and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ringfenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they
are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the
grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied
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Reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in
the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they
have been applied to fund capital expenditure.

12. Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered
separately for classification.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an
asset in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of specific assets.

The ITA is not currently party to any lease arrangements, either as lessor or lessee.
(a) The Authority as Lessee
Operating Leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefitting from use of the leased property,
plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this
does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a rent-free period at the commencement of
the lease).

(b) The Authority as Lessor
Operating Leases

Where the Authority grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or

equipment, the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are
made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of
payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of the relevant
asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

13. Property, Plant and Equipment
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or

services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used
during more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.
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Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or
service potential associated with the item will flow to the Authority and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver
future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged as an
expense when it is incurred.

Measurement
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:

The purchase price;

Any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management; and

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the
site on which it is located.

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the
acquisition does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cash flows
of the Authority). In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the
acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the Authority.

Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair value and

any consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line of the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been made
conditionally. Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated Assets Account.

Where gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are
reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in
Reserves Statement.

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

. Infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction — depreciated historical
cost;
. All other assets — fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its

existing use (existing use value — EUV).

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an asset,
depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of fair value.

Where non-property assets that have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated
historical cost basis is used as a proxy for fair value.

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that
their carrying amount is not materially different from their fair value at the year-end, but as a
minimum every five years. This work is carried out on behalf of the Authority by the Property
Services Division of the lead authority. Revaluations are detailed within the Notes to the Core
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Financial Statements.

Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised
gains. Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement where they arise from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a service.

Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by:

o Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the
carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the
accumulated gains); and

. Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of
its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital
Adjustment Account.

De Minimis Levels

The use of a de-minimis level for capital expenditure means that in the above categories assets
below the de-minimis level are charged to the revenue account and are not classified as capital
expenditure, i.e. the asset is not included in the balance sheet unless they are part of an overall
project costing more than the established de-minimis level. For all capital expenditure the de
minimis level is £10,000

Impairment

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of
the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by:

o Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the
carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the
accumulated gains); and

. Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service
line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original
loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets
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without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land) and assets that are not yet available for
use (i.e. assets under construction).

Depreciation on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets is calculated by taking the asset value at
31 March 2014, divided by remaining life expectancy. Depreciation is therefore charged in the year
of acquisition, but not the year of disposal.

Depreciation on vehicles and plant is based on a thirty year useful economic life, since this class of
asset relates to assets which were transferred to the concessionaire, TT2 Ltd at the
commencement of the thirty year contract. These assets (or their equivalent replacements) are to
be returned to the ITA at the end of the contract.

The Tyne Vehicle Tunnels are depreciated over a 120 year useful life and the Tyne Pedestrian and
Cycle Tunnels over a 40-120 year.

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current
value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based
on their historic cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital
Adjustment Account.

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment assets has major components whose cost is
significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately. In
the most recent valuations of the Tyne Tunnels, it was assessed that although Mechanical and
Electrical Service and the Toll Plaza have an economic life of 20 years, these formed less than 20%
of the overall valuation and have not therefore been classed as significant components.

Disposals

Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. The
balance of receipts is required to be credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be
used for new capital investment or set aside to reduce the Authority’s underlying need to borrow
(the capital financing requirement). Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General
Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

14. Public Private Partnership (PPP) Contracts

Public Private Partnerships are agreements to receive services and provide capital jointly with the
private sector. The New Tyne Crossing Partnership is judged to be such an arrangement.

The Code requires these arrangements to be assessed under an application of the principles within
International Financial Reporting Interpretation Committee 12 (IFRIC 12) ‘Service Concessions’.

Arrangements fall in the scope of the Application where both of the following ‘IFRIC 12’ criteria
are met:

. The public sector entity (‘grantor’) controls or regulates the services that the operator must
provide with the infrastructure, to whom it must provide them, and at what price; and
. The grantor controls, through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise, any significant

residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the service arrangement.
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For any service concession within the scope of the Application, the grantor will recognise the cost
of the property, plant and equipment underlying the service concession as a tangible fixed asset.
The New Tyne Crossing is considered to meet both of the IFRIC 12 criteria, and the ITA therefore
recognises the costs of the new tunnel on its Balance Sheet.

In most arrangements within the scope of the Application, the grantor will account for the
arrangement’s financing by recording and measuring a long term liability in accordance with IAS17.
This treatment reflects an obligation to pay the operator for the full value of the asset along with
the operator’s cost of finance. However in the New Tyne Crossing Project, TT2 Ltd. (the Operator)
receives a defined proportion of the total toll revenue and uses this to meet its cost of
constructing and operating the new tunnel and the existing tunnel. The ITA may therefore have no
long term obligation to transfer economic resources to TT2 Ltd. and hence should not recognise a
liability.

The provisions within the Payment Mechanism for payment of toll revenue to the operator are as

follows:

. In each month the ITA pays a Shadow Toll to the Operator; this being a fixed amount per
vehicle adjusted for changes in RPI;

. Throughout the Term, Formula Tolls for each vehicle type are defined to equal the
corresponding vehicle type Shadow Tolls;

. The Formula Tolls are the initially-defined sequence of tolls to be charged to users and
collected by the ITA. If the ITA varies a Real Toll from its corresponding Formula Toll, the
Operator is compensated for the effect of this adjustment on demand.

The ITA therefore has no exposure to any risk and reward associated with the Operator revenue,
but only an executory contract to transfer the Operator’s share of total revenues to the operator
as it is collected.

It therefore follows from this conclusion that the ITA has no long-term obligation to transfer
economic resources to the Operator, since the Operator revenue is in substance transferred
directly to it. The ITA therefore should not recognise a long term liability to finance the project
assets.

In relation to such an arrangement, the Code and the accompanying guidance do not provide clear
guidance. However, the guidance notes accompanying the Code suggest that the credit that
matches the asset should be a deferred income balance. The ITA has therefore recognised a
deferred credit balance, added to as each of Phase 1 and Phase 2 are completed, and equal to the
fair value of the asset addition under each Phase. This balance is then released to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement over the life of the contract.

15. Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a legal or
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits

or service potential and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. For
example, the Authority may be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the making
of a settlement or the payment of compensation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive
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Notes to the Accounts - Accounting Policies

Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Authority becomes aware of
the obligation, and are measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the
expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance
Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year - where it becomes
less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement
than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service.
Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered from
another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the relevant
service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Authority settles the
obligation.

16. Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a possible
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Authority. Contingent liabilities also arise in
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the
accounts.

17. Reserves

The Authority sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover
contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund Balance in
the Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is
incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in that year to score against the Surplus or Deficit
on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve
is then appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement
so that there is no net charge against the levy for the expenditure.

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial
instruments, retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the
Authority — these reserves are explained in the relevant policies.

18. Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that
does not result in the creation of a non-current asset as been charged as expenditure to the
relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. Where the
Authority has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources or
by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General Fund Balance
to the Capital Adjustment Account then reversed out the amounts charged so that there is no
impact on the levy.
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19. VAT

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from HM
Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income.

20. Overheads

The costs of central support services e.g. Finance and Legal Services have been allocated to the ITA
on the basis of Service Level Agreements in accordance with guidance given by the Chartered
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). A percentage is allocated to the ITA, Tyne
Tunnels and the New Tyne Crossing project in accordance with estimated work done on each area.

21. Tyne Tunnel Income

The majority of the income from tolls is received on a cash basis and so no accruals are necessary.
However, prepayments on permit accounts are also received. The balance outstanding on the
permit account has been accrued.

22. Group Accounts

The ITA is required by the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2012/13 to produce Group Accounts to include services provided to Council Tax payers in Tyne and
Wear by organisations other than the Authority itself in which the Authority has an interest.

Although there has been no definitive ruling by CIPFA or central government in relation to
Integrated Transport Authorities and Passenger Transport Executives, it is recognised that the
accounts of Nexus fall within the definition of a subsidiary. As such, group accounts have been
prepared on the basis of a full consolidation of the financial transactions and balances of the ITA
and Nexus. Nexus has been incorporated as a subsidiary, whereby the accounts of the two
organisations are combined and any intra-group transactions are cancelled out.

For the 2013/14 accounts, the ITA has fully complied with the requirements of the Code, providing
Group figures for the 2013/14 accounts and comparators for 2012/13. From 2010/11, Passenger
Transport Executives have been required to produce their accounts under International Financial
Reporting Standards, and as if the proper practices in relation to accounts applicable to a local
authority were, so far as appropriate, applicable to an Executive. The group financial statements
are prepared in accordance with the policies set out in the Statement of Accounting Policies above.
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Group Movement in Reserves Statement
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ITA ITA Total ITA Authority Total
Usable Unusable Reserves Share of Group
Reserves Reserves Nexus Reserves
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 April 2013 (55,184) (62,266) (117,450) (393,576) (511,026)
Movement in reserves during 2013/14
Surplus or (deficit) on provision of (2,613) - (2,613) (21,047) (23,660)
services
Other Comprehensive Income and - 2,500 2,500 (15,222) (12,722)
Expenditure
Total Comprehensive Income and (2,613) 2,500 (113) (36,269) (36,382)
Expenditure
Adjustments between accounting basis 13,406 (13,406) - - -
and funding basis under regulations
Net Increase/Decrease before Transfers 10,793 (10,906) (113) (36,269) (36,382)
to Earmarked Reserves
Transfer to/from Earmarked Reserves - - - - -
Increase/Decrease in 2013/14 10,793 (10,906) (113) (36,269) (36,382)
Balance at 31 March 2014 carried (44,391) (73,172) (117,563) (429,845) (547,408)
forward

Analysis of Usable and Unusable Reserves

ITA
Nexus
Total

Balance at 31 March 2014

carried forward

Usable Unusable Total

Reserves

£000
(44,391)
(38,125)

Reserves Group
Reserves

£000 £000
(73,172) (117,563)
(391,720) (429,845)

(82,516)

(464,892) (547,408)
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2012/13 Restated

ITA ITA Authority Total
Usable Unusable Total ITA Share of Group
Reserves Reserves Reserves Nexus Reserves
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 April 2012 (58,634) (59,862) (118,496) (366,388) (484,884)
Movement in reserves during 2012/13
Surplus or (deficit) on provision of (1,154) - (1,254) (32,443) (33,597)
services
Other Comprehensive Income and - 2,200 2,200 5,255 7,455
Expenditure
Total Comprehensive Income and (1,154) 2,200 1,046 (27,188) (26,142)
Expenditure
Adjustments between accounting basis 4,604 (4,604) - - -
and funding basis under regulations
Net Increase/Decrease before Transfers 3,450 (2,404) 1,046 (27,188) (26,142)
to Earmarked Reserves
Transfer to/from Earmarked Reserves - - - - -
Increase/Decrease in 2012/13 3,450 (2,404) 1,046 (27,188) (26,142)
Balance at 31 March 2013 carried (55,184) (62,266) (117,450) (393,576) (511,026)

forward

Analysis of Usable and Unusable Reserves

ITA
Nexus
Total
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Balance at 31 March 2013
carried forward

Total
Group
Reserves
£000

Usable Unusable
Reserves Reserves

£000
(55,184)
(36,047)

£000
(62,266) (117,450)
(357,529) (393,576)

(91,231) (419,795) (511,026)
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Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

— 2012/13 E——
Restated
Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income Expenditure
£000 £000 £000
2,735 - 2,735 Corporate and

Democratic Core
Highways and Transport

18,079  (25,088) (7,009) - Tyne Tunnels
172,701 (105,527) 67,174 - Other Highways and
Transport Services
133 - 133 Non-Distributed Costs

193,648 (130,615) 63,033 Cost of Services

12,172 (1,994) 10,178 Financing and
Investment Income and
Expenditure (Note 3)

574 (Gain)/Loss on disposal
of fixed assets
(107,382) Non-Specific Grant
Income (Note 5)
(33,597) (Surplus) / Deficit on
Provision of Services
95 Taxation Charge for the
Year
7,360 Re-measurement of the
defined benefit liability
7,455 Other Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure
(26,142) Total Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure
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+— 2013/14 —

Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income Expenditure

£000 £000 £000
2,726 - 2,726

21,934  (29,405) (7,471)
175,949 (101,970) 73,979

366 - 366
200,975 (131,375) 69,600

11,697 (1,080) 10,617

(24)
(103,853)
 (23,660)
(702)
(12,020)

(12,722)

(36,382)



Group Balance Sheet
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31 March
2013
£000

815,139 Property, Plant and Equipment
2,338 Intangible Assets
1 Long Term Investments
817,478 Long Term Assets
18,000 Short Term Investments
1,136 Inventories
30,303 Short Term Debtors
101,728 Cash and Cash Equivalents
151,167 Current Assets
(4,694) Short Term Borrowing
(32,754) Short Term Creditors
(5,501) New Tyne Crossing - Deferred Income

(10,125) Grants and Contributions Receipts in Advance

(53,074) Current Liabilities
(122,222) New Tyne Crossing - Deferred Income
(1,049) Provisions

(6,379) Grants and Contributions Receipts in Advance

(202,893) Long Term Borrowing
(66,730) Other Long Term Liabilities
(5,272) Deferred Tax Liability
(404,545) Long Term Liabilities
511,026 Net Assets

(91,231) Usable Reserves
(419,795) Unusable Reserves
(511,026)

Chief Finance Officer’s Certificate

Notes

~N

10

11

12

13

12

14
15

16
17

31 March
2014
£000

830,187
1,909
1

832,097

20,500
913
22,672

86,904

130,989
(7,941
(27,933
(5,092

(8,404

)

)

)

)

(49,370)
(117,122)
(735)
(3,574)
(196,967)
(43,340)
(4,570)

)

(366,308
547,408

(82,516)

(464,892)
(547,408)

| certify that the accounts set out on pages 85 to 106 present a true and fair view of the financial

position of the Tyne and Wear Integrated Transport Authority as at 31 March 2014

Signed

Paul Woods
Chief Finance Officer, North East Combined Authority

Date:
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Group Cash Flow Statement

2012/13 Notes 2013/14
Restated
£000 £000
(36,837) Net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of (24,362)
services
(20,006) Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the 19 (1,049)
provision of services for non cash movements
56,539 Adjustments for items included in the net 19 47,350

surplus or deficit on the provision of services
that are investing and financing activities

(304) Net cash flows from Operating Activities 21,939

(9,803) Investing activities 20 (11,577)

4,151 Financing activities 21 4,462

(5,956) Net increase or decrease in cash and cash 14,824

equivalents

(95,772) Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of (101,728)
the reporting period

(101,728) Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 10 (86,904)

reporting period
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Group Notes to the Accounts

Group Note 1: Group Accounts

Under the Code of Practice for Local Authority Accounting 2013/14, authorities with interests in
subsidiaries, associates and/or joint ventures (jointly controlled entities) shall prepare Group
Accounts in addition to their single entity financial statements, unless their interest is considered
not material.

Nexus is the only subsidiary for the Tyne and Wear Integrated Transport Authority, and the group
accounts have been prepared on a consolidation basis. From 2010/11, Passenger Transport
Executives (including Nexus) have a legal requirement under the Accounting and Audit Regulations
2011 to produce their single entity accounts on an IFRS basis in accordance with the Code of
Practice. The accounting policies adopted by Nexus are now largely aligned with those of the ITA,
with the following minor differences:

Deferred Tax

The ITA does not require a policy on Deferred Tax. Deferred taxation (which arises from the
differences in the timing of the recognition of items, principally depreciation, in the accounts and
by the tax authorities) has been calculated by Nexus on the liability method. Deferred tax is
provided on timing differences which will probably reverse, at the rates of tax likely to be in force
at the time of reversal.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

Nexus uses the following estimated useful lives for each class of assets:

Freehold buildings 40 years

Short leasehold buildings  over the lease term
Infrastructure assets 20 to 50 years
Plant and Equipment 5to 30 years
Vehicles 5to 10 years
Marine Vessels 30 years
Intangibles 5to 10 years

Useful lives used by the ITA can be found on p. 34 of the single entity accounts.
Nexus’ policy is to commence depreciation on assets with effect from the month following

capitalisation, whereas the ITA charges a full year of depreciation in the year of acquisition.

Where Group Accounts are required, authorities must produce the main financial statements and
the disclosure notes which add value to the understanding of the accounts. Disclosure notes have
been produced to add more detail where the Group Accounts are materially different from the
single entity accounts.

Copies of the single entity accounts for Nexus are available from www.nexus.org.uk
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Group Notes to the Accounts

Group Note 2: Integrated Transport Authority Lead Officers

During 2013/14, the ITA was principally advised by three senior officers employed by the lead
Authority. These officers were also non-executive directors of Nexus. During 2013/14 these
officers were as follows:

Responsibility Title Officer
Policy / Legal / Administration Clerk Pat Ritchie
Financial Advice Treasurer Paul Woods
Transport Policy Advice Policy Advisor Harvey Emms

The Nexus Board during 2013/14 comprised the above officers and the following Nexus Directors:

Director General Bernard Garner

Director of Customer Services Tobyn Hughes

Director of Finance and Resources John Fenwick

Director of Rail and Infrastructure Ken Mackay (until 01/12/13)
Director of Rail and Infrastructure Raymond Johnstone (from 01/01/14)
Non-Executive Director Peter Wignall

Group Note 3: Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

2012/13 2013/14
Restated
£000 £000
9,502 Interest payable and similar charges 9,147
2,670 Interest on net defined benefit liability 2,550
(1,994) Interest receivable and similar income (1,080)
10,178 10,617

Group Note 4: Grant Income Credited to Services

The following grants and contributions were credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services:

2012/13 2013/14
£000 £000
(1,254) Local Sustainable Transport Fund (2,470)
(14,867) Local Transport Plan (12,309)
(3,235) North East Smart Ticketing Initiative (658)
(24,674) Metro Rail Grant (24,802)
(2,418) Better Bus Area Fund (2,063)
(3,455) Heavy Rail Grant (3,886)
(347) Other Grants and Contributions (1,205)
(50,250) Total Page 135 (47,393)
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Group Note 5: Non-Specific Grant Income

The following amounts are included within the CIES line ‘Non-Specific Grant Income’:

2012/13
£000

(70,207) Levy on Tyne and Wear Authorities
(37,175) Nexus Capital Grants

(107,382)

2013/14
£000
(70,207)

(33,646)
(103,853)

Group Note 6: Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements in 2013/14:

Cost or Valuation

At 1 April 2013
Additions

Disposals

Transfers from assets
under construction
At 31 March 2014

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment

At 1 April 2013
Depreciation charge

Derecognition - disposals

Impairment
At 31 March 2014
Net Book Value

At 31 March 2014
At 31 March 2013

Other  Vehicles, Infrastructure Assets Under Total Property,
Land and Plant, Assets Construction Plant and
Buildings Furniture & Equipment

Equipment

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
12,971 30,801 982,920 34,236 1,060,928
- - 1,085 40,083 41,168

- (145) (394) - (539)

- 517 44,873 (45,491) (101)
12,971 31,173 1,028,484 28,828 1,101,456
(468) (21,633) (223,688) - (245,789)
(38) (1,164) (23,877) - (25,080)

- 141 394 - 535

- - (936) - (936)
(506) (22,656) (248,107) - (271,269)
12,465 8,517 780,377 28,828 830,186
12,503 9,168 759,232 34,236 815,139
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Group Note 6 (Continued)

Cost or Valuation

At 1 April 2012
Additions

Disposals

Transfers from assets
under construction

At 31 March 2013

Other  Vehicles,

Infrastructure Assets Under Total Property,

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment

At 1 April 2012
Depreciation charge

Derecognition - disposals

At 31 March 2013

Net Book Value

At 31 March 2013
At 31 March 2012

Land and Plant, Assets Construction Plant and

Buildings Furniture & Equipment
Equipment

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

12,971 28,264 915,050 56,482 1,012,767

- - 683 48,820 49,503

- (23) (759) - (782)

- 2,560 67,946 (71,066) (560)

12,971 30,801 982,920 34,236 1,060,928

(430) (20,282) (201,255) - (221,967)

(37) (1,374) (22,615) - (24,026)

- 23 182 - 205

(468) (21,633) (223,688) - (245,789)

12,503 9,168 759,232 34,236 815,139

12,541 7,982 713,795 56,482 790,800
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Group Note 7: Intangible Assets

2012/13 2013/14
£000 £000
Cost or Valuation
3,015 At 1 April 3,575
Additions:
560 Transfers from assets under construction 101
3,575 At 31 March 3,676

Depreciation and Impairment

825 Accumulated at 1 April 1,237
412 Depreciation provided during the period 530
1,237 Accumulated at 31 March 1,767
2,338 Net Book Value 1,909

Group Note 8: Financial Instruments

31 March 2013 31 March 2014
£000 £000

Long Term Investments:
1 Unquoted Equity Investment at cost 1

Short Term Investments:

18,000 Bank deposits 20,500

Short Term Debtors:

30,303 Short Term Debtors 22,672
Borrowing:
(4,694) Short term borrowing (7,941)
(202,893) Financial liabilities at amortised cost - long term (196,967)
borrowing
(207,587) (204,908)

Other Long Term Liabilities:

(66,730) Pensions Liability (43,340)

Short Term Creditors:

(32,754) Short Term Creditors (27,933)
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Group Note 9: Short Term Debtors

31 March 2013
£000
17,036 Central government bodies
7,768 Other local authorities
5 NHS bodies
113 Public corporations and trading funds
5,381 Other entities and individuals

30,303 Total

31 March 2014
£000

11,124

6,518

3

135

4,892

22,672

Group Note 10: Cash and Cash Equivalents

31 March 2013
£000
74,778 Cash at bank and in hand

26,950 Short-term deposits with building societies

101,728 Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

31 March 2014
£000

53,154

33,750

86,904

Group Note 11: Short Term Creditors

31 March 2013
£000

(1,239

(3,130

Central government bodies
Other local authorities
(4) NHS Bodies
(16) Public Corporations
(28,466) Other entities and individuals

—_— ~— — ~—

(32,754) Total
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Group Note 12: Grants and Contributions Receipts in Advance

The Authority has received a number of grants and contributions that have yet to be recognised as
income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as they have conditions
attached to them that will require the monies to be returned to the giver if they are not fulfilled.

The balances at the year end are as follows:

31 March 2013
£000
(303) Local Transport Plan

(3,331) Local Sustainable Transport Fund - Schools Go Smarter
(4,888) Local Sustainable Transport Fund - Go Smarter to Work

(4,879) North East Smart Ticketing Initiative

(2,554) Better Bus Area Fund
(549) Other

(16,504) Total

31 March 2014

£000
(386)
(2,577)
(4,076)

(4,221
(491

)
)
(227)
(11,978)

(10,125) Shown as Short Term Liability on Balance Sheet
(6,379) Shown as Long Term Liability on Balance Sheet

(16,504)

(8,404)
(3,574)

(11,978)

Group Note 13: Provisions

Provisions in the Group Accounts relate wholly to Nexus.

Provisions are established to meet liabilities or losses that are likely or certain to be incurred, but
where the amounts or timings are uncertain. Provisions during the year can be analysed as follows:

Insurance Employment Capital Total
Excess (1) Related (2) Expenditure (3)
£000 £000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2013 (246) (419) (384) (1,049)
Additional Provisions Made (85) (77) - (162)
Utilised during the year 25 451 - 476
Unused amounts reversed - - - -
At 31 March 2014 (306) (45) (384) (735)

(1)  Public liability claims for minor accidents to the public, and Employer’s liability claims for
work related illnesses received for incidents prior to the year end.

(2) Costs for certain employment related obligations and benefits.

(3) Claims for additional costs associated with the Nexus capital programme.
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Group Note 14: Defined Benefit Pension Scheme

The ITA and Nexus both participate in the Tyne and Wear Pension Fund (the Fund) administered
locally by South Tyneside Council, which is part of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).
This is a funded defined benefit scheme, meaning that the Authority and employees pay
contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pension liabilities with
investment assets.

In addition, there are arrangements for the award of discretionary post-retirement benefits upon
early retirement - this is an unfunded defined benefit arrangement, under which liabilities are
recognised when awards are made. However, there are no investment assets built up to meet
these pension liabilities, and cash has to be generated to meet actual pension payments as they
eventually fall due.

Principal Mortality and Financial Assumptions

The principal assumptions used by the actuary are:

ITA Nexus
2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14
Mortality assumptions:-

Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:
Men 21.7 23.0 21.7 23.0
Women 23.9 24.6 23.9 24.6
Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 4.1% 4.2% 4.3% 4.3%
Rate of inflation - Retail Price Index 3.3% 3.2% 3.6% 3.3%
Rate of inflation - Consumer Price Index 2.4% 2.2% 2.3% 2.7%
Rate of increase in pensions 2.4% 2.2% 2.3% 2.7%
Rate of increase to deferred pensions 2.4% 2.2% 2.3% 2.7%
Rate of increase in salaries 3.8% 3.7% 3.8% 4.6%

The approximate split of assets for the Fund as a whole is shown in the table below:

31 March 2013 31 March 2014

% % % %

Quoted Unquoted Total

Equity investments 68.0 58.1 8.7 66.8
Property 9.0 0.0 8.5 8.5
Government bonds 7.0 3.5 0.0 3.5
Corporate bonds 11.0 11.5 0.0 11.5
Cash 1.6 2.9 0.0 2.9
Other* 3.4 5.0 1.8 6.8
Total 100.0 81.0 19.0 100.0

* Other holdings may include hedge funds, currency holdings, asset allocation futures and other
financial instruments. It is assumed that these will get a return in line with equities.
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Group Note 14 (Continued)

Funded Benefits

Reconciliation of funded status to Balance Sheet

Fair value of assets
Present value of funded defined benefit
obligation

Funded status
Impact of minimum funding
requirement / asset ceiling under

Asset / (Liability) recognised on the
balance sheet

ITA Nexus
2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14
£000 £000 £000 £000

24,990 34,920 154,540 159,410
(32,270) (32,640) (207,880) (197,010)
(7,280) 2,280 (53,340) (37,600)

- (2,280) - -

(7,280) - (53,340) (37,600)

Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits
We recognise the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are earned
by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge
we are required to make against the levy is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost
of post employment/retirement benefits is reversed out of the General Fund via the Movement in
Reserves Statement. The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement and the General Fund Balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement

during the year:

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Cost of Services:

Current service cost

Past service costs
Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure:

Interest on net defined benefit
liability/(asset)

Pension expense recognised in
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services

ITA Nexus
2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14
£000 £000 £000 £000
10 10 3,660 4,350
- - - 260
250 190 2,150 2,120
260 200 5,810 6,730
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Group Note 14 (Continued)

Other Post Employment Benefit
charged to the Comprehensive Income

and Expenditure Statement:
Return on plan assets (in excess of)/ (1,680)

below that recognised in net interest

Actuarial (gains)/losses due to 3,780
changes in financial assumptions

Actuarial (gains)/losses due to -
changes in demographic assumptions

Actuarial (gains)/losses due to 20
changes in liability assumptions

Total actuarial (gains)/losses 2,120

Adjustment in respect of paragraph 58 -

Total amount recognised in Other 2,120
Comprehensive Income

Total amount recognised in 2,380
Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

(120)  (10,040) 3,480
(1,670) 15,320 (16,940)
860 - 1,340
1,150 (280) (2,320)
220 5,000 (14,440)
2,280 - -

2,500 5,000 (14,440)
2,700 10,810 (7,710)

Assets and Liabilities in Relation to Post-employment Benefits

Changes to the present value of defined benefit obligation during the accounting period

ITA Nexus
2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14
£000 £000 £000 £000
Opening balance at 1 April (28,630) (32,270)  (186,200) (207,880)
Current service cost (10) (10) (3,660) (4,350)
Interest cost (1,290) (1,300) (8,600) (8,800)
Contributions by participants - - (1,060) (1,090)
Actuarial gains/(losses) on liabilities - (3,780) 1,670 (15,320) 16,940
financial assumptions
Actuarial gains/(losses) on liabilities - - (860) - (1,340)
demographic assumptions
Actuarial gains/(losses) on liabilities - (20) (1,150) 280 2,320
experience
Net benefits paid out 1,460 1,280 6,680 7,450
Past service costs ) ) ) (260)
(32,640) (207,880) (197,010)

Closing balance at 31 March 32,270),,
49



100

Group Notes to the Accounts

Group Note 14 (Continued)

Reconciliation of fair value of the scheme assets:

ITA Nexus

2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14

£000 £000 £000 £000

Opening balance at 1 April 22,800 24,990 136,240 154,540
Interest income on assets 1,040 1,110 6,450 6,680
Remeasurement gains/(losses) on asset 1,680 120 10,040 (3,480)
Employer contributions 930 9,980 7,430 8,030
Contributions by scheme participants - - 1,060 1,090
Net benefits paid out (1,460) (1,280) (6,680) (7,450)
Closing balance at 31 March 24,990 34,920 154,540 159,410

The expected return on scheme assets is determined by considering the expected returns available
on the assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest
investments are based on gross redemption yields as at the balance sheet date.

Expected returns on equity investments reflect long-term real rates of return experienced in the
respective markets.

The split of the defined benefit obligation at the last valuation date between the various categories
of members was as follows:

ITA: Active Members 26%; Deferred Pensioners 13%; Pensioners 61%

Nexus: Active Members 35%; Deferred Pensioners 11%; Pensioners 54%

As a result of the £9m lump sum payment to the Pension Fund made during 2013/14, ITA
contributions for the next three years have been set to nil. Any deficit will be assessed at the next
triennial valuation date of 31 March 2016.

Nexus' regular contributions to the Fund for the accounting period ending 31 March 2015 are
estimated to be £8.06m.

Page 144



Group Notes to the Accounts

101

Group Note 14 (Continued) - Unfunded Benefits

Reconciliation of unfunded defined benefit obligation to Balance Sheet

ITA Nexus

2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14

£000 £000 £000 £000

Present value of unfunded defined (970) (960) (5,140) (4,780)
benefit obligation

Pension (Liability) recognised on the (970) (960) (5,140) (4,780)

balance sheet

Breakdown of amounts recognised in Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services and Other

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

ITA Nexus
2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14
£000 £000 £000 £000
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure:
Interest on net defined benefit 40 40 230 200
liability
Pension expense recognised in 40 40 230 200
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services
Other Post Employment Benefit
charged to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement:
Actuarial (gains)/losses due to 70 (30) 290 (160)
changes in financial assumptions
Actuarial (gains)/losses due to - 30 130
changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial (gains)/losses due to 10 - (130) (50)
changes in liability assumptions
Total amount recognised in Other 80 - 160 (80)
Comprehensive Income
Total amount recognised in 120 40 390 120
Comprehensive Income and Page 145
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Group Note 14 (Continued) - Unfunded Benefits

Changes to the present value of unfunded defined benefit obligation during the accounting

period

Opening defined benefit obligation
Current service cost

Interest expense on defined benefit
obligation

Contributions by participants
Actuarial gains/(losses) on liabilities -
financial assumptions

Actuarial gains/(losses) on liabilities -
demographic assumptions

Actuarial gains/(losses) on liabilities -
experience

Net benefits paid out
Past service costs
Closing defined benefit obligation

Changes to the fair value of assets during the accounting period

Opening fair value of assets
Contributions by the employer
Net benefits paid out

Closing fair value of assets

ITA Nexus
2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14
£000 £000 £000 £000
(900) (970) (5,230) (5,140)
(40) (40) (230) (200)
(70) (30) (290) 160
- 30 - (130)
(10) - 130 50
50 50 480 480
(970) (960) (5,140) (4,780)
ITA Nexus
2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14
£000 £000 £000 £000
50 50 480 480
(50) (50) (480) (480)
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Group Note 15: Deferred Tax Liability
Deferred Taxation in the Group Accounts relates wholly to Nexus.

The Balance Sheet figure comprises:

31 March 2013
£000
(5,049) Excess of Capital Allowances over depreciation
(1,492) Roll over relief on capital gains
127 Other timing differences
1,142 Tax effect of losses

(5,272)

31 March 2014
£000

(4,573)

(1,362)

124

1,241

(4,570)

Group Note 16: Usable Reserves

31 March 2013
£000
(2,382) ITA General Fund
(40,477) Tyne Tunnels General Fund
(12,325) Metro Reinvigoration Reserve
(15,838) Nexus Revenue Reserves
(20,209) Nexus Capital Reserves

(91,231) Total Usable Reserves

31 March 2014
£000

Group Note 17: Unusable Reserves

Details of movements on the Revaluation Reserve, Capital Adjustment Account and Financial
Instruments Adjustment Account are shown on p.42-43 of the ITA single entity accounts. These

reserves relate to the ITA only.

31 March 2013
£000
(10,290) Revaluation Reserve
(60,397) Capital Adjustment Account
171 Financial Instruments Adjustment Account
66,730 Pensions Reserve
(375,452) Nexus Grant Deferred Account
(40,557) Nexus Unusable Capital Reserve

(419,795) Total Unusable Reserves
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(10,128)
(64,103)

99

43,340
(396,194)
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Group Note 17 (Continued)

Pensions Reserve:
2012/13 Restated
£000

61,920 Balance at 1 April
7,360 Remeasurement of the net Defined Benefit liability

6,340 Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits
debited or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

(8,890) Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments
to pensioners payable in the year

66,730 Balance at 31 March

Nexus Grant Deferred Account:
2012/13
£000
(343,075) Balance at 1 April
15,700 Capital Grants Released
(48,077) Capital Grants Applied

(375,452) Balance at 31 March

Nexus Unusable Capital Reserve:
2012/13
£000
(43,006) Balance at 1 April
- Adjustment
- Additions
2,449 Depreciation

(40,557) Balance at 31 March
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2013/14

£000
66,730
(12,020)

7,170

(18,540)

43,340

2013/14
£000
(375,452)
17,312
(38,054)

(396,194)

2013/14
£000
(40,557)

2,651

(37,906)
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Group Note 18: Cash Flow Statement - Operating Activities

The cash flows for operating activities includes the following items relating to interest paid and
received:

2012/13 2013/14
£000 £000
1,994 Interest received 1,057
(9,502) Interest paid (9,147)

Group Note 19: Cash Flow Statement - Adjustments to Net Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services for non-cash movements and items that are investing and financing activities

2012/13 2013/14
Restated

£000 £000

(33,502) Surplus or deficit on the provision of services (24,362)

Adjustments to Surplus or Deficit on Provision of
Services for Non-Cash Movements

(24,438) Depreciation and impairment (26,546)
(574) Gain / loss on disposal of non-current assets 24
(12,254) (Increase) / Decrease in Creditors 14,058
6,562 Increase / (Decrease) in Debtors (5,241)
(296) Increase / Decrease in Inventories (223)
2,550 Movement in Pension Liability 11,370
5,109 Other non-cash items charged to the net surplus or 5,509
deficit on the provision of services
(23,341) (1,049)

Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or
deficit on the provision of services that are investing
and financing activities

57,846 Capital grants credited to surplus / deficit on provision 48,923
of services
(1,307) Other adjustments for items that are financing or (1,573)
investing activities
56,539 47,350
(304) Net cash flow from operating activities 21,939
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Group Note 20: Cash Flow Statement - Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Total Total
2012/13 2013/14
£000 £000
49,649 Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment 41,008
property and intangible assets
65,000 Purchase of short-term and long-term investments 30,500

- Other payments for investing activities -

(3) Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and (28)
equipment, investment property and intangible assets
(70,000) Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments (28,000)
(54,449) Other receipts from investing activities (55,057)
(9,803) Net cash flows from investing activities (11,577)
Group Note 21: Cash Flow Statement - Cash Flows from Financing Activities

2012/13 2013/14
£000 £000

- Cash receipts of short and long-term borrowing -

- Other receipts from financing activities -
2,781 Repayments of short and long-term borrowing 4,449
1,370 Other payments for financing activities 13
4,151 Net cash flows from financing activities 4,462
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Abbreviations

Accruals

Actuarial gains or losses
(pensions)

Amortise

Assets

Assets Held for Sale

Balances

Budgets

Capital Expenditure

Capital Adjustment Account

Capital Receipts

Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the
UK

Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Account

The symbol “k” following a figure represents £ thousand.
The symbol “m” following a figure represents £ million.

Income and expenditure are recognised as they are earned or
incurred, not as money is received or paid.

For a defined benefit pension scheme, the changes in actuarial
deficits or surpluses that arise either because events have not
coincided with the actuarial assumptions made for the last
valuation (experience gains or losses) or the actuarial assumptions
themselves have changed.

To write off gradually and systematically a given amount of money
within a specific number of time periods.

Iltems of worth which are measurable in terms of money.

Those assets, primarily long-term assets, that the Authority wishes
to dispose of through sale to others.

The total level of surplus funds the Authority has accumulated over
the years.

A statement of the Authority’s forecast expenditure, that is, net
revenue expenditure for the year.

Expenditure on the acquisition of a fixed asset or expenditure
which adds to and not merely maintains the value of an existing
fixed asset.

The account accumulates (on the debit side) the write down of the
historical cost of fixed assets as they are consumed by depreciation
and impairments or written off on disposal. It accumulates (on the
credit side) the resources that have been set aside to finance
capital expenditure. The same process applies to capital
expenditure that is only capital by statutory definition (revenue
expenditure funded from capital under statute). The balance on
the account represents timing differences between the amount of
the historical cost of fixed assets that has been consumed and the
amount that has been financed in accordance with statutory
requirements.

Monies received from the disposal of land and other fixed assets,
and from the repayment of grants and loans made by the
Authority.

The Code specifies the principles and practices of accounting to
give a “true and fair” view of the financial position and transactions
of a local authority

This account summarises the resources that have been generated
and consumed in providing services and managing the Authority
during the financial year.

D 11
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Consistency

Contingent Asset

Contingent Liability

Contingent Rent

Corporate and Democratic
Core

Creditors

Current Service Cost
(Pensions)

Curtailment (Pensions)

Debtors

Defined Benefit Scheme
(Pensions)

Earmarked Reserve

Emoluments

The principle that the accounting treatment of like items within an
accounting period and from one period to the next is the same.

A contingent asset is a possible asset arising from past events
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the Authority’s
control.

A contingent liability is either (i) a possible obligation arising from
past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the Authority’s control, or (ii) a present obligation from past
events where it is not probable that a transfer of economic benefits
will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability.

The portion of the lease payments that is not fixed in amount but is
based on the future amount of a factor that changes other than
with the passage of time, e.g. future price indices, future market
rates of interest.

The corporate and democratic core comprises all activities which
local authorities engage in specifically because they are elected,
multi-purpose authorities.

An amount owed by the Authority for work done, goods received
or services rendered, but for which payment has not been made.

The increase in the present value of a defined benefit scheme’s
liabilities expected to arise from employee service in the current
period.

For a defined benefit pension scheme an event that reduces the
expected years of future service of present employees or reduces
for a number of employees the accrual of defined benefits for
some or all of their future service. Examples include termination of
employee’s service through redundancy or amendment of the
terms affecting future benefits.

Monies owed to the Authority but not received at the balance
sheet date.

A pension or other retirement scheme other than a defined
contribution scheme. Usually, the scheme rules define the benefits
independently of the contributions payable, and the benefits are
not directly related to the investments of the scheme. The scheme
may be funded or unfunded.

The measure of the wearing out, consumption or other reduction
in the useful economic life of an asset.

Payments received in cash and benefits for employment.
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Events after the Balance
Sheet Date

Expected Rate of Return on

Pension Assets

Fair Value

Fees and Charges

Finance Lease

Financial Instrument

Financial Instruments
Adjustment Account

General Fund

Going Concern

Impairment

Intangible Assets

Interest Cost (Pensions)

Investment Properties

Liabilities

Events after the balance sheet date are those events, favourable
and unfavourable, that occur between the balance sheet date and
the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue.

This is an actuarially calculated estimate of the return on the
scheme’s investment assets during the year.

The fair value of an asset is the price at which it could be
exchanged in an arm’s length transaction less, where applicable,
any grants receivable towards the purchase or use of the assets.

Income arising from the provision of services.

A lease that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of a fixed asset to the lessee. The payments usually
cover the full cost of the asset together with a return for the cost of
finance.

Document (such as a cheque, draft, bond, share, bill of exchange,
futures or options contract) that has a monetary value or evidences
a legally enforceable (binding) agreement between two or more
parties regarding a right to payment of money.

The reserve records the accumulated difference between the
financing costs included in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Account and the accumulated financing costs required
in accordance with regulations to be charged to the General Fund
Balance.

The total services of the Authority, the net cost of which is met by
the levy, Government Grants and toll income.

The concept that the Authority will remain in operational existence
for the foreseeable future, in particular that the revenue accounts
and balance sheet assume no intention to curtail significantly the
scale of operations.

A reduction in the value of a fixed asset below its carrying amount
on the balance sheet resulting from causes such as obsolescence or
physical damage.

An asset that is not physical in nature, e.g. software licenses.

For a defined benefit scheme, the expected increase during the
period in the present value of the scheme liabilities because the
benefits are one period closer to settlement.

Interest in land and buildings where construction work and
development has been completed and the asset is held for its
investment potential, any rental income being negotiated at arms
length.

Any amounts owed to individuals or organisations which will have
to be paid at some time in the future.
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Liquid Resources

Materiality

Minimum Revenue Provision

(MRP)
Movement in Reserves

Statement

Net Book Value

Net Debt
Operating Leases

Property, Plant and
Equipment (PPE)

Provisions

Prudence

Public Works Loan Board

Related Party Transactions

Reserves

Residual Value

Current asset investments that are readily disposable by the
Authority without disrupting its business and are either readily
convertible to known amounts of cash at or close to the carrying
amount or traded in an active market.

An item is material if its omission, non-disclosure or misstatement
in the financial statements could be expected to lead to a
distortion of the view given by the financial statements.

An amount charged by the Authority to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Account, for debt redemption or for the discharge
of other credit liabilities.

The statement shows the movement in the year on the different
reserves held by the Authority.

The amount at which fixed assets are included in the balance sheet
being the historical cost or current value less the cumulative
amounts provided for depreciation.

The Authority’s borrowings less cash and liquid resources.
Leases other than a finance lease.

Assets that yield benefits to the Authority and the services it
provides for a period of more than one year. Examples include
land, buildings and vehicles.

These are sums set aside to meet liabilities or losses which have
been incurred but where the amount and/or timing of such costs
are uncertain.

This accounting concept requires that revenue is not anticipated
until realisation can be assessed with reasonable certainty.
Provision is made for all known liabilities whether the amount is
certain or can only be estimated in the light of information
available.

This is a Government agency which provides loans to local
authorities at favourable rates.

A related party transaction is the transfer of assets or liabilities or
the performance of service by, to or for a related party irrespective
of whether a charge is made. An example could be the purchase,
sale, lease, rental or hire of assets between related parties.

These are sums set aside to meet future possible liabilities where
there is no certainty about whether or not these liabilities will be
incurred.

The net realisable value of an asset at the end of its useful life.
Residual values are based on prices prevailing at the date of the
acquisition (or revaluation) of the asset and do not take account of
expected future price changes.
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Revaluation Reserve

Revenue Expenditure

Revenue Expenditure Funded
from Capital Under Statute

Unusable Reserves

Usable Reserves

Useful Life

The reserve records the accumulated gains on the fixed assets held
by the Authority arising from increases in value as a result of
inflation or other factors.

Expenditure on providing day-to-day services, for example
employee cost and premises costs.

Expenditure which may be properly incurred, but which does not
result in an asset owned by the Authority.

The Authority cannot use this category of reserves to provide
services. Includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses
(e.g. revaluation reserve), where amounts would only become
available to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves
that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves
Statement line “adjustments between accounting basis and
funding basis under regulation”.

Those reserves that the Authority may use to provide services,
subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any
statutory limitations on their use.

The period over which the Authority will derive benefits from the
use of a fixed asset.
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2013/14

FOREWORD JUNE 2014

On the establishment of the Durham, Gateshead, Newcastle upon Tyne, Northumberland, North
Tyneside, South Tyneside and Sunderland Combined Authority (known as the ‘North East
Combined Authority) the Tyne and Wear ITA ceased to exist and its assets, liabilities and functions
were all taken over by the new Combined Authority.

This Annual Governance Statement sets out those arrangements which were in place in Tyne and
Wear ITA during 2013/14. A review of all aspects of corporate governance for the new Combined
Authority will take place during 2014/15 and be reported with that year’s accounts.

SECTION 1: SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

The Tyne and Wear Integrated Transport Authority (ITA) is responsible for ensuring that its
business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards and that public money is
safeguarded and properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The
ITA also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure
continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a
combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. The ITA also has a general power of
promoting well-being within its area that was introduced by the Local Transport Act 2008.

In discharging this overall responsibility, the ITA is responsible for putting in place proper
arrangements (known as a Governance Framework) for:

(i)  The governance of our affairs and
(i)  Facilitating the effective exercise of our functions, including arrangements for the
management of risk.

In relation to (i) we have adopted a Local Code of Corporate Governance (“Local Code”) which is
consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in
Local Government. A copy is available on our website at www.twita.gov.uk.

The Local Code evidences our commitment to achieving good governance and demonstrates how
we comply with the governance standards recommended by CIPFA. It has been updated and
approved as part of this review.

In addition to the Local Code, the authority’s financial management arrangements conform with
the governance requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in
Local Government (2010) as set out in the Application Note to Delivering Good Governance in
Local Government: A Framework.

In relation to (I1) the ITA has put in place a system of internal control designed to manage risk to a
reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and
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can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of

internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to:

(a) Identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of our policies, aims and objectives; and

(b) To evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised, the impact should they be realised,
and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

SECTION 2: THE PURPOSE OF THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

In addition to the above, the ITA’s Governance Framework comprises the systems and processes,
cultures and values, through which the ITA is directed and controlled and its activities through
which it accounts to, engages with and leads the community. It enables the ITA to monitor the
achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the
delivery of appropriate, cost effective services.

The governance framework has been in place at the ITA for the year ended 31 March 2014 and up
to the date of the approval of the Annual Report and Accounts.

This Annual Governance Statement explains how we have complied with the Code and also meets
the requirements of Regulation 4(3) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 which requires all
relevant public bodies to prepare an Annual Governance Statement.

SECTION 3: THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The main features of our Governance Framework are described in our Local Code and are
summarised below:

CORE PRINCIPLE 1: FOCUSSING ON OUR PURPOSE AND OUTCOMES FOR RESIDENTS

Identifying and communicating the ITA’s vision of purpose and intended outcomes for residents
and service users

The ITA’s priorities were set out in the Passenger Transport Policy Statement, published every
three years. With the ITA having overall responsibility for the Tyne and Wear Local Transport Plan
2011-2021, we have sought to include our vision and policies within our LTP. The LTP sets out the
ITA’s policies, priorities and implementation plan for action in the coming years, and included
significant consultation with residents during the development stage. We consulted with
Members, residents and businesses during 2010 on the vision and objectives. This helped inform
our adopted vision and objectives and a chapter of the finalised LTP documents is dedicated to
outlining changes to the document post-consultation.

There is a policy work programme enabling us to secure effective and forward looking decisions
while also being flexible enough to be able to react to emerging changes. This is strengthened by bi

-monthly policy seminars for Members.

Reviewing the ITA’s vision and the implications for its governance arrangements
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We are assisted by the work of our internal and external auditors, in helping to identify strengths
and weaknesses in our performances, governance and internal control.

We have been working with colleagues in Nexus and across Tyne and Wear to implement the
opportunities presented by the Local Transport Act 2008 and the transition to the Integrated
Transport Authority. We continued to support the ITA informal working groups to help the ITA to
discharge its broader remit. These are the LTP Working Group, the Equality and Diversity Working
Group, the Bus Strategy Working Group and the Tyne Tunnels Working Group. We also continued
to support the Metro Sub Committee, Standards Committee, Audit Committee and Scrutiny
Advisory Group.

The ITA has been closely involved in the review of transport governance across the Tyne and Wear
City Region. This strengthened the role of the ITA in developing transport strategy and policy at the
City Region level. More recently, the ITA has been working closely with the North East Local
Enterprise Partnership on transport-related issues — including the establishment of Local Transport
Bodies to establish the devolution of future local major transport schemes from 2015 onwards.

The Scrutiny Advisory Group has an agreed annual work programme which has been implemented.
The Scrutiny Advisory Group moved from themed meetings around national policy goals to more
timely scrutiny of issues in the ITA’s own forward plan. Regular review enabled the committee to
take account of the balance of the work programme, new and emerging issues, changing scrutiny
priorities and discussion at meetings.

Measuring the quality of services for users, for ensuring they are delivered in accordance with
the ITA’s objectives and for ensuring that they represent the best use of resources

We measure value for money through the annual financial planning process which reviews services
and identifies specific actions required to improve value for money which are then built into our
budget.

In previous years, the ITA completed an annual value for money (VFM) self-assessment that was
submitted to our external auditors. This assessed how well we manage and use our financial
resources in broad theme areas, considering Key Lines of Enquiry (KLOE) as specified by the Audit
Commission.

The Audit Commission has revised the approach to the auditor’s local VFM work at certain types of
body including integrated transport authorities. Auditors now apply a lighter-touch approach to
their local VGM work and will meet their VFM duty by:

. Reviewing the annual governance statement
. Reviewing the results of the work of other relevant regulatory bodies or inspectorates
. Undertaking other local risk-based work as appropriate

Performance against the capital programme is also monitored on a regular basis, with quarterly
reports taken to the ITA. There is also regular monitoring of the Financial Strategy, with revenue
budget monitoring reports to the ITA.

Service level agreements with the Lead Authority (Newcastle City Council) are in place, and
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regularly monitored to ensure value for money is being achieved. These are reviewed and updated
annually.

Nexus provide a Business Intelligence report to ITA Members which highlights issues such as
number of people using public transport, type of ticket purchased etc.

The main non-financial performance reporting undertaken by the ITA relates to LTP3, which is the
main strategy document of the ITA, covering all forms of transport in Tyne and Wear, and is
underpinned by the first in a series of three year delivery plans (2011-14) setting out how the
strategy will be put into effect at a local level.

The LTP3 Delivery Plan Chapter 5 (Monitoring) sets out the Performance Management Framework,
based on monitoring the 12 main policies identified in the LTP3 strategy. Updated baseline

measurements and targets were reported to the ITA and are reviewed and monitored on a regular
basis, with performance reported to the ITA and the ITA LTP Working Group.

CORE PRINCIPLE 2: MEMBERS AND OFFICERS HAVE CLEARLY DEFINED ROLES AND
RESPONSIBILITIES

Defining and documenting the roles and responsibilities of the ITA, scrutiny and officer functions,
with clear delegation arrangements and protocols for effective communication

The roles and responsibilities of committees and working groups of the ITA are set out in their
Terms of Reference.

The responsibilities of members and officers of the ITA in relation to the use of assets and
resources are set out in the financial regulations of the ITA, which are part of the ITA constitution.

There is a clear scheme of delegation to officers.

There is a code of conduct for members, to which all members sign up, upon taking the Office.

CORE PRINCIPLE 3: WE PROMOTE HIGH STANDARDS OF CONDUCT AND BEHAVIOUR

Developing, communicating and embedding codes of conduct, defining the standards of
behaviour for members and staff

There is a Code of Conduct for Members and a Code of Conduct for Employees.

The Standards Committee deals with issues of conduct and promotes high standards among
officers and members.

There is a Register of Interests and Registers of Gifts and Hospitality for both members and
officers.
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CORE PRINCIPLE 4: TRANSPARENT DECISION MAKING SUBJECT TO SCRUTINY AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

Reviewing and updating standing orders, standing financial instructions, a scheme of delegation
and supporting procedure notes/manuals, which clearly define how decisions are taken and the
processes and controls required to manage risks

The ITA’s constitution and scheme of delegation are reviewed annually in May. Officers undertook
the annual review of the ITA’s corporate governance, to ensure that the relevant documents
remain up to date, and reported to the ITA in May 2013.

Policy and decision making is undertaken by the ITA and its committees. Officers from the ITA, the
constituent Councils and Nexus have developed transport policies for the Local Transport Plan
(2011-2021).

The ITA has developed and maintains an effective scrutiny function which encourages constructive
challenge and enhances overall performance. The Scrutiny Advisory Group consists of members
who are not ITA Members, so are able to provide independent scrutiny.

The ITA has a Risk Management Framework in place and maintains a register of its strategic risks
as well as project risks related to the New Tyne Crossing Project. The ITA uses the risk
management resources available within the Lead Authority as required.

The ITA purchases appropriate levels of insurance to minimise financial risks, and self-insures
wherever possible.

Undertaking the core functions of an audit committee, as identified in CIPFA’s Audit Committees
— Practical Guidance for Local Authorities

We have an established Audit Committee, which is independent of the ITA and scrutiny functions.
It includes an independent chair and independent members to whom training is provided.

Ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal policies and procedures, and
that expenditure is lawful

The Clerk, Treasurer (S73 of the 1985 Act), Monitoring Officer, Head of Democratic Services and
other senior managers are responsible for advising the ITA and associated committees on legal,

financial and other procedures and policy considerations.

The ITA is subject to internal and external audit and inspection regimes. The ITA has an internal
audit service provided by the Lead Authority.

The ITA also has a Standards Committee and an Audit Committee, whose terms of reference
ensure probity and further scrutiny of ITA activities.

Whistle-blowing and procedure for receiving and investigation complaints from the public
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The ITA has an agreed whistle-blowing policy which is kept up to date and reviewed by Standards
Committee. The policy is available via the ITA website.

There is a corporate complaints procedure in place via the Lead Authority, with Nexus having
separate procedures in place for managing complaints.

CORE PRINCIPLE 5: DEVELOPING THE CAPACITY AND CAPABILITY OF MEMBERS TO BE EFFECTIVE

Identifying the development needs of members and senior officers in relation to their strategic
roles, supported by appropriate training

The ITA provides members with regular training and there is induction training for new members.
The ITA also holds a number of policy seminars with Nexus throughout the year to enhance
member training and understanding.

ITA members also undertake site visits where they are able to see progress in action at first hand.
For example, site visits have taken place to see the New Tyne Crossing, Haymarket Metro
development, Sunderland Station development, Tyne Pedestrian and Cycle Tunnels refurbishment,
the fitting of the new Metrocars as part of the reinvigoration programme, and London Docklands
Light Railway, to examine future generation light trains.

ITA members undertake an annual visit to examine relevant transport developments. The most
recent visit was to view transport developments promoted by Transport for London and Docklands
Light Railway. Schemes and policies considered included tendering for bus route networks, rolling
out smartcard technology and future smartcard and technology developments in light rail
operations. These issues are all very relevant to the ITA in respect of future transport policy,
including the planning of next generation Metro, the implementation and roll out of Ticketing &
Gating and the NESTI regional smartcard project and the delivery of better buses.

CORE PRINCIPLE 6: ENGAGING WITH LOCAL PEOPLE AND STAKEHOLDERS

Establishing clear channels of communication with all sections of the community and other
stakeholders, ensuring accountability and encouraging open consultation

Meetings are held in public, and committee papers are available on the ITA’s website which is
reviewed regularly. The ITA reviewed and refreshed its website during 2011/12 to ensure it was
easier to use and held more up-to-date information, and it has continued these improvements in
subsequent years. A feedback mechanism has been incorporated into the website to encourage
users to get in touch on any subject.

In line with the guidance on Local Transparency issued by the Department for Communities and
Local Government, details of all external payments over £250 are published on the ITA’s website
on a regular basis. Details of the members’ allowances scheme and amounts paid to members are
also published.

The consultation and involvement strategy sets out how Nexus on behalf of the ITA is engaging
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with its partners and stakeholders. The Nexus website encourages people to submit questions and
offer feedback.

LTP3 was subject to a period of public consultation with feedback received through a myriad of
channels including the website, social media, face-to-face interviews and letters. Comments
received were used to finalise the document.

Specific consultations also take place as required, for example there has been significant public
consultation

Incorporating good governance arrangements in respect of partnerships and other group
working as identified by the Audit Commission’s report on the governance of partnerships
(Governing Partnerships: Bridging the Accountability Gap, Audit Commission, 2005) and
reflecting on these in the Authority’s overall governance arrangements

The ITA takes the lead on the development of the Local Transport Plan, in partnership with the
other districts and Nexus.

The ITA is now working closely with the North East Local Enterprise Partnership on transport
issues. A Local Transport Body has been established, made up of the seven Leaders and Elected
Mayor of the local authorities in the North East. The ITA is a full voting member of the Local
Transport Body and is represented by the ITA Chairman. The officer group that provides support to
the Local Transport Body is chaired by the Clerk of the ITA, in her role as the Chief Executive for
transport in the North East.

Partnership arrangements are in place for the Local Sustainable Transport Fund Schools Go
Smarter and Go Smarter to Work programmes, which includes a Programme Board made up of
representatives from each of the Tyne and Wear Districts, Nexus, the ITA and other delivery
partners. A task-and-finish group has been set up for the delivery of the Better Bus Areas
programme, made up of officers from the ITA, Districts, Nexus and the major bus operators.

Nexus establishes and monitors its objectives and performance through the Passenger Transport
Policy Statement and its Annual Performance Plan and 3 year business plan.

The ITA has a partnership with TT2 Ltd to operate the Tyne Tunnels under a 30 year concession
contract.

The NESTI partnership is made up from all local authorities across the North East and Tees Valley in
order to provide a smart ticketing transport infrastructure across the region. A collaboration
agreement between the ITA and other authorities was entered into in October 2010 and runs for a
five year period; the ITA leads of the development of this initiative with Nexus delivering it on
behalf of partners. The ITA Policy lead chairs the NESTI Board meetings.

SECTION 4: ANNUAL REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS OF GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The ITA has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of the
Governance Framework including the system of internal control. The review is led by the ITA
Officer Working Group and the outcomes are reviewed by the Audit Committee before being
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considered and approved by the ITA. The review is informed by:

o The executive managers within the ITA who have responsibility for the development
and maintenance of the governance environment

o The views of our internal auditors which are reported to Audit Committee through
regular progress reports and through the Annual Internal Audit Opinion.

o An annual review of the effectiveness of our Internal Audit arrangements (as
required by Regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England)
Regulations 2011).

. The views of our external auditors, regularly reported to Standards and Audit
Committees through regular progress reports and through the Annual Audit and
Inspection Letter, Annual Governance Report and through regular meetings with

officers.
. The independent views of inspection agencies.
. The governance and internal control arrangements of our significant partnerships,

contractors and group arrangements:

. The Local Transport Plan Partnership (responsible for delivering the Local Transport
Plan)

. Nexus (the passenger transport executive responsible for the planning, provision and
promotion of public transport). The ITA has appropriate representation within
Nexus which provides an ongoing source of assurance

. TT2 Ltd (responsible for the construction and effective operation of the Tyne Tunnels
and New Tyne Crossing) and internal arrangements in place to support and monitor
the contract.

o The ITA’s Strategic Risk Register, which captures the most significant risks associated
with delivery of the ITA’s objectives

o The Lead Authority’s own annual review of its Governance Framework
o The views of members through the ongoing work of Audit Committee and the ITA

o The work of the ITA Officer Working Group — this group consists of Lead Authority
officers who meet monthly for agenda setting purposes, to share information and to
monitor performance issues and governance arrangements.

SECTION 5: SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES

The system of governance (including the system of internal control) can provide only reasonable
and not absolute assurance that assets are safeguarded, that transactions are authorised and
properly recorded, that material errors or irregularities are either prevented or would be
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detected within a timely period and that significant risks impacting on the achievement of the
ITA’s objectives have been mitigated.

The review did not highlight any issues as significant weaknesses in governance or internal
control during 2013/14.

SECTION 6: SIGNIFICANT IMPROVEMENTS NEEDED TO GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The purpose of the review is also to identify issues that may need significant improvement but
which do not constitute “significant weaknesses” in our governance and internal control
arrangements.

The review did not highlight any governance or internal control issues as requiring significant
improvement during 2013/14.

SECTION 7: CONCLUSION

We consider the governance and internal control environment operating during 2013/14 to
provide reasonable and objective assurance that any significant risks impacting on the
achievement of our principal objectives will be identified and actions taken to avoid or mitigate
their impact.

Systems are in place to continually review and improve the governance and internal control
environment.

The annual review has shown that the arrangements are in place and operating as planned.

We have been advised on the implications of the review by the ITA Officer Working Group.

Chair of the NECA Chief Executive Chief Finance Officer
Date: Date: Date:
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2013/14

On the establishment of the Durham, Gateshead, Newcastle, Northumberland, North Tyneside,
South Tyneside and Sunderland Combined Authority (known as the ‘North East Combined Authority)
the Tyne and Wear ITA ceased to exist and its assets, liabilities and functions were all taken over by
the new Combined Authority.

This Annual Governance Statement sets out those arrangements which were in place in Tyne &
Wear ITA during 2013/14. A review of all aspects of corporate governance for the new Combined
Authority will take place during 2014/15.

SECTION 1: SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

The Tyne and Wear Integrated Transport Authority (ITA) is responsible for ensuring that its business
is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards and that public money is safeguarded
and properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The ITA also has a
duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of
economy, efficiency and effectiveness. The ITA also has a general power of promoting well-being
within its area that was introduced by the Local Transport Act 2008.

In discharging this overall responsibility, the ITA is responsible for putting in place proper
arrangements (known as a Governance Framework) for:

(i) The governance of our affairs and
(ii) Facilitating the effective exercise of our functions, including arrangements for the
management of risk.

In relation to (i) we have adopted a Local Code of Corporate Governance (“Local Code”) which is
consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local
Government. A copy is available on our website at www.twita.gov.uk.

The Local Code evidences our commitment to achieving good governance and demonstrates how we
comply with the governance standards recommended by CIPFA. It has been updated and approved
as part of this review.

In addition to the Local Code, the authority’s financial management arrangements conform with the
governance requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer on Local
Government (2010) as set out in the Application Note to Delivering Good Governance in Local
Government: A Framework.

In relation to (ii) the ITA has put in place a system of internal control designed to manage risk to a
reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and

can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of
internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to:
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(a) identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of our policies, aims and objectives; and
(b) to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised, the impact should they be realised,
and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

SECTION 2: THE PURPOSE OF THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

In addition to the above, the ITA’s Governance Framework comprises the systems and process,
culture and values, through which the ITA is directed and controlled and its activities through which
it accounts to, engages with and leads the community. It enables the ITA to monitor the
achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the
delivery of appropriate, cost effective services.

The governance framework has been in place at the ITA for the year ended 31 March 2014 and up to
the date of the approval of the Annual Report and Accounts.

This Annual Governance Statement explains how we have complied with the Code and also meets
the requirements of Regulation 4(3) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 which requires all
relevant public bodies to prepare an annual governance statement.

SECTION 3: THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The main features of our Governance Framework are described in our Local Code and are
summarised below:

CORE PRINCIPLE 1: FOCUSSING ON OUR PURPOSE AND OUTCOMES FOR RESIDENTS

Identifying and communicating the ITA’s vision of purpose and intended outcomes for residents
and service users

The ITA’s priorities were set out in the Passenger Transport Policy Statement, published every three
years. With the ITA having overall responsibility for the Tyne and Wear Local Transport Plan 2011-
2021, we have sought to include our vision and policies within our LTP. The LTP sets out the ITA’s
policies, priorities and implementation plan for action in the coming years, and included significant
consultation with residents during the development stage. We consulted with Members, residents
and businesses during 2010 on the vision and objectives. This helped inform our adopted vision and
objectives and a chapter of the finalised LTP documents is dedicated to outlining changes to the
document post-consultation.

There is a policy work programme enabling us to secure effective and forward looking decisions
while also being flexible enough to be able to react to emerging changes. This is strengthened by bi-
monthly policy seminars for Members.

Reviewing the ITA’s vision and the implications for its governance arrangements

We are assisted by the work of our internal and external auditors, in helping to identify strengths
and weaknesses in our performances, governance and internal control.
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We have been working with colleagues in Nexus and across Tyne and Wear to implement the
opportunities presented by the Local Transport Act 2008 and the transition to the Integrated
Transport Authority. We continued to support the ITA informal working groups to help the ITA to
discharge its broader remit. These are the LTP Working Group, the Equality and Diversity Working
Group, the Bus Strategy Working Group and the Tyne Tunnels Working Group. We also continued to
support the Metro Sub Committee, Standards Committee, Audit Committee and Scrutiny Advisory
Group.

The ITA has been closely involved in the review of transport governance across the Tyne and Wear
City Region. This strengthened the role of the ITA in developing transport strategy and policy at the
City Region level. More recently, the ITA has been working closely with the North East Local
Enterprise Partnership on transport-related issues — including the establishment of Local Transport
Bodies to establish the devolution of future local major transport schemes from 2015 onwards.

The Scrutiny Advisory Group has an agreed annual work programme which has been implemented.
The Scrutiny Advisory Group moved from themed meetings around national policy goals to more
timely scrutiny of issues in the ITA’s own forward plan. Regular review enabled the committee to
take account of the balance of the work programme, new and emerging issues, changing scrutiny
priorities and discussion at meetings.

Measuring the quality of services for users, for ensuring they are delivered in accordance with the
ITA’s objectives and for ensuring that they represent the best use of resources

We measure value for money through the annual financial planning process which reviews services
and identifies specific actions required to improve value for money which are then built into our
budget.

In previous years, the ITA completed an annual value for money (VFM) self-assessment that was
submitted to our external auditors. This assessed how well we manage and use our financial
resources in broad theme areas, considering Key Lines of Enquiry (KLOE) as specified by the Audit
Commission.

The Audit Commission has revised the approach to the auditor’s local VFM work at certain types of
body including integrated transport authorities. Auditors now apply a lighter-touch approach to their
local VGM work and will meet their VFM duty by:

e Reviewing the annual governance statement
e Reviewing the results of the work of other relevant regulatory bodies or inspectorates
e Undertaking other local risk-based work as appropriate

Performance against the capital programme is also monitored on a regular basis, with quarterly
reports taken to the ITA. There is also regular monitoring of the Financial Strategy, with revenue
budget monitoring reports to the ITA.

Service level agreements with the Lead Authority (Newcastle City Council) are in place, and regularly
monitored to ensure value for money is being achieved. These are reviewed and updated annually.
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Nexus provide a Business Intelligence report to ITA Members which highlights issues such as number
of people using public transport, type of ticket purchased etc.

The main non-financial performance reporting undertaken by the ITA relates to LTP3, which is the
main strategy document of the ITA, covering all forms of transport in Tyne and Wear, and is
underpinned by the first in a series of three year delivery plans (2011-14) setting out how the
strategy will be put into effect at a local level.

The LTP3 Delivery Plan Chapter 5 (Monitoring) sets out the Performance Management Framework,
based on monitoring the 12 main policies identified in the LTP3 strategy. Updated baseline
measurements and targets were reported to the ITA and are reviewed and monitored on a regular
basis, with performance reported to the ITA and the ITA LTP Working Group.
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CORE PRINCIPLE 2: MEMBERS AND OFFICERS HAVE CLEARLY DEFINED ROLES AND
RESPONSIBILITIES

Defining and documenting the roles and responsibilities of the ITA, scrutiny and officer functions,
with clear delegation arrangements and protocols for effective communication

The roles and responsibilities of committees and working groups of the ITA are set out in their Terms
of Reference.

The responsibilities of members and officers of the ITA in relation to the use of assets and resources
are set out in the financial regulations of the ITA, which are part of the ITA constitution.

There is a clear scheme of delegation to officers.

There is a code of conduct for members, to which all members sign up, upon taking the Office.
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CORE PRINCIPLE 3: WE PROMOTE HIGH STANDARDS OF CONDUCT AND BEHAVIOUR

Developing, communicating and embedding codes of conduct, defining the standards of behaviour
for members and staff

There is a Code of Conduct for Members and a Code of Conduct for Employees.

The Standards Committee deals with issues of conduct and promotes high standards among officers

and members.

There is a Register of Interests and Registers of Gifts and Hospitality for both members and officers.
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CORE PRINCIPLE 4: TRANSPARENT DECISION MAKING SUBJECT TO SCRUTINY AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

Reviewing and updating standing orders, standing financial instructions, a scheme of delegation
and supporting procedure notes/manuals, which clearly define how decisions are taken and the
processes and controls required to manage risks

The ITA’s constitution and scheme of delegation are reviewed annually in May. Officers undertook
the annual review of the ITA’s corporate governance, to ensure that the relevant documents remain
up to date, and reported to the ITA in May 2013.

Policy and decision making is undertaken by the ITA and its committees. Officers from the ITA, the
constituent Councils and Nexus have developed transport policies for the Local Transport Plan
(2011-2021).

The ITA has developed and maintains an effective scrutiny function which encourages constructive
challenge and enhances overall performance. The Scrutiny Advisory Group consists of members who
are not ITA Members, so are able to provide independent scrutiny.

The ITA has a Risk Management Framework in place and maintains a register of its strategic risks as
well as project risks related to the New Tyne Crossing Project. The ITA uses the risk management
resources available within the Lead Authority as required.

The ITA purchases appropriate levels of insurance to minimise financial risks, and self-insures
wherever possible.

Undertaking the core functions of an audit committee, as identified in CIPFA’s Audit Committees —
Practical Guidance for Local Authorities

We have an established Audit Committee, which is independent of the ITA and scrutiny functions. It
includes an independent chair and independent members to whom training is provided.

Ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal policies and procedures, and that
expenditure is lawful

The Clerk, Treasurer (S73 of the 1985 Act), Monitoring Officer, Head of Democratic Services and
other senior managers are responsible for advising the ITA and associated committees on legal,
financial and other procedures and policy considerations.

The ITA is subject to internal and external audit and inspection regimes. The ITA has an internal audit
service provided by the Lead Authority.

The ITA also has a Standards Committee and an Audit Committee, whose terms of reference ensure
probity and further scrutiny of ITA activities.

Whistle-blowing and procedure for receiving and investigation complaints from the public

The ITA has an agreed whistle-blowing policy which is kept up to date and reviewed by Standards
Committee. The policy is available via the ITA website.
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There is a corporate complaints procedure in place via the Lead Authority, with Nexus having
separate procedures in place for managing complaints.
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CORE PRINCIPLE 5: DEVELOPING THE CAPACITY AND CAPABILITY OF MEMBERS TO BE EFFECTIVE

Identifying the development needs of members and senior officers in relation to their strategic
roles, supported by appropriate training

The ITA provides members with regular training and there is induction training for new members.
The ITA also holds a number of policy seminars with Nexus throughout the year to enhance member
training and understanding.

ITA members also undertake site visits where they are able to see progress in action at first hand.
For example, site visits have taken place to see the New Tyne Crossing, Haymarket Metro
development, Sunderland Station development, Tyne Pedestrian and Cycle Tunnels refurbishment,
the fitting of the new Metrocars as part of the reinvigoration programme, and London Docklands
Light Railway, to examine future generation light trains.

ITA members undertake an annual visit to examine relevant transport developments. The most
recent visit was to view transport developments promoted by Transport for London and Docklands
Light Railway. Schemes and policies considered included tendering for bus route networks, rolling
out smartcard technology and future smartcard and technology developments in light rail
operations. These issues are all very relevant to the ITA in respect of future transport policy,
including the planning of next generation Metro, the implementation and roll out of Ticketing &
Gating and the NESTI regional smartcard project and the delivery of better buses.
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CORE PRINCIPLE 6: ENGAGING WITH LOCAL PEOPLE AND STAKEHOLDERS

Establishing clear channels of communication with all sections of the community and other
stakeholders, ensuring accountability and encouraging open consultation

Meetings are held in public, and committee papers are available on the ITA’s website which is
reviewed regularly. The ITA reviewed and refreshed its website during 2011/12 to ensure it was
easier to use and held more up-to-date information, and it has continued these improvements in
subsequent years. A feedback mechanism has been incorporated into the website to encourage
users to get in touch on any subject.

In line with the guidance on Local Transparency issued by the Department for Communities and
Local Government, details of all external payments over £250 are published on the ITA’s website on
a regular basis. Details of the members’ allowances scheme and amounts paid to members are also
published.

The consultation and involvement strategy sets out how Nexus on behalf of the ITA is engaging with
its partners and stakeholders. The Nexus website encourages people to submit questions and offer
feedback.

LTP3 was subject to a period of public consultation with feedback received through a myriad of
channels including the website, social media, face-to-face interviews and letters. Comments received
were used to finalise the document.

Specific consultations also take place as required, for example there has been significant public
consultation

Incorporating good governance arrangements in respect of partnerships and other group working
as identified by the Audit Commission’s report on the governance of partnerships (Governing
Partnerships: Bridging the Accountability Gap, Audit Commission, 2005) and reflecting on these in
the Authority’s overall governance arrangements

The ITA takes the lead on the development of the Local Transport Plan, in partnership with the other
districts and Nexus.

The ITA is now working closely with the North East Local Enterprise Partnership on transport issues.
A Local Transport Body has been established, made up of the seven Leaders and Elected Mayor of
the local authorities in the North East. The ITA is a full voting member of the Local Transport Body
and is represented by the ITA Chairman. The officer group that provides support to the Local
Transport Body is chaired by the Clerk of the ITA, in her role as the Chief Executive for transport in
the North East.

Partnership arrangements are in place for the Local Sustainable Transport Fund Schools Go Smarter
and Go Smarter to Work programmes, which includes a Programme Board made up of
representatives from each of the Tyne and Wear Districts, Nexus, the ITA and other delivery
partners. A task-and-finish group has been set up for the delivery of the Better Bus Areas
programme, made up of officers from the ITA, Districts, Nexus and the major bus operators.
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Nexus establishes and monitors its objectives and performance through the Passenger Transport
Policy Statement and its Annual Performance Plan and 3 year business plan.

The ITA has a partnership with TT2 Ltd to operate the Tyne Tunnels under a 30 year concession
contract.

The NESTI partnership is made up from all local authorities across the North East and Tees Valley in
order to provide a smart ticketing transport infrastructure across the region. A collaboration
agreement between the ITA and other authorities was entered into in October 2010 and runs for a
five year period; the ITA leads of the development of this initiative with Nexus delivering it on behalf
of partners. The ITA Policy lead chairs the NESTI Board meetings.

SECTION 4: ANNUAL REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS OF GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The ITA has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of the
Governance Framework including the system of internal control. The review is led by the ITA
Officer Working Group and the outcomes are reviewed by the Audit Committee before being
considered and approved by the ITA. The review is informed by:

(a) The executive managers within the ITA who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the governance environment

(b) The views of our internal auditors which are reported to Audit Committee through regular
progress reports and through the Annual Internal Audit Opinion.

(c) An annual review of the effectiveness of our Internal Audit arrangements (as required by
Regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2011).

(d) The views of our external auditors, regularly reported to Standards and Audit Committees
through regular progress reports and through the Annual Audit and Inspection Letter,
Annual Governance Report and through regular meetings with officers.

(e) The independent views of inspection agencies.

(f) The governance and internal control arrangements of our significant partnerships,
contractors and group arrangements:

- The Local Transport Plan Partnership (responsible for delivering the Local Transport Plan)

- Nexus (the passenger transport executive responsible for the planning, provision and
promotion of public transport). The ITA has appropriate representation within Nexus
which provides an ongoing source of assurance

- TT2 Ltd (responsible for the construction and effective operation of the Tyne Tunnels and
New Tyne Crossing) and internal arrangements in place to support and monitor the
contract.

(g) The ITA’s Strategic Risk Register, which captures the most significant risks associated with
delivery of the ITA’s objectives

(h) The Lead Authority’s own annual review of its Governance Framework
(i) The views of members through the ongoing work of Audit Committee and the ITA

(i) The work of the ITA Officer Working Group — this group consists of Lead Authority officers
who meet monthly for agenda setting purposes, to share information and to monitor
performance issues and governance arrangements.
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SECTION 5: SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES

The system of governance (including the system of internal control) can provide only reasonable
and not absolute assurance that assets are safeguarded, that transactions are authorised and
properly recorded, that material errors or irregularities are either prevented or would be
detected within a timely period and that significant risks impacting on the achievement of the
ITA’s objectives have been mitigated.

The review did not highlight any issues as significant weaknesses in governance or internal
control during 2013/14.

SECTION 6: SIGNIFICANT IMPROVEMENTS NEEDED TO GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The purpose of the review is also to identify issues that may need significant improvement but
which do not constitute “significant weaknesses” in our governance and internal control
arrangements.

The review did not highlight any governance or internal control issues as requiring significant
improvement during 2013/14.

SECTION 7: CONCLUSION

We consider the governance and internal control environment operating during 2013/14 to
provide reasonable and objective assurance that any significant risks impacting on the
achievement of our principal objectives will be identified and actions taken to avoid or mitigate
their impact.

Systems are in place to continually review and improve the governance and internal control
environment.

The annual review has shown that the arrangements are in place and operating as planned.

We have been advised on the implications of the review by the ITA Officer Working Group.

Signed:
Chair of the NECA Chief Executive Chief Finance Officer
Date: Date: Date:
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